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About us

Founded in June 1995, China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (referred to as “China VAST Development”,
Stock Code: 6166.HK) is one of the pioneer providers in the planning, development and operation of large-scale industrial town
projects. Riding on its experience in property development accumulated in the initial stage, China VAST Development was
transformed into a pioneer in new urbanization construction in 2005. The Company has been committed to developing large-
scale industrial town projects in the strategic planning areas under the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and “Two Horizontal
& Three Vertical Urbanization Plan”, demonstrating its four comparative advantages including: unique abilities in industrial town
planning, designing & positioning, abilities in infrastructure investment and construction, abilities in marketing & promotion, and
related auxiliary facilities for logistics, residential & commercial properties. Through cooperation with local governments under
long-term agreements, unlike other ordinary property developers, industrial towns are designed to provide a wide spectrum
of comprehensive and professional services for regional industrial development and development in towns, including planning
and design, industry positioning, land preparation, infrastructure construction, marketing and promotion and related auxiliary
facilities for logistics, residential and commercial properties. Currently, China VAST Development has around 70 subsidiaries
including Langfang VAST Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Gaocheng
Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Ezhou Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban Development Co.,
Ltd. and Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd., all of which are responsible for construction and development service
of different industrial towns. China VAST Development is working together with local government of Langfang, Zhangjiakou and
Shijiazhuang of Hebei province, Ezhou and Wuhan of Hubei province in respect of development of 10 industrial town projects
with project planning areas of approximately 141.9 sq. km. Focusing on the optimization of infrastructures in the abovementioned
regions, transformation of industry and construction of urbanization as well as building and realizing full integration of working and
living communities for its residents, China VAST Development will spare no effort to become a leading provider and operator of
industrial town in China.
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Corporate Information
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Ms. Wang Wei

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Zhao Ying

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. Hsieh Yafang

Professor Wang Yijiang

Audit Committee
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Professor Wang Yijiang (Chairman)

Ms. Zhao Ying

Ms. Hsieh Yafang

Nomination Committee
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Chairman)

Ms. Hsieh Yafang

Professor Wang Yijiang

Company Secretary
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Corporate Information

NREF

Principal Place of Business in the PRC
China VAST Development Building

Hongtai East 2nd Avenue

Chaoyang District

Beijing

China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Units 3707-08, 37/F

West Tower, Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Hong Kong Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank

Pingan Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China

Huaxia Bank

Company’s Website

www.vastiud.com
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Financial Highlights
HEREE

(in RMB'000 A EE#Fr )
Revenue Gross profit
WA EF
2018 | 2018 |
3,995,224 2,431,320
207 | I 2017 |
2,935,017 1,966,076
Profitﬂefpre tax Profit Lor the year
RRBL AR R ARERF
2018 | I 2018 | I
1,779,388 1,121,347
2017 | | 2017 | |
1,497,530 1,080,834
For the year ended 31 December
HE12 A31HLEFE
2018 2017 Approximate
RMB RMB Change %
AR¥ AR BV R %
Revenue ION 3,995.2 million & 2,935.0 million & 36.1
Gross profit EF 2,431.3 million BE& 1,966.1 million B & 237
Profit before tax BBLATEF] 1,779.4 million & 1,497.5 million B 18.8
Profit for the year IS F) 1,121.3 million B8 1,080.8 million 5 & 3.7
Interim dividend per share SRR E HK$#¥0.05 T - N/A 7 F
Proposed final dividend per share  ZE SRS HK$#E%0.11 T HK$/5%0.25 7T -56

B R R E E T IAEE AR A F] China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Financial Highlights
ERE
(in RMB'000 A EE#T ot )

Segment revenue

2 RPUA

70.1%

RMB2,801.5 million
AR¥2,801.588

/S

FY18
18 BIEE

RMB3,995.2 million
AR¥3,995.288

28.5%
RMB1,139.8 million

AR¥1,139.858
1.4%

RMB53.9 million
AR¥53.95HE

Segment gross profit

2 EBER

FY18
18 BIEE

RMB2,431.3 million
AR¥2,431.3658

73.2%
RMB1,779.1 million
AR¥1,779.188

1.4%

25.4% RMB34.6 million
RMB617.6 million AR#34.65E
ARM617.688

. Industrial town development
EXEMRER

. Property development
MEER

Property leasing
. MERE

05

94.6%
RMB2,775.3 million
AR¥2,775.3858

/d

FY17
17 BTBEFE
4.2% RMB2,935.0 million
RMB122.9 miIIio: ARM¥2,935.088

AR¥122988

1.2%

RMB36.8 million
AR#36.8E8

98.6%
RMB1,939.0 million
AR¥1,939.088

/“—\\\

FY17
17 BREE

RMB1,966.1 million
AR¥1,966.158

/d

0.5%
RMB9.6 million
AR¥9.6ER

0.9%
RMB17.5 million
AR¥17.588

Annual Report 2018 %
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHF
Dear Shareholders,

In this beautiful season, a time when breeze is gentle and everything
blossoms, | am pleased to show our greatest gratitude and best wishes to all
shareholders, investors and friends on behalf of the board of directors of the
Company and myself!

In 2018, operating results of China VAST rose to a new height. In the face of
a series of challenges and difficulties of the overall industry, we continued to
maintain rapid growth against the headwind. The Company recorded revenue
of RMB3,995 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 36.1%; gross
profit of RMB2,431 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 23.7%;, net
profit of RMB1,121 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.7%; and
basic earnings per share were RMBO0.67.

New marketing development for business cooperation. The Company
entered into strategic cooperation agreements with over 10 parties, including
Air Sport Management Center of the General Administration of Sport of
China, Investment Promotion Bureau of the Ministry of Commerce, CMIG,
Technology Transfer Center of CAS, CSSD, OMQ and DomusVi of France.
We channeled effort in the establishment of global platforms for industry
resources integration and for capital, which has laid a solid foundation for
international projects with high quality to be implemented in the industrial
park. We communicated closely with over 60 well-known enterprises, such
as COMAC, Sinomerco, TUS, CAS Health, TNP and DFKI and made solid
progress in key cooperation projects such as general aviation, greater health,
technological innovation, intelligent manufacturing and industrial design. We
occupied the “peak” of the industrial value chain and created new growth
point for company'’s business, thus the comprehensive competitiveness has
been significantly enhanced.

Exploration for new model of innovation-driven development. On
top of industrial development demand, we entered into strategic cooperation
agreements with 7 well-known universities in our country including Beijing
Institute of Technology, Hunan University and Central Academy of Fine Arts
to actively plan the layout in high-end technology projects, including industry
design, industrial Internet and intelligent manufacturing. We facilitated the
transformation from technological achievements to practical production from
various aspects including capital, technology, patent and service, realized
“last kilometer” of technological innovation, and led to regional economic
transformation and upgrade as well as high-quality development.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

FREEE

New level of corporate brand. The Company was elected as the
vice president unit under special invitation of the China Industrial Design
Association. We organized a series of important brand promotion
activities, including China International Industry Design Forum, Aviation
Expo in Shijiazhuang, the First Langfang Industrial Design Week and RENO
International Championship Air Races. We were the sole-sponsor for a
skydiving program “Greetings from the New Year and Blessings” which had
been shown at the CCTV Spring Festival Gala in the year of dog. We were
also ranked the first three among the top 30 S-PARK China industrial parks.
We were accredited with over 10 rewards, including “2018 Global Industrial
Resource Integration Model Enterprise”, “2018 Best Investment Value Award
for Listed Companies” and “Top 100 Great Private Enterprise in Hebei”. The
above-mentioned has laid a solid brand foundation for company’s vigorous

development in all respects.

Looking back into 2018, all these achievement is the result of the joint efforts
of the Company’s board of directors, senior management team and all staff. It
is also a result of the firm support at all times from all shareholders, investors
and the community.

Looking forward into 2019, the Company will carefully adhere to the mindset
of “steady and healthy expansion, rapid development, multi-cooperation and
meticulous cultivation”, to "stand on high grounds, live on peaceful grounds
and walk towards wider grounds”. We will implement certain strategic and
project cooperation with one mind ahead of challenges to again record
fruitful results.

Stand on high grounds. We should maintain a long-term strategic vision,
continue to seize and explore major opportunities for Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei integration and development, Xiongan New Area, Beijing New
Airport Economic Zone, Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and industrial
transformation so as to attain solid growth for the park, improve the quality of
the projects and bring better results.

Live on peaceful grounds. The Company will keep exploiting in depth the
mature areas in Langfang, Shijiazhuang and Ezhou and make down-to-earth
development plan of the parks for the next 5 to 10 years. We will optimize
working procedure in terms of marketing, financing and land preparation,
and truly realize “facts against facts and high-efficiency”. The Company
will deepen communications between platforms and local government and
investors and capture more information resources and cooperation and
development opportunities.

0/

TERBESBATSE - ArEEREITER
e e REN - BPREBER TR
EXmERE AREMES  F—EBHIE
FEHE - EH(RENO)EBE M EHIZES — R
ERMEHETE  2EBREIERBIDS
kR ERRRE AT RIEER ;- 8
ANKAIES-PARKA Bl = E B[R 305481 = F & &R7&
[2018 2 REXERESIZITRZE]  [2018F &
BRABELMARE]  [WEEEFREDLE
R ISEEI10%1E - ARARSEIIENEDE
RET T RERREGER -

E#2018  EERANDNG  RAFEER B
EERAEEETARS IR - BERRE
R REAIR B & T 85 R TR B
% -

RE2019 RAIBREERIBRENE - REHE
&~ ZILAE - BRI - mRMESE
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BAEBAE E -0 BREAN - BalE

K<t
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE

Walk towards wider grounds. The Company will continue to explore
capital investment and industrial investment, and initiate strategic
cooperation with more central enterprises, national enterprises, universities
and international institutions in order to assemble more high-quality
resources. We will grasp the opportunity to establish industrial development
funds and global high-end industry projects in respect of aviation logistics,
e-commerce and industrial design. We will engage international leaders and
utilize great resources, deepen international communications, strengthen
practical cooperation, enhance internal impetus and external capacity for
industrial development and promote industrial connection and integration.

The year of 2019 will witness a number of national major development
strategies such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration and development, Yangtze
River Delta Economic Zone, Xiongan New Area, the Second Beijing Capital
International Airport and Belt and Road to be implemented at the same
time. The more challenges and opportunities, the brighter future will be. The
Company will hold tight every opportunity for development, channel great
effort, embrace big dreams and make due diligence to set record high!

Wang Jianjun
Chairman
27 March 2019, Hong Kong

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 was substantially
generated from: (i) fee and service income relating to/arising from land
development projects/arrangements, representing our fee income derived
from development of industrial town projects; (i) revenue from the sales
of properties; and (i) a minor portion derived from revenue from property
leasing. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our revenue:

g E)

A

BB E2018F12A31H FFEHRAEZER
B OTFMEEE ZHEEERRRBK
A BRAEREXTREANERKA ()7
EHEWA - AN EA(INDEEERA -
TERETIH I AR -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T

Fee and service income relating to/arising from T FAEIBE LHEREER &

land development projects / arrangements RR7S WA 2,801,516 2,775,327
Revenue from the sales of properties PIEESHE WA 1,139,813 122,850
Revenue from property leasing YIEREWA 53,895 36,840
3,995,224 2,935,017

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB3,995.2 million, representing an increase of 36.1% compared with the
total revenue of RMB2,935.0 million for the same period in 2017. The increase
in revenue was mainly due to the delivery upon the completion of a property
project for sale.

As for the land development business, we recorded a revenue of RMB2,801.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of 0.9%
compared with RMB2,775.3 million for the same period in 2017.

AEBEHZE2018F12A31MB L FENBRABAR
#3,995 280 87T © 82017 F RERARAARE
2,935.0 8 & TTIEN36.1% ° WAL INE B HR—
EYEEEE TIRNA ©

MIHABEBHME - RMEE2018F12A31F
IEFEHEBRAARE2801.588 T » 820174F
FERE AR KE2,775 3B BT 110.9% °

Annual Report 2018 43§
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

For the year ended 31 December 2018, an aggregate of 404,842 sg.m. of
land in Longhe Park was sold by the relevant local government at a total land
premium of RMB2,608.4 million. Compared with the aggregate of 589,431
sg.m. of land sold in Longhe Park by the local government at a total land
premium of RMB4,107.8 million for the same period in 2017, there were
decreases in the area of land sold and the land premium. We recorded
a total fee income of RMB1,873.5 million from Longhe Park for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of RMB158.5 million
compared with RMB2,032.0 million for the same period in 2017. The fee
income recognised from sales of land was RMB1,521.6 million as compared
with RMB1,912.3 million for the same period in 2017. In addition to the fee
income recognised from sales of land, we received from a successful land
buyer a land preparation service income of RMB187.8 million, an income
from the transfer of part of land development rights of RMB99.0 million and
other comprehensive services fee income of RMB65.1 million (for the same
period in 2017: RMB119.7 million). Other comprehensive services fee income
was calculated and charged with reference to a certain proportion to the tax
imposed on Longhe Park resident enterprises during the year.

In addition, we also recognised income from the land development projects
from other parks. For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park,
the Group was mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services,
the income from which was RMB453.1 million, representing an increase of
76.5% as compared with RMB256.7 million for the same period in 2017. For
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, the Group was mainly
engaged in land preparation and investment services, the income from which
was RMB157.7 million, representing a decrease of 56.4% as compared with
RMB361.6 million for the same period in 2017. For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park,
the Group was mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services,
the income from which was RMB224.8 million, representing an increase of
80.9% as compared with RMB124.3 million for the same period in 2017. The
income from land preparation and investment services of such three parks
was calculated using the cost plus method. In Wuhan Development Zone
General Aviation Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone, the Group
recognised a service income for industry development of RMB92.4 million.
Such income was calculated with reference to a certain proportion to the
amount of investment in park establishment.

For our property development business, we recorded revenue from the sales
of properties of RMB1,139.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of RMB1,016.9 million as compared with RMB122.9
million for the same period in 2017. This was mainly due to the fact that for
the year ended 31 December 2018, we delivered the area of commercial,
residential and industrial properties of 95,282 sq.m., representing an increase
of 81,790 sg.m. as compared with the area of property delivered of 13,492
sg.m. for the same period in 2017, which resulted in an increase in the overall
property sales revenue.

PEEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

Cost of Sales and Services

Our cost of sales and services consists of (i) cost of development projects
of land arrangements, (i) cost of properties sold, and (iii) direct operating
expense of property leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2018, our
cost of sales and services amounted to RMB1,563.9 million, representing an
increase of 61.4% as compared with that of RMB968.9 million for the same
period of 2017. Such increase was primarily due to the increase of property
selling cost for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, our administrative expenses
amounted to RMB430.9 million, representing an increase of 71.9% as
compared with that of RMB250.7 million for the same period of 2017. Such
increase was primarily due to the increase in expenses including staff
salaries, share-based payment expenses and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2018, our gross profit amounted to
RMB2,431.3 million, which represented an increase of 23.7% compared with
RMB1,966.1 million for the same period in 2017. Our gross profit margin was
60.9% for the year ended 31 December 2018, compared with 67.0% for the
same period in 2017. Such decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due
to the increase in ratio of revenue from sales of properties to total revenue,
the gross profit margin of which was lower than that of land development
arrangements of the parks.

Other Income

Other income increased by RMB43.5 million (representing 34.3%) from
RMB127.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB170.5 million
for the same period in 2018. The increase was mainly because interest
income from trade receivables and other receivables increased by RMB39.6
million.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses decreased from net gain of RMB44.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to net loss of RMB16.1 million for the same
period in 2018, which was mainly attributable to RMB19.5 million in the
exchange loss recorded during the year, while the exchange gain for the
same period last year was RMB43.5 million.

HENRRBHRA

AR E R AREAL A B IE() L P TE B MR
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FHZE20185 12 A31 A LG E W2 85 BOANIE InfT
g( °

THFEX
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Finance Costs

Finance cost decreased by RMB140.0 million (representing 41.9%) from
RMB334.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB194.4 million
for the same period in 2018. The decrease in finance cost was mainly due to
a decrease in our average outstanding balance of bank loans and other loan
facilities.

Profit Before Tax

Profit before tax increased by RMB281.9 million, representing an increase
of 18.8%, from RMB1,497.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
RMB1,779.4 million for the same period in 2018.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by RMB241.3 million (representing 57.9%) from
RMB416.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB658.0 million
for the same period in 2018, which was primarily due to an increase in both
profit before tax and deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, the net profit of the Group increased by
RMB40.5 million (representing 3.7%) from RMB1,080.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB1,121.3 million for the same period in 2018,
which was primarily due to the increase in revenue from sales of properties,
which offset the increase in cost of sales and services and administrative
expenses.

Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMBO0.67, while the diluted earnings per share was RMBO0.62 (for the year
ended 31 December 2017: basic earnings per share was RMB0.66 and diluted
earnings per share was RMBO0.61). The above basic and diluted earnings per
share were calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,647,587,000 shares and 1,859,966,000 shares, respectively.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Cash Position

Our cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB364.5 million from
RMB1,710.7 million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB1,346.2 million as at
31 December 2018, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash outflow of
RMB119.9 million from our operating activities; (i) the net cash inflow of
RMB18.3 million from investing activities, which was primarily a result of the
withdrawal of RMB753.0 million from restricted bank deposits, the placement
of RMB371.0 million in restricted bank deposits, the withdrawal of deposits
with original maturity over three months of RMB607.5 million, placement
of deposits with original maturity over three months of RMB607.0 million,
as well as payments for acquisition of prepaid lease payments, properties
and investment properties of RMB416.5 million and amounts received from
disposal of equity interest in subsidiaries of RMB50.2 million; (iii) the net cash
outflow of RMB326.5 million from financing activities which was primarily due
to new bank loans and other loans of RMB2,174.5 million, the repayment of
bank loans and other loans of RMB2,075.3 million, newly-received convertible
bonds and notes of RMB1,039.5 million, the repayment of convertible bonds
and notes of RMB642.5 million and the interest payment of RMB481.6 million,
as well as the dividend payment of RMB420.7 million.

Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group's total borrowings increased by RMB112.8 million from RMB5,067.7
million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB5,180.5 million as at 31 December
2018. Secured bank loans increased from RMB2,597.7 million as at 31
December 2017 to RMB2,947.3 million as at 31 December 2018, while other
secured or guaranteed loans decreased from RMB2,450.0 million as at 31
December 2017 to RMB2,233.2 million as at 31 December 2018.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB1,511.0 million as at 31 December 2017
to RMB2,363.4 million as at 31 December 2018, which were mainly due to the
trade receivables of each park from local governments, including RMB244.6
million from Longhe Park, RMB348.1 million from VAST Ezhou Industrial Park,
RMB392.2 million from Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park and
RMB1,296.6 million from Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park.
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Completed Properties for Sale

Completed properties for sale increased from RMB832.3 million as at 31
December 2017 to RMB933.7 million as at 31 December 2018, primarily due to
the fact that construction of a property for sale was completed in the current
period.

Investment Properties
Investment properties decreased from RMB1,175.0 million as at 31 December
2017 to RMB953.7 million as at 31 December 2018, primarily due to
reclassification of completed investment properties of RMB225.1 million to
property, plant and equipment.

Advance from Customers for Properties Developed for
Sale and Rental Business

Advance from customers for properties developed for sale and rental
business decreased from RMB1,025.3 million as at 31 December 2017 to
RMB21.8 million as at 31 December 2018, primarily due to the fact that
construction of a property for sale was completed and delivered in the
current period and the advance from customers for properties developed for
sale was reclassified to contract liabilities.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities were RMB169.5 million as at 31 December 2018, which
were mainly the advances received for sales of property and deferred
income.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-bank financial institutions
which granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. As at 31 December 2018, such mortgage loan guarantees
amounted to RMB966.4 million compared to RMB1,189.3 million as at 31
December 2017. Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i)
the transfer of the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers;
or (ii) the satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the
purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-bank financial institutions to secure certain loans and
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s principal financial instruments are comprised of borrowings,
convertible bonds and notes, bank balances and cash. The main objective for
the use of these financial instruments is to maintain a continuity of funding
and flexibility at the lowest cost possible.

As at 31 December 2018, bank balances and restricted bank deposits were
RMB2,168.2 million, among which RMB1,712.3 million was denominated in
Renminbi, RMB377.1 million in USD, RMB78.6 million in HKD and RMBO0.2
million in Singapore dollar.

As at 31 December 2018, our total borrowings were RMB5,180.5 million,
among which RMB5,164.9 million was denominated in Renminbi and RMB15.6
million in HKD, with maturity terms as follows:
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H

(RMB million)
(AR®EER)
Within 1 year —FR 1,477.7
110 2 years —FEMF 1,540.6
210 5 years MEZREF 2,131.8
Over 5 years AFLAE 30.4

Among the RMB5,180.5 million borrowings, RMB2,359.3 million was borrowed
at a floating rate, whereas RMB2,821.2 million was borrowed at a fixed rate.

Convertible bonds and notes

The Group issued convertible bonds and notes amounting to US$50 million
and US$50 million respectively, both with a term of 3 years on 30 December
2015. The coupon rates of the convertible bonds and the notes are 6% and
12% respectively with interests paid semi-annually. The convertible bonds can
be converted to the shares of the Company at the prevailing conversion price
before maturity. The conversion price is subject to adjustments according to
terms of the agreement. For the year ended 31 December 2018, US$5 million
convertible bonds were converted to ordinary shares of the Company, and
the Group repaid the remaining convertible bonds of US$45 million and the
notes of US$50 million.
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The Group issued convertible bonds and notes amounting to US$50 million
and US$110 million respectively on 9 January 2018. The terms of the
convertible bonds and the notes are 3 years and 1 to 3 years respectively.
The coupon rates of the convertible bonds and the notes are 6% with
interests paid semi-annually. The convertible bonds can be converted to the
shares of the Company at the initial conversion price of HK$4.75 per share
before maturity. The conversion price is subject to adjustments according to
terms of the agreement. The prevailing conversion price as at 31 December
2018 was HK$4.43 per share.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio (total liabilities to total
assets) was 65.0%. The Group will continue to adopt more conservative
financial policies and control its gearing ratio at the industry average level.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group's business is principally denominated in Renminbi. Apart from
certain cash, bank deposits, amounts due from/to related parties, bank and
other borrowings and convertible bonds and notes which are denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group is not subject to any significant risk from
fluctuations in exchange rates. No currency hedging arrangement had been
made by the Group during the year. The Group will closely monitor and
manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group entered into equity transfer agreements with independent third
parties in respect of the disposal of the entire equity of two wholly-owned
subsidiaries at a total consideration of RMB51.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Group has recognised a gain of RMB3.0 million through
profit and loss.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 1,148 employees (31
December 2017: 1,085 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
provides various training courses to enhance the employees’ skills and
capabilities in all aspects.
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Business Review

Industrial Town Development

We are one of the pioneer service providers in planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns (E2mi&) in China. Our primary
business focus, being industrial town development business, significantly
differentiates us from a traditional property developer. When we commenced
development of Longhe Park, our first industrial town project, in 2005,
there were very few market players in the PRC offering a similar range of
services, and industrial towns only became a development model to drive
China’s urbanization process in the recent decade. We currently co-operate
with certain local governments in Hebei and Hubei provinces in relation to
development of ten industrial town projects. As one of the pilot models to
drive China's urbanization process, an industrial town typically hosts a cluster
of enterprises with a selected common industry theme, together with relevant
supporting facilities such as logistics, residential and commercial properties,
creating a fully integrated working and living community for its residents. In
addition to our industrial town development business, we develop and invest
in residential, commercial and industrial properties in both our industrial
town projects and other areas in Hebei province, which accounted for only
a portion of our total revenue. As a key part of our industrial town business,
we (i) plan and design industrial towns and position industrial towns with
selected industry themes, (i) convert land planned for development into land
suitable for sale by the local governments in accordance with our cooperation
agreements, (iii) promote the sale of such land to attract target customers to
set up businesses in our industrial town projects, and (iv) provide follow-up
management and operation services to enterprise customers in our industrial
towns.

With the expansion and diversification of the business of the Company, we
currently provide planning, development and/or operation services in ten
different-themed industrial town projects, consisting of: (i) Longhe Park; (ii)
Longhe Resort; (i) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, (iv) Yongging
VAST Industrial Town Park, all of which are located in Langfang City, Hebei
province; (v) VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park; (vi) Zhangjiakou
City Modern Industrial Park, both of which are located in Zhangjiakou City,
Hebei province; (vii) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park; (viii)
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park, both of which are located
in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei province; (ix) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park in Ezhou
City, Hubei province; and (x) Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone in Wuhan City, Hubei province.
After over 10 years of development, Longhe Park is progressing towards its
maturity in a fast development stage. The remaining nine projects are in the
early stage of planning and development. However, with the improvement
and betterment of the terms of cooperation agreements signed between
the Company and local governments, some of our cooperation agreements
enable us to record revenue in the early stage of development, thus providing
support for developing project on a rolling basis.

)

EEXETERERE

BMRPREATELENERE  FHERELRS
HEFPMHEITEZ— BRI EFEUETE
EWMEME RN ERMERER - RAN
2005F MM B MME —HEXMHEER
AR - IR E RIS EE 2 MR EER
L BEEMEERITFAHKARERBME
L#ERMREERERN - BB ERHEEZETHEE
B8R g BB ROt & B T T BT & 1E -
1EREB R EBBEERNATERZ —  EE
TE—RABEERSE ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%?%f
B AEREEFAKH CBREYR  EE
Zi?ﬁ%%%ﬂ§é9§$ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁbf i '?%E§E€$§ff‘—1liﬂ
ERATZETHENIRE  BRER B - RE
EHEMBEEBIN  ROMHREXTEEE AR
bR HMRAERINEFE  BEREEY
¥ MAEBREELRMBEEN—B5 < 1ER
EEMEEBHEZBY - BMORBIKRR +?
EMHEARETNEX TR ENEXTHE -
BEEMOEERZ  BREFE L HEAEE
Fi 7T AT AR b, - () HE R R i,
ol B ERPERMMEXTEEB HRER
RiVARFBHEETERNCERFPRETERE
ERERRSE -

BEE N RIMEBEREZ TCER - RMBARE
RS R REERSE T TETEEED
EXWMEIEE - B - A b8 BT R()
BN =R ¢ (DB PSR E REM ¢ (i) ES
RHEE (VB RFEXTHEERE ﬁ%ﬂ
FTERKAMHVRRAmHREAREXER
RROMRREXRRE ; 4%JﬁéE%Hﬁm
(ViVERITRAMEEEMEER ; (Vi)AREE
WA EETHERE (A1 E SN TR
Zr P E B AL AL R T B (O R E 3%
RBMERGA TR - UREI0FHER - B8
T = T [ IF B PR B 2 O WU B BR © ELBR LR
HARNAEIRFAEVE - BREEQEEZMT
BN #ZNEEHRGEREONR REL - &M
BE D B & VR BT O A B ) HR A8 3R W A ST 5 )
BIEANRBER -

Annual Report 2018 43§



anagemen nalysis
BEENWR DN

The following map shows the locations of the cities where our industrial town LA T 3t B FE R R P 0 2 2 T 8 18 B P73 i B 16L
projects situated. B

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration
and Development
EEBRERRE

OYangtze River Delta Economic Zone
BIIERE
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Langfang City, Hebei Province
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Geographical Advantage BAER

e Praised as “the Pearl of the Corridor between Beijing and Tianjin”,
Langfang is situated in the Bohai Coastal Metropolises, one of the major
economic growth regions in China

- Located in the central east of Hebei Province, with Beijing, the capital,
"lying in the north and Tianjin in the east”.

— Eight expressways, five major railway lines as well as eleven national
and provincial highways crossing this area.

— Construction work of the Second Beijing Capital International Airport
was approved on 16 December 2014 which will be completed in 2019.
As an ancillary facility, airport express railway will commence operation
synchronously by then.

e Driven by the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, Langfang is well positioned to seize opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing

— As a result of the significant increase in the lands and properties price in
Beijing, population and certain industries have migrated to surrounding
areas.

— The coordination development in the region requires the integration
planning and construction in respect of transportation, public service
and environmental protection.

— The strategic location of Langfang enables itself to capture opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing. Coupled with the
integration development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Langfang is expected
to further its economic growth, land appreciation and property price
increase.
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Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province
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Geographical Advantage EVEZ
e Located in the transport hubs of Beijing, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia, e EROMAIAILR ~ 5Tk« (U - RS HNE
Zhangjiakou is the intersection of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Metropolises and EMRBEMAMT  RRFEERTEMES
Hebei-Shanxi-Inner Mongolia Metropolises. ST BRI ES -

e Thanks to the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and BRI 2EGRRR & —BERERE - 7R
Development Plan”, the Beijing-zZhangjiakou high-speed railway will =EHE IR R AERR ORI ©
accelerate growth from Beijing to Zhangjiakou.

e The joint host of Zhangjiakou and Beijing for 2022 Winter Olympics will o IR OBt T A BYONERETHIES -
bring new development opportunities. HET T B R o
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Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province
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Geographical Advantage ENES
« Shijiazhuang City is the capital of Hebei Province and one of the important ¢ AXREMETILEE S - LR R K EMES
and major cities in Beijing and Tianjin region, as well as the political, ZHHRLETZ— AL EMECE - O -
economic, technological, financial, cultural and information center of Bt &8 UEMEEFR L - SR
Hebei Province. Shijiazhuang City is a city where the implementation of its HEE eS8 R R A & B SN R T o

coastal open-door policy and open financial market was approved by the
State Council.

e Shijiazhuang is the transport hub of the nation-wide rail transport in which ¢ AFREE2HEHRERNE 2EMA - 7 &

four railways lines, namely Beijing-Guangzhou, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, AKX AfE - HEROGHEBEIERL -
Shijiazhuang- Dezhou and Shuo Huang, converges. Expressways such A AKX AE - AXSRABEEAR
as Beijing-Shijiazhuang, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, Huanghua-Shijiazhuang, HT AR SR - AR BB R B IREE 6,400
Shijiazhuang-Linzhang intersects at Shijiazhuang City with an aggregate RE -

mileage of highway of over 6,400 kilometers.

e Shijiazhuang clearly puts forward to develop into the second major city in ~  AREABEREITEKR AR ZESEZHE P

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area and the economic center of the southern region. DT AE S EESLER L - BOAXBRZE
It strives to become a new economic growth pole of the Beijing-Tianjin- HE RIS ELRIE o
Hebei region.

Annual Report 2018 %
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Ezhou City, Hubei Province
L& SN

Jﬁﬁﬁ %E Wuxue
Xlanmng Huangshi
thsEu Honght© Chibi ‘©\
’ AW
A
Geographical Advantage EER

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBER

Ezhou City is located in the eastern part of Hubei Province and the south
bank at the mid-stream of Yangtze River. Neighbouring with Wuhan in the
west, Ezhou City is the core city of the Wuhan Metropolises, the major city
of the Edong Cities, the regional logistic center and the transport hub.

Ezhou City is an important node of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.
As the new Reform and Opening of the PRC transits to the development
strategy of implementation of opening of new regions, the Yangtze River
Delta Economic Zone, Ezhou City can leverage on the Golden waterway to
promote the development of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
thus creating a new Chinese economic support belt.

The construction of Hubei Province made Wuhan as the center and linked
other cities like Ezhou, Huangshi, Huanggang in a radial intercity transport
network. The fastest train from Wuhan Station to Ezhou Station only takes
22 minutes.

The Shun Feng airport locating in Ezhou specializes in high-end express
delivery on an all-cargo basis. The airport will become the fourth in the
world and the first in Asia cargo airport distributing center, which is only
20 kilometers from the park.

Bl R ZREE A E AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

o SEMNTHAIRA AL B REB -

Huanggang

RiIifmeE - @

HEVE - 2 EE BT B A AR T AN S8 SR T
& S R AR D AR AR A o

BRI

L4 %ﬂ‘\‘lﬁ%%ﬁliﬁ/ﬁﬁt
EEEAPRIF — RN ERMEBA B RN
R A P B BRRE - IRIE R S KEHBRIT

ROP IR

o MibEER

B2 RIK

HETTHT stk B T S 4 o

RARVERB L EBSMN - E
f - FESEWTH RS IR R BN - BE
ShE SPIN LN B R R E TR 2253 8 -

. JHE@% HIENESIM - &

RZ

méﬁE

EFARSHRENE

RSB ARIREN - TME
SHP L

PEREE R {E20NE -
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Wuhan City, Hubei Province
LB ED

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBESR

&

Huanggang

(O 5

Zhijiang

RE =0 Wuxue
;éﬁéar? L@ £ Xvanmng Huangshi § @\
) AW 7
Geographical Advantage EBEZ
e Wuhan is located in the middle of China and is the mega city at the mid- o FUEMEHEFEL - RRITHHFRFARBT -
stream of Yangtze River, the capital of Hubei Province, an important MitEmEE  PREZMIE - BIHEM
industrial, scientific and educational base, as well as a comprehensive AR BIRAL -

transportation hub in China.

e Pursuant to the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone strategy, Wuhan is o RITAEFEIRG - FUE R A AR O R M
included as a core development city. It shall play the role of radiation for m e %’”‘Tﬁﬁﬁxlqﬂ/ﬁkﬁﬁﬁm%%ﬂ‘%ibf’ﬁﬁ '
cities at mid-stream of Yangtze River and establish itself as the growth ITERTEEBR L RSR
pole at mid-stream of Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.

e Wuhan is the center of China’s high-speed railway with only five hours ¢ BUERHESREEAFL - FLFHEIL

of high-speed train ride to cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging, BB R BEEHWHEER
Shenzhen and Hong Kong. As an aviation hub in the middle of China, NEELE  c RESFEPIBMEES - #E
Wuhan owns 40 overseas direct routes and is the only city in central China MBRINEEME  RERMER—TTEM
with direct routes to four continents. UM BT

Annual Report 2018 %
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The following table sets forth our project status, industry themes, scope
of services and fee arrangement for each industrial town project as of 31

December 2018.

Industrial town

TREHIHMEEXTHEEAEREZE20185F12A
BMEMIN  EXTRE  RBEBENBERLREE -

project® Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEAO EETE R 7% &5 E ERTH iR
Langfang,
Hebei province
L& B
(I)  Longhe Park ¢ Information e Planning and design, e Calculated with e Progressing towards
) s technology, advanced industry positioning, reference to a certain an active development
manufacturing, land preparation, percentage of land stage, and contributed

Planned site area: modern services and infrastructure sale proceeds and to our income during
FREE TS - property development construction, taxes paid by resident the year

o BRI - s marketing and follow- enterprises o IERRNERIR B B
28.0 million sq.m. B R up services to manage e }uitﬂzﬁugﬁﬁ’a FOEH KR WEAFEREG
28088 FAK and operate the BOHLERERSEY  WAEE

() Longhe Resort,
Langfang

() EREhEEA E KR E
REH

Planned site area:
RERHETE -

9.5 million sg.m.
9.5 BT K

PEEE

e \acation home and o
facilities, business
headquarters and
culture business
subject to finalization

o ERERBZIE - EELL
BRXUEB(FEE)

project

HE - REt - EBEETE

fir - iﬂﬂ%ii!é - ERER
MBIERR  TIHTTIHN K
ﬁﬁ&%&%ﬁi BHEE
AR

Planning and design, e
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,
marketing and follow-
up services to manage
and operate the

project

A R EETE
fir « iiﬁﬁ‘i@ - B
MR ~ TIHTTHUAK

E‘@&i‘“%ﬁﬁ B 1%
AR

EEMEZEE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

METIRATE

Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises
B RS RIEED
B REREES
MEFIESTE

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

=% S E=SoEwalso)i)
# o KRBT EER
AR ER
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Industrial town
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project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEAO EXTE BR 7% &5 & BERTH B
(I Guangyang e Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ A portion of the net ¢ Binding agreement
Technology o 3HE|h industry positioning, land sale proceeds signed; land
Regeneration Park@ land preparation, representing the preparation and
() EEREEEER infrastructure sum of our actual infrastructure
construction, investment amount construction not yet
Planned site area: marketing and follow- with a pre-agreed commenced
B2 (E I ERE Up services to manage  return and a portion o BETTRAARNN
and operate the of the remaining net & KRB EBIER
15.0 million sg.m. project land sale proceeds AR EER
1508 8F K o A /et EXETE in accordance with

(IV) Yongging VAST
Industrial Town Park

(V) K BERREHTHA
£

Planned site area:
REMEHEE

14.0 million sg.m.
1408 &F 7K

o |ntelligent equipment

manufacturing, new

energy, new material

industry
o BERERE -
EEER « FTMRIE S

i iiﬁﬁkﬁ CERR
HEEERR « TIGTTIHA
E“IE&Z‘“%IEH B &%
AR

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

RE R EETE
fi7 « THoEEE - HfR
R R TS TiH

our equity interest in
the relevant project
company
T RS R F R
B—H5 - mAEREFIE
ERMOEREZERIE
(BiELME 2 EH) -
AR ERD 82 T8 L3
B TIRERE (R
MREEER QR 2R’
RS E) BviaRn

e Commission services

income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park
ZRERBWA - ZEE
13 & B (218 & 42 R
—ELLHEE

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

BRI AHR IO

P ARFR T EEIE
% MR iR

Annual Report 2018 43§
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEA" EXTE B 7% & BRARH BiR
Zhangjiakou,

Hebei province

MEERFRA™

(V) VAST Zhangjiakou
City New Industrial
Park

V) RROMTHRERE

ESE

Planned site area:
RENMGHEE -

1.6 million sg.m.
1.6BEFHAK

(VI) Zhangjiakou City
Modern Industrial
Park

V) RRATRAREEE

=)
(o]

Planned site area:
RENEHETE

17.3 million sg.m.
17.388F K

PEEE

o Under planning
o REH

e Service equipment
manufacturing industry
and medical service

industry

o RBREREEXRE

BR %

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing
RE - Rt EET

i~ T EETE - R

HoR R AR 45T 8

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

o RE T EXTE

i~ T EETE - EER

HeRRRIA R TT51 T34

EEMEZEE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Both one-off income
and recurring income,
which is calculated
based on a percentage
of the fixed return and
part from ancillary
areas of operating

land premium, and

the percentage of tax
paid by the resident
enterprises of the park
—IR MU BRAS R U
AW AF - REE B &
[RESd i S A
FHAAD L RARR
EHWBIER DA E

Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park
ZREBRBEA - REE
[l & B[ 18 & BT
—ELhIEtE

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

BRI AR
# o KRR EER
AR ER

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced
BEFTANRIOH
& ARBIHEELR
B eER
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Industrial town
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project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEBEA" EXTE B 7% 3 &l BRRH B
Shijiazhuang,

Hebei province

B ARED

(V1) Shijiazhuang General
Aviation Industrial
Town Park

Vi) AEREBAMEES
miEER

Planned site area:
REMGHEE -

20.0 million sg.m.
200B88FHK

(VI Shijiazhuang
Gaocheng VAST
Industrial Town Park

VI AR SR R RESE
AR =

Planned site area:
RENGHETE -

27.0 million sg.m.
27088 K

e General aviation
industry, modern
services and property
development

o BMAMZTERE  HAR
BRYERE

¢ Healthcare industry,
eldercare industry and
tourism

o BREX BEEXER
g

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

RE S RE EETE
fir « THb IR - ERERR
iR K T35 1T i

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

Hal - Rt EXTE
I ~ LR - R
MR T35 1T 8

Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on

a certain proportion

of a fixed return and

the aggregate cost
incurred in the park
ZIERBWA - ZEE
Bl &% EEAEEKAR o
BEOH—FLLAEE

Commission services
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment

in the park

ZIERBUWA - ZEE
Bl REEIEELTEN o
—ELLHIEE

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction
commenced, and
contributed to our
income during the year
EETTENRNHR
& BRI EER
EREReER - WER
FEREBAER

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction has
commenced, and
contributed to our
income during the year
EETENRNHR
& BRI EER
ERER R - WK
FEREBAER

Annual Report 2018 43§
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmREAO EETE B 7% &5 E BERTH iR
Ezhou,

Hubei province

A& ST

(IX) VAST Ezhou Industrial e Intelligent
Park manufacturing,
(X) ZERSMEXE

Planned site area: industries
BEEH®EE : o

BIMS IR E S
4.3 million sg.m.

A3BEFHK

Wuhan,
Hubei Province
B EER

(X) Wuhan Development e General aviation

electronic information
and strategic emerging

BReRE  ETES

¢ Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

o RE Rt EET
i ~ EHERTE - EEG
HE3ERR K 51T 88

e Planning and design,

e Commission services

Binding agreement

income, which is signed; land
calculated based on a preparation and
certain proportion of infrastructure

a fixed return and the construction

aggregate investment
in the park

o THERBENA - REE

commenced, and
contributed to our
income during the year

ER R ERIEELIEN o DEJANRNNG
—ELBIFTE EER ) ol i S PN
AR ER - WER

e Commission services

FERBRAER

Binding agreement

income, which is signed; land
calculated based on a preparation and
certain proportion of infrastructure

a fixed return and the construction

aggregate investment

commenced, and

Zone General industry industry positioning,
Aviation Industry e BAMZEX land preparation,
Comprehensive infrastructure
Demonstration Zone construction and
(X) BUERZEBEMESE marketing
A TER o HE| - BE EXETE
fir ~ £ ERTE - EAEG
Planned site area: MERE R R T I5TT
FRENEHEE
5.2 million sg.m.
5288 AR

Notes:

(1) Our Longhe Park, Longhe Resort, Yongging VAST Industrial Town Park, VAST
Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park, Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park,
Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, Shijiazhuang Gaocheng
VAST Industrial Town Park and VAST Ezhou Industrial Park are developed by our
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation Industry
Comprehensive Demonstration Zone is developed by our controlling subsidiary.

(2)  We entered into a co-operation agreement with the local government for the

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park on 27 April 2011.
As Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park is in close vicinity to the airport
currently under construction in the conjunction area of Beijing and Guangyang
District of Langfang (the “Second Beijing Capital International Airport”), the
development plan of the surrounding area of the Second Beijing Capital
International Airport, including Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, is
under review by the local government. As such government planning has not
been released, we have not commenced development of Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park as of 31 December 2018. The industry positioning and our
scope of services for Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park are subject to
changes.

in the park contributed to our
o ZEMRBUA - #EFE  income during the year
O REEIGELTEN o BEITEEHNRNAW
—ELBIFTE & EHBIHERER
EMREER - WER
FERFBAEE
B & -

™M

@

BN SR - BOETEEREERE
o KERREXETRERE - RRATHEER
EEE  RRAMBRAREXEE - AZGRM
ZEXTHER ARURREZEXTHRER
AR EFSINEXEREHRFANZERBE AT
g RERBRBMERKRA TERNFMEAR
IR BARLE -

BPIR201MF4 /27 A 8B F BT LA 1EH
2 FAEERRHEREE - BREBEEREE
AR — (@RI A L R ERER I Th RS [ 2 MR R E &
SEFEEREE ([ R EEE =5 ]) - Fitdt
REBE_WS AR E(BIEEBREIEE)
R EIE Rty BUT#ETTRE - ANEE
BT RENDAREM - FAMR20185F 124318
KARESGREEBCENFE - BEBRBRMEE
WEZE TN RRIGHENAFFER
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)

Longhe Park (n
After years of development, an accumulated land of 5,968,857 sg.m.
(accounted for 30.6% of saleable land) was sold by the local government

of Longhe Park. For the year ended 31 December 2018, fee income
derived from our development of industrial town projects at Longhe

Park was RMB1,873.5 million. The table below sets forth selective
information about the classification of land, planned site area and site

area sold of Longhe Park as of 31 December 2018.

29

e E
KBZFNERE BT BRFZE
STHIE 15,968,857 F 5 oK (5 0] g £ it
30.6%) ° ELZE20185E 12 831 HILEE - &
EAEMENREEEMHBEBEENGE
BURABARE8735BET - TRHTI
MR2018F 12 A3 A A S E B LD
oAb EERE HEE T EENE

Planned site
Classification x| area® Site area sold®@ Saleable land unsold
HEGH
g B HEAEE? REFEWITHELT
sq.m. sq.m. % sg.m. %
K K % T K %
Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and o FEREM
commercial area HER 10,288,300 2,469,954 24.0 7,818,346 76.0
e |ndustrial area o EXERE 9,205,500 3,498,903 38.0 5,706,597 62.0
Subtotal of saleable land ~ A] 3 + b/ 5t 19,493,800 5,968,857 30.6 13,524,943 69.4
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERK 4,431,300 N/ATEA NATEA NATER NATEA
e Greenery space o KLz 4,074,900 NATEA NATEA NATEA NATEA
Subtotal of non-saleable  FEH:E+ 1
land /Net 8,506,200 N/ANEAE NATEA NATBEA NATEA
Total et 28,000,000 5,968,857 N/A FEA 13,524,943 N/A FHEA

Annual Report 2018 %
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Notes:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local
government.

(2)  Percentages are calculated as the site area sold by the local governments
through public auction, tender or listing for sale process as a portion of the
total saleable site area under the same land classification.

The table below sets forth details regarding land sold by the local
government, the relevant average selling price, land premium and a
breakdown of our fee income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Land sold  ASP sold
by local by local Land
government government premium

BABE AR
HENLE TOHEE thibEe
sg.m. RMB/sg.m. RMB'000
ARETL/
FrR EHkK ARETFT

it

(1) REMAMETEDERER R AT L&
B EIMESE °

() BB ABITEABARMAE - BEX
0 L SRR T S (TR E B e T
AT (AR — L) B — 55
st -

TREFINEE2018FE12A31H IEFEE M
EFT I iB ey L 515 - FERA IS B (E -
T B RS A R BAPIE B AU A RIRB AR ©

Our fee income/ our fee
percentage of income
land premium (after

(before intra-group Intra-group intra-group
eliminations) eliminations eliminations)

BANERRA BMmWER

EriEe £B BA(&®

(RER LA RIS AR

RMB'000 % RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT % ARBTT ARETL

Year ended HE2018F

31 December 2018 12A3181E
Residential and FEREELM

commercial land 178,308 13,959 2,489,000 1,498,804 60.2 (64,596) 1,434,208
Industrial land T4 226,534 527 119,412 87,408 732 - 87,408
Total wmt 404,842 6,443 2,608,412 1,586,212 60.8 (64,596) 1,521,616

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

() Longhe Resort

The table below sets forth selective information about the classification
of land and planned site area of Longhe Resort as of 31 December 2018.

() BERRESM R 35Uk B E R E it
TREFIF 2018412 A31 B BRI 8857 79 7%
KEEREME @B R REE

TEMENEE R -
Classification o8 Planned site area™
REEHERE
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 4,525,200
e |ndustrial area o R 1,162,000
Subtotal of saleable land A s N et 5,687,200
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o IEHPK 563,700
o Greenery space o Hx b2 3,249,100
Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl A 3,812,800
Total et 9,500,000
Note: ffsT -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local

government.

(M

REBNE IR T RN EA B 75 AT A

HREIMETE °
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() Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park () EEREECE

During the year 2018, we continued our communication with people’s E2018F R + BB T A RIS &
government of Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District B ESERARBNS®ERSRREL
of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park. BHEBRZEBER HZE2018F128
As of 31 December 2018, the industrial positioning and service scope 31H - BRI R B A S ISR E MR B
of the park were still subject to adjustment as the detailed planning o ZEERNEEXTNLRRGSEERDARF
for the second Beijing Capital Airport has not been released, thus no E o mARFBEERAER o ARBEER
development work had been carried out in respect of the park. The BHm ARBF LB ™ERSRARBF
Company will continue to communicate with people’s government of EHREBREIIMEEEBREER - FH
Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District of Langfang BIREE T b BT e ELAR R pE R o

in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park and strive
to commence land consolidation and facility construction as soon as

possible.
(IV) Yongqing VAST Industial Town Park (V) KERREETHER
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREFN2018F12A3NB XK ELEREE
planned site area of Yongaqing VAST Industrial Town Park as at 31 MEER ARty B RAFEEHEED
December 2018. EmIE AR -
Classification Wik | Planned site area®
BB EED
sg.m.
7K
Saleable HHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FERMEHER 3,660,100
e Industrial area o EXR 3,533,900
Subtotal of saleable land AT 3B £ 4/ N5 7,194,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERK 2,266,400
e Greenery space o 47{bz=Ef 4,299,000
e Supporting facilities o BEENERIE 250,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH R /N5t 6,816,200
Total st 14,010,200
Note: B -
(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) BEUEEEDSDERBEMEX TEBEMT
government by us for approval. ERATAVER LRI ©

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(V) VAST zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park (V) RXOTHEEREXE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREHIN2018F 12831 HER ATMHE

planned site area of VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park as at 31 RREEXEREEBE I MY B MREGMEE

December 2018. HIEREE o

Classification 2% Planned site area®
REUEHEFD

sq.m.

Saleable AHE

e Residential and commercial area o TEERHERE 360,832

e |ndustrial area o R 1,130,865

Subtotal of saleable land Al /N 1,491,697

Non-saleable FEHE

* Roads o JHEE 82,303

Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH B/ NET 82,303

Total st 1,574,000

Note: (TR

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) HREEWEBDHERBMEXTHEBUM S

government by us for approval. AT AVER LR IRE -

Annual Report 2018 %



34

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEETNWEDN

(V1) zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park (V) REROMTHRREXEE

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and TREHIN2018F 12431 HER A TMEA

planned site area of Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park as at 31 EXEERARE I MY BANBEEREED

December 2018. R ER o

Classification x| Planned site area®
REUE B EFD

sg.m.

Saleable ATHE

e Residential and commercial area s TERRHERE 3,685,200

o Industrial area o E¥E 1,266,900

Subtotal of saleable land A E AN at 4,952,100

Non-saleable FHHE

* Roads o JHEK 2,111,600

o Greenery space o Hx(b 22 1,041,700

e Agriculture, regional traffic municipal o B¥ . BRIFBETH 9,082,300

o Supporting facilities o EHBNRIE 108,300

Subtotal of non-saleable land E Sk b 12,343,900

Total st 17,296,000

Note: B & -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) REMEHEBHERRME2ZTFTEBHS

government by us for approval. AT AVER LA IR ©

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(Vi) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park
as at 31 December 2018.

(VI)EXRHBEAMEZEERTHER
TRMFIN2018612 831 B AREEBH
wEETEEEGR LS ERRRE
ETRM AR AR o

Classification g1 Planned site area™
FENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable HHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 5,313,000
o Industrial area o EXRE 6,347,000
Subtotal of saleable land A s et 11,660,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o IEHPK 3,668,900
e Greenery space o 4Lz 2,716,200
e Supporting facilities o SENRIE 1,954,900
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHE /AT 8,340,000
Total @st 20,000,000
Note: Bi5E -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the Group
mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services. As at
31 December 2018, the accumulated area of land preparation started
in the Park was approximately 1,650,000 sg.m. During the year, the
Group recognised income arising from land preparation and investment
services of RMB453.1 million (calculated using the cost plus method).

() REEBEBESEREMZ2XTERELS
B AR LA R B -

AEBEARFRAMCEEMHERE
DRETHEIBIRERS - R2018%F 124
318 - ZERE/MEM LR RFTEE
#9/1,650,000F 75K o R - REEER
T b EEIR IR B RIS A IR A R #4531
BETARAMBCETE)

Annual Report 2018 %
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(v shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park as

at 31 December 2018.

(Vi) EREBEERREFTEEE

TEREIN2018F12AN A ERHERHE
FEXRTEER A LD BERRE G
ERAERE AR o

Classification o8 Planned site area™
BB b EED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area e FERMHER 9,497,900
e |ndustrial area o R 4,582,900
Subtotal of saleable land A HEE /N E 14,080,800
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o EHPK 3,905,900
e Greenery space o GR{L 2 2,850,000
e Supporting facilities o BRI 6,234,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land s/ NEt 12,990,700
Total Wt 27,071,500
Note: Bz -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

For Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, the Group
mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services. As at 31
December 2018, the accumulated area of land preparation started in
the Park was approximately 700,000 sg.m. During the year, the Group
recognised income arising from land preparation and investment
services of RMB157.7 million (calculated using the cost plus method).

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(1) REEWEBHDERRMEXTEBLT
TR AV L RO AR B -

AEBEARFERAFEETHBERE T
U F T BRI E RS o R 20185124
38 ZEREMEMN L REE
#1/700,000F 753K - £ - AEBERER T
R EREELENRAARE1S778
BT AR MBCSERTE) -
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(IX) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Ezhou Industrial Park as at 31 December
2018.

(IX) ZRBMNEXE
TREHIN2018F 12 A3 B EH=PMEZE
BEBLIOENRE(GEENEGREE
o

Classification o8 Planned site area™
REEHERE
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNEER 749,300
e |ndustrial area o R 2,228,600
Subtotal of saleable land A s N et 2,977,900
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o IEHPK 630,700
o Greenery space o Hx b2 502,600
e \Water space o ki At 200,700
Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl F 1,334,000
Total st 4,311,900
Note: f3E -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, the Group mainly engaged in land
preparation and investment services. As at 31 December 2018,
the accumulated area of land preparation started in the Park was
approximately 500,000 sg.m. During the year, the Group recognised
income arising from land preparation and investment services of
RMB224.8 million (calculated using the cost plus method).

() REEBEBESEREMZ2XTERELS
B AR LA R B -

AEBECERBMNEXBREZRE L HHE
B RIEEIRT - R2018F12A318 © %A
[& B B ED Y 1 4 5 8% 2 5 #5494 500,000
FHK FR - ALEERLHEE R
ERRIEEERRAARE224 85 &t ( M
BRANINAERTE) ©
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(X) Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation ((X) REHREEBMEXSRSTEERE
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land TRESIMN2018F 12 A31 B R EF R R
and planned site area of Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation MEEFA RS BAEB LD LBRENS
Industry Comprehensive Demonstration Zone as at 31 December 2018. HEEREEE R -
Classification Pk Planned site area®
MBS EED
sg.m.
FHK
Saleable i &
e Residential and commercial area s FERBNMEER 909,700
e |ndustrial area o EHR 3,401,000
Subtotal of saleable land AT R M Ve 4,310,700
Non-saleable B
e Roads o EER 628,500
e Greenery space o #R{bZE M 201,800
e \Water space o JK I8 F b 47,300
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHI R b/ NEE 877,600
Total st 5,188,300
Note: BsE -
(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local (1) BEEHEBIERRMASSTEELT
government by us for approval. BFAEERL R E
For Wuhan Development Zone General Aviation Industry REBEREHERAMELEATEE
Comprehensive Demonstration Zone, the Group mainly engaged in ITEHREELERERE - £ NEERE
industrial development service. During the year, the Group recognised AR RIS A U AA R AE
income arising from industrial development service of RMB92.4 million, HTRE R E WIS E B —EH It E) o

calculated with reference to a certain proportion to the amount of
investment in park establishment.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Property Development MEER

As of 31 December 2018, we had 25 projects at various stages of 2018128318  HIE G 25EE N T EH
development, mainly concentrating on development of residential,  ZX[XERMIER @ T EEHMRTE %  EX
commercial and industrial projects with a wide range of products including  18H @ ERERSIEEE AF - 5IZE - TER
residence, apartment, villa, retail stores and office buildings. We had  $#RIFARE « R2018E12A31H » HIF=E -
residential, commercial and industrial land reserves of gross floor area of FEEMEXYMEM NI E L HBEZERREL
1,593,250 sg.m. remain unsold as at 31 December 2018. 1,593,250 75K o

We classify our projects into three categories according to the stages of  FIRIEMAZEEEREEE 5 A=1EE5 :

development:

. Completed properties. Completed properties represent properties °

for which we have received the certified construction completion
report from the relevant government construction authorities. As of
31 December 2018, our completed properties consisted of Mingren
Garden, Foxconn City Phase |, Foxconn City Phase I, Hongtai
Meishuguan Phase |, Hongtai Meishuguan Phase I, Yihejiayuan Block
A, Hongtai Longdi Phase |, Hongtai Longdi Phase Il, Chuangye Plaza
Phase Il, Longhe Park — Talent Home, Yishujia, Yulong Bay Phase | and
Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase I.

. Properties under development. Properties under development represent °

properties for which we have received the requisite construction work
commencement permit with respect to all or a part of our projects
before completion of the entire projects. As of 31 December 2018,
our properties under development consisted of Electronic Information
Industrial Park Phase I, Foxconn Technology Complex (A11), Tanghai
Project (Plot 3 Yuehu Bay) and Hubei Changjiang zhihui Port Innovation
Startup Base.

. Properties planned for future development. Properties planned for °

future development represent (i) properties for which we have received
the relevant land use rights certificates but have not yet received
the requisite construction work commencement permit; and (ii)
properties for which we are in the process of obtaining land use rights
certificates for our projects. As of 31 December 2018, our properties
planned for future development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Il
Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase Il, Hongtai Commerce
Plaza, Qingnianhui, Yulong Bay Phase I, Yulong Bay Phase Ill, Huahang
Apartment and Tanghai Project (Plot 1 and Plot 2), Ezhou Zhanyao
Project, Ezhou Huineng Project, Wuhan Hangfuju Technology Project
and Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project.

B TYE - R TYWERWEI A BB
TR#EASENRTIRBIREOWE - KB
2018F 12 A31H BB R IMESR
BEANE  BLEE—8 - BLEH-
Hi - RIEERIE - ARENE 8
BEAELAR - REES—H - ZREL

BIZERE=—H EUafiEATR
CBRBIR - HEE-HRETEEEXE
E—Hj -

ERBYE - BRDYEE BAWIIEE
W TR 2RI E B WEIFTH &2
IR ENE - 5A2018¢12ﬂ31
B BMOZEERTVERESTELESE
BE—8 - ErEREEAN)  ESEEG
ﬁiiﬂmxﬁ)ﬂ/“)&/ﬂitﬁ/l*” /%E'J*ﬁﬁliﬁ
Hh o

RENWERRF Y - RENERRFE
E@%%%(i) REIB R L iR - EX

WRIFEREETRBEIHFAIENME &
(NERESFRAMIEIE B T A EE 88
12 o R20184F 12 A318 - FAFI#R B AR 2R
FENMERREELER -8 E7EE
EXE_H - ZREEES SFE -4
BREZH - HEE=H EMLT - EE
HEB (154 - 2504) - SEINERIER - 55
MEREEE « REMBERHEEE RRE
fnslBHRIER -

Some of our projects comprise multiple-phase developments on a rolling I ETIEE BETHERENZHEEERE -
basis. One project may include different phases at various stages of FHFINBEEFAJEEREDET - BEEPNBFENE
development, i.e., completed properties, properties under development and  REHEETRZEEEEOYE -

properties planned for future development.
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The following map shows the geographical locations and key data of our

properties as at 31 December 2018.

GFA

Type kil REME

Foxconn City =t B
Completed BRI 181,000
Under construction e -
For future development ~ ARZEFIZE 118,000
Completed B®T 29,000
Under construction i =
For future development ~ RZRFIZE -
Completed BRI 351,000
Under construction e =
For future development ~ ARZRFAZE -
Completed B®T -
Under construction e =
For future development ~ ARZRFAZE 186,000

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park

EIENEEFEREXE

Completed BRI 56,000

Under construction fes = 15,000

For future development & 2RFAEE 127,000
ELTERRERAN

Completed B%T -

Under construction pizs= 18,000

For future development ~ RZRFAZE -

Longhe Park - Talent Home

FETEHE - A7 KE

Completed BRI 22,000
Under construction T =

For future development A ZRFAEE -
Yishujia ##X

Completed BRI 160,000
Under construction e =

For future development A ZRFAEE -
Yihejiayuan (Block A) EEFI#£%E (AR)

Completed B®T 85,000
Under construction e =

For future development A ZRFIEE -
Mingren Garden EANE

Completed BRI 64,000

Under construction e =

For future development ~ RZERAZE -

h

LA B R R 7020185012 A 31 B K M1 2 893t 38

UERTEHRE -

Langfang
BB
Chengde
A
( ]
Beijing @ @ Tangshan
SR E
Tianjin
RE
Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei
Region
REEME
Hubei Province
HLE
Wuhan

EE

Ezhou
BN

Bl RZEEMEEE AR A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

GFA

Type |R EEmMR
Completed B®RT 252,000
Under construction 1 =
For future development  ARRFHEE -

Qingnianhui 5 FE
Completed B®RT -
Under construction 12 =
For future development  AR3KF% 11,000

Huahang Apartment Efi A E

Completed B%T -

Under construction 12 =

For future development  AK3KF% 10,000
Completed B®RT 159,000
Under construction e =

For future development  ARZRFEE 472,000

I Tanghai Project Ei§EH

Completed BRI =

Under construction pet= S 16,000
For future development ~ R2RFZE 188,000
Completed B®RT -

Under construction 2 -

For future development ~ RZRFH%E 112,000
Completed B%T -

Under construction 1 -

For future development  AR2RFA%E 87,000
Completed B®BT -

Under construction EE 24,000
For future development  ARZRFIZE -

Wuhan Hangfuju Technology Project

REMBERENKER
Completed
Under construction
For future development

B®RT =
fe= =
AHFIE 18,000

Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project
REMBANEER

Completed B®T -
Under construction 1
For future development AR SR %

15,000
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The following table shows the saleable area remaining unsold for our LA T RIEEERMA20184E12 431 B KR FIY 249 14 7]

properties as at 31 December 2018: EHEE
The Saleable Area
Gross Floor Group's Remaining
Site Area Area Land-use Purpose  Interest Unsold®
BE £E
Project Name and Location HREBRAE EEE [EE: AR FrERE  HUEERY
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK)  (FAK) (%) (FAK)
Langfang B
Foxconn City (Phases I to ETERM(—HZE=H) 126,545 299,000  Residential and commercial 100% 150,500
39 Fukang Road, Langfang AT & FR B39, FEREE
Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il ey 8,820 29,000 Commercial 100% 23,000
39 Nanlong Road, Langfang B R REI9N G
Hongtai Longdi (Phases I and ) FRES(—5 - —H) 126,929 351,000  Residential and commercial 100% 51,000
259 South Yinhe Road, Langfang BRI B 259%: FEREE
Hongtai Commerce Plaza REEES 47486 186,000 Commercial 100% 171,000
West Chuangye Plaza, Nanlong Road, Langfang ~ Essim@ sz alEAER FSES
Electronic Information Industrial Park in ETETRETEEELE 187,815 198,000 Industrial 100% 173,000
Longhe Park (Phases I and 1) (-8 =#) E¥
89 Fukang Road, Langfang AT & FR BRI
Foxconn Technology Complex A11 EHERRIEA 9,263 18,000 Commercial 100% 17,000
East of Jianshenan Road and South of Erhao Road, BimiaEd S HRERER [EES
Longhe Park, Langfang WUR - ZHE AR
Longhe Park - Talent Home BIRHE-ATRE 12,666 22,000 Residential 100% 21,000
125 Furao Road, Langfang AT & BB 1255, i
Yishujia BER 94,829 160,000 Residential and commercial 100% 600
155 Guangyang Road, Langfang BB ERIE 1555 FEREE
Yihejiayuan (Block A) FARER (AR ) 35,430 85000  Residential and commercial 100% 3,000
300 Xichang Road, Langfang [T EE 8 3R 300%% FEREE
Mingren Garden ZADNE 29141 64,000  Residential and commercial 100% 250
76 Heping Road, Langfang BHmRTE76%: FEREE
Hongtai Meishuguan (Phases | and 1) ERERE(—H - =) 120,739 252,000 Residential and commercial 100% 22,900
28 Huaxiang Road, Development Zone, Langfang BB B 24/ 2 1 B 085 FEREE
Qingnianhui EEE 4,279 11,000 Residential and commercial 100% 9,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang EsshT B RRIE175%; FEREE
Huahang Apartment ERNE 10,557 10,000 Residential 100% 10,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang EsshT B RRIE175%; i
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The Saleable Area
Gross Floor Group's Remaining
Site Area Area Land-use Purpose  Interest Unsold®
BE 8
Project Name and Location BREBRAE EHEE ik AR FERE  HTEERY
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAkK)  (FAXK) (%) (FAX)
Chengde RE
Yulong Bay (Phase I to ll) HEE(—HE=H) 142,841 631,000 Residential and commercial 100% 481,000
Junction of Southwest of Wuwei Road and EETHE AR AN - FEREE
Siliujing Road, New District, Chengde M7 A8 2
Tangshan Bl
Tanghai Project (Plot 1t0 3) EER (1-35%) 665,935 204,000 Residential 100% 204,000
North Shore, Caofei Hu, Qi Nongchang, EUMELELES e
Caofeidian District, Tangshan LA
Ezhou M
Ezhou Zhanyao Project P ERIER 55753 112,000 Residential and commercial 100% 112,000
South of Desheng Road, East of Xingye YiRoad, S/l —KEA - FEREE
Ezhou Bk
Ezhou Huineng Project SBiNEERLIER 87,350 87,000 Industrial 100% 87,000
North of Xuejiagou, East of Xuguang Avenue, SR RERE E¥
Ezhou EREILR
Hubei Changjiang Zhihui Port Innovation M RIRES 17,39 24,000 Industrial 100% 24,000
Startup Base BIETAIERY EX
North of Yanghu Road-Central West, SHmREABRE
East of Wu Chu Road, Ezhou BRRRAERILA
Wuhan RE
Wuhan Hangfuju Technology Project REMBEREIES 17,969 18,000 Industrial 100% 18,000
South of Xingcheng Avenue, REMERRYEEERTD EX
East of Xingfu Zhong Lu, Shamao Street, BOR - B AL
Hannan District, Wuhan
Wuhan Hangyaohong Technology Project REMZAREER 14,760 15,000 Industrial 100% 15,000
South of Xingcheng Avenue, REMEREYEEERT E¥
East of Xingfu Zhong Lu, Shamao Street, BOAR - B AELE
Hannan District, Wuhan
Total fzt 1,816,503 2,776,000 1,593,250
Note: Fff5E

(1)  Remaining saleable area includes area completed but not yet sold, area under (1
construction, area for future development and area pre-sold but not yet

recognised as revenue.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

HAEMERECRTIEREERSE 2
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The following table sets forth the revenue, gross floor area (“GFA")/unit sold, — T&R#HHIEZ20185E 12831 B L FEER A S ESE
and average selling price ("ASP") for each of our revenue-generating property  WWAMERWA - DEE2EmE([2EmEl)

for the year ended 31 December 2018. HE - RFHEGE(FHEE]D -
GFA sold ASP
Residential and commercial FEREE Year ended Year ended
Project EHA Revenue 31 December 2018 31 December 2018
CEREEE THEE
EZE2018%F HZE2018%F
WA 12A31HLLEE 12A31BLEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
ARETTT Tk ARET A FRK
Foxconn City Phase II B TR
(Longhefengjing) BE A=
Residential *=E 920,381 90,790 10,137
Ccommercial [GES 11,262 710 15,862
931,643 91,500 10,182
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase | TR E N EE— A
Commercial [SES 3,824 217 17,622
3,824 217 17,622
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il IR AR — A
Residential *=E 14,765 835 17,683
14,765 835 17,683
Hongtai Longdi Phase | KRB —H
Residential = 3,600 547 6,581
Commercial [GES 3,952 221 17,882
7,552 768 9,833
Hongtai Longdi Phase II RZERe il —Hf
Residential F= 8,634 1,218 7,089
commercial [GES 10,765 497 21,660
19,399 1,715 11,311
Yulong Bay Phase | fElBE & —ER
Residential *= 1,893 247 7,664
1,893 247 7,664
Sub-total g 979,076 95,282 10,276
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GFA sold ASP
Ancillary Area WIE Year ended Year ended
Project HH Revenue 31 December 2018 31 December 2018
CEEEEE THEE
HZE20184%F BZE2018%F
WA 12A31HILEE 12B831BLLEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREFT FHK AR¥ET EFHXK
Foxconn City Phase Il (Longhefengjing) &= 4 B — Hf 13,543 9,480 1,429
Underground Chamber RS T E
Hongtai Meishuguan RIEEBETE 91 104 875
Underground Chamber
Hongtai Longdi R TE 493 512 963
Underground Chamber
Yulong Bay Phase | g — T = 635 224 2,835
Underground Chamber
Sub-total g 14,762 10,320 1,430
Unit sold ASP
Year ended Year ended
Revenue 31 December 2018 31 December 2018
cEHE FHEE
BZE2018%F BZE2018F
WA 12A31BHLEE 12A31HILEE
RMB'000 Unit RMB/unit
ARETTT 1 AR,/ {8
Hongtai Meishuguan TIRESI R T AL 7,048 86 81,953
Underground Car Park Unit
Hongtai Longdi TIRRe AR N B AL 10,585 119 88,950
Underground Car Park Unit
Yulong Bay Phase | EEEE—H 3,314 39 84,974
Underground Car Park Unit b: il NEEX V2
Sub-total Net 20,947 244 85,848
Total Bt 1,014,785
Impact of IFRS 15 B0 PR B 755 s 25 ZE A 143,312
FISRHFE
Less: Tax and surcharges A Bie RMmeE (18,284)
Total revenue after tax Fiig U 1,139,813

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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() FOXCONN CITY PHASE Il (LONGHEFENGJING) IN LONGHE PARK

EUSHEE TR —8(ETER)

Foxconn City Phase I, also known as Longhefengjing Project, is located 1,000 meters south of
the intersection of Nanlong Road and Jianshe South Road, providing property units of various
sizes to satisfy different housing demands. The Project is along the routes of Buses No. 11, 15,
16 and 33, while Jianshe South Road closely connects to Xinkai Road, Yinhe Road and Heping
Road of the downtown area. From the Project, there is a 15-minute drive to reach Wanda
Plaza, Mingzhu Commercial Building and other properties in the core business circle, and
only a 5-minute drive to Langfang High-speed Railway Station. The Project is well equipped
with nearby facilities, including Anci District Central Hospital under planning in the south, No.5
Middle School, No.14 Primary School and Anci District No.1 Kindergarten in close vicinity, and
Longhe Park First Primary School under planning in the surrounding area. As such, the Project
provides a complete range of access to medical, education, leisure and shopping facilities.

In the year of 2018, the sales income recognised (including underground) and commercial and
residential area recognised of Foxconn City Phase Il project amounted to RMB945,186,000
and 91,500 sq.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the total GFA and remaining
future saleable GFA of Foxconn City Phase Il project were 148,000 sg.m. and 25,500 sg.m.,
respectively.

BETER-HXEAETRS
HEH R EREEERER
XX AFTT1,000K - FHIZ
It mRSEERESK 11
15 + 16 & 33FE U T A R R AL
HE - RSEFEEETRE
BB - SRS - AEEREH A
Eo5oEHESERYS H
GEESZOEE - BRES
HihEFRspESRE  HE AR
RERZ  BEAREZTREP
DR EiEAS - T
ZRE—4 - REETRNE
BE - -#HE K
M- EY—EERe-

e

2018F 2 F - B ERM M
HEERBEBARBARE
945,186 F L (&H T &5 ) -
5 45 8 Y (@ 15 A 91,500 F
FK - R2018F12A318 » &
TR -—HEEEEEERER
148,000 772K + Fgp KRR A&
AT TE A25,500F 75K e
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(1) ELECTRONIC INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL PARK IN LONGHE PARK
ETEHEEFEEERE

The Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park, Langfang is a high-end office
building industrial project located in the center of the high-tech industrial cluster in Longhe
Park, Langfang. Given such location, the project provides easy access to transportation, as it
is 5 minutes away from Langfang High-speed Railway Station from which it takes 20 minutes
to reach downtown Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. The project also adjoins
Beijing-Shanghai, Beijing-Hong Kong-Macao and Beijing-Taipei Expressways. Featuring single
buildings for businesses, the Industrial Park is an integrated industrial project which serves for
business, office, exhibition, communication and training.

As at 31 December 2018, the total GFA and remaining future saleable factory GFA of
the Electronic Information Industrial Park project were 198,000 sq.m. and 173,000 sg.m.,
respectively.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

EBoHENSHREEFERESR
BRemRAEERERS
RES ST R = ¥ B = T EE 3
BEEORLOMER  BRUER
BT HER - 55 8@ EKE Y
SEE - HE200 ] HiE
R KRR TR L
ZMRE - EBR - RADR
F - HARZEPAUDEER
BRI EBEB BR RE-
Zm o BIIER - ENEA T

E¥IAA -

M2018F12A31H - EFE
REXEBAARZERNER
198,000 J5 5K » RIgAARIR A&
EEMIER173,000F 7K ©
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(1) CHUANGYE PLAZA (PHASE II) IN LONGHE PARK
ENEHfERIRARE =M

Chuangye Plaza is currently the most well-established large-scale office building in the south
of Langfang. Located at the center of Longhe Park and next to Anci Administrative Service
Center, Chuangye Plaza is a landmark of Longhe Park. With Nanlong Road on the north and
Changfu Road on the east, Chuangye Plaza provides direct access to the high-speed railway
station from which it takes 20 minutes to reach Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway.
Also close to Yinhe Road and Jianshe Road, the project enjoys a road network extended to all
directions with smooth transportation access across the south of Langfang. Inside the project,
one single floor covers an area of 60 sg.m. to 1,870 sg.m. without indoor columns, enabling
an open and practical space with sufficient access to sunshine.

As at 31 December 2018, the total GFA and remaining future saleable GFA of Chuangye Plaza
(Phase Il) project were 29,000 sg.m. and 23,000 sg.m., respectively.

47

BIZ A= 2 B AT Y7 R R A K
AREBZTE RS
FrES O - B2 RITERIRE S
DR BREEASTRNE
iR - LERERRE - REE
B BESEY  200ES
AT EZEILR - R - BRI
SRR ANZREE - R R
BAE - BEXBEGBRER -
BEmE60F 5 KE870F T
Ko ERESZE FARER
BHBAEERS

20185128311 - BIXKE
—HATA B B MR &R29,000
TR RIEBRRRA ERER
164523,000F 75K e
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(IV)HONGTAI LONGDI IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE
A4t & BR L T 2 SR RE KR

Hongtai Longdi, as a residential and commercial complex,
is located in Longhe Park, a hub in Langfang's southern
expansion. Longhe Park not only enjoys proximity to the
Capital Economic Circle, but also occupies a strategic
position of Langfang in respect of its function in the Beijing-
Tianjin region. It is also a smart eco-city characteristic of its
modernization and integration of production and municipal
functions in southern Langfang. With Nanlong Road on the
north and Yinhe Road on the west, the project is conveniently
located within two kilometers from Langfang Station of
Beijing-Shanghai High-speed Railway.

In the year of 2018, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Hongtai Longdi amounted to RMB38,029,000
and 2,483 sq.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2018,
the total GFA and remaining future saleable GFA of Hongtali
Longdi project amounted to 351,000 sg.m. and 51,000
Sq.m., respectively.

EEEBREITREERS
8 R T B Ee R
B -EIEME SR
B D AP B (B (B s e R R
& - R BT R
FEE 202 - £ ER Y MO R
B R—ERAEH  EXR
—RMEREZHM - AL
SErgEEE - TUESERONER - BERE
TR = 88 5 W A B E
W ZEEE -

20182 F » RHREMNERIEE
WA BANRESS029T T (&
TES)  HELEEEmES
2,483 75K - 2018F 12831
A RHEEEEEEEmME
£351,000F 753K -+ Flgh AR AT
EREEE A51,0005F /5 o

(V) HONGTAI MEISHUGUAN IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE
A 36 & BR Y T & R A R

A

i

-
=

Hongtai Meishuguan is a residential complex project
comprising residence, apartment, villa and garden houses
which is located in the center of Langfang Economic and
Technological Development Area, Hebei Province. Located
in northeastern Langfang, north to Oriental University
City and south to the Langfang Financial and Recreational
Center, the project enjoys a well-established transportation
network, with only 500 meters away from the Langfang
exit of Beijing-Tianjin-Tanggu Expressway and a 50-minute
drive from Beijing CBD Business Circle.

In the year of 2018, the sales income recognised (including
underground) and commercial and residential area
recognised of Hongtai Meishuguan project amounted
to RMB25,728,000 and 1,052 sg.m., respectively. As at
31 December 2018, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Hongtai Meishuguan project amounted to
252,000 sg.m. and 22,900 sg.m., respectively.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Yulong Bay project is a development project with a mixture
of residential and commercial properties in Chengde,
Hebei province. Located in the south part of Shuanggiao
District, Chengde, the project provides easy access to
transportation, as it is less than two kilometers away from
the Beijing-Chengde Expressway and only six kilometers
away from Chengde Station of Beijing-Shenyang High-
speed Railway. The project adjoins Chengde University
City with well-equipped facilities nearby and a huge
development potential for future real estate projects.

In the year of 2018, the sales income recognised
(including underground) and commercial and residential
area recognised of Yulong Bay project amounted to
RMB5,842,000 and 247 sg.m., respectively. As at 31
December 2018, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable GFA of Yulong Bay Phase | project were 159,000
sg.m. and 15,600 sg.m., respectively.
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Property Leasing

As of 31 December 2018, we had five completed investment properties,
namely, Chengxiang Building, Meishu Complex, Jinyue Building, Tianfu Center,
Phase | and Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base, and two investment
properties planned for future development, including Foxconn Technology
Complex C10 and Phase Ill of SME Entrepreneurial Base.

The following table shows the key data of our investment properties as of 31
December 2018.

WERE
M2018F12A31H8 - BRMEEREEBRTREY
% DRIAMBKNE  EEGRAE - SHEE -

KRR - RNRREIZEE—H - —H - AR
MIBREMERRFAENREYE - BREELER

FAZC10FIA /MR AR = 5] -

AT RIBERN2018F12 A3 B R MR E XS
T28E -

Gross Floor The Group's Land
Area  Existing use Interest  lease term
Project Name and Location BEAZBRAE BE¥EE BARR EEfERE THEEER
(sq.m) (Year)
(FAK) (%) (%)
Phase 181 of SME Entrepreneurial Base M ERIERN 8 —H 126395 Partial leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang ESm R ABREE9% HARE-TI%
Chengxiang Building IO 11365 Leasing - Commercial and office 100% 50
building
No. 66 Xinhua Road, Guangyang District, Langfang BRI ERER# %665 BE-BERENE
Jinyue Building EANiLS 2,094 Leasing - Residential and commercial 100% 70
Northwester comer of the junction of HepingRoad R B E NI TR BB ERERALA HE-FEREE
and Guangyang Road, Guangyang Disctrict,
Langfang
Tianfu Center REAL 8895  Leasing- Commercial 100% 1|
South of South Outer Ring, North of Longhe, By e S ERIMER R - ML - HE-H%
East of Yinhe Road and West of Changfu Road, BARME - REBBIE
Longhe Park, Langfang
Meishu Complex IhiEAR 9362 Leasing - Commercial 100% {0
South of Yunpeng Road and East of linyunRoad, BB S ERMIFERERENE - HE-E%
Langfang Economic and Technological SERIE
Developmen Zone, Langfang
Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base fhE |J¥§im 5 64,489 Tobe developed - Industrial 100% 50
NO. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BT R ERSEDT ARE-I¥
Foxcoon Technology Complex C10 ETEREECIO 80,399 To be developed - Commercial 100% |
East of Jianshenan Road and South of ErhaoRoad,  BiFEl BB RAMBIE - —R%NIE RER-EE
Longhe Park, Langfang
Total At 30299
R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, our property leasing income was
RMB53.9 million. In the future, we will consider the synergies created by the
property development business, to determine the input of resources on the
leasing business.

Outlook

In respect of our industrial town development, we will focus on the
development of Longhe Park and commence the foundation works of other
outbound projects (including projects in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and
projects in Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone) in 2019. We have confidence
in executing this year's development plan and revenue proposal as laid out
by the management of the Company at the beginning of the year.

In respect of our property development, we intend to commence
construction of two projects in 2019, including Foxconn City Phase Il and
Hongtai Commerce Plaza. Revenue from sales of properties during 2019 is
expected to be derived mainly from sales carried forward from the project of
Foxconn City Phase Il and the sales of remaining units of Hongtai Longdi and
Hongtai Meishuguan.

Taking into account our cash and future operating cash flows, and bank and
other borrowings available, we believe that we have sufficient funding to
support these development plans.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors.

Wang Jianjun (£ E)

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang lianjun (E£3£%), aged 56, was appointed as our Chairman and
executive Director on 13 February 2014, and the chairman of nomination
committee on 6 August 2014. Mr. Wang is also the founder and the president
of our Group, responsible for our overall strategy, business development and
investment planning. Mr. Wang has 23 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying and the father of Ms. Wang
Wei. Mr. Wang is involved in various governmental and public associations,
including: member of the Standing Committee of the People’s Congress in
Langfang City, Hebei province; Vice President of China Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce (2BtEER®); President of Park Capital Alliance (B[&&
ZKEgtB8), and Vice President (g|€ ) of Langfang Industrial and Commercial
Association (Esthm L ¥A =), Mr. Wang received his college diploma
(%)) in Administration Management (fTEE 1) from the Rural Enterprises
Managers & Leaders Institute of the Ministry of Agriculture (£ 2 ZR45$E 1>
weEIB s ERERT), located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in
June 1995. He was qualified as a Senior Engineer (5 4% Ti2EM) by the Title
Reform Leadership Group of Hebei Province (ildb& BB E a8/ 4), a
governmental authority, in December 2001.

Yang Yun (15 5t)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Yang Yun (#54t), aged 45, was appointed as our executive Director on
17 March 2014. Mr. Yang is the vice president of our Group, responsible for
strategy and development, expansion of industrial town projects and property
development and overall process management of property development. Mr.
Yang has 20 years of experience in the real estate industry. He received his
bachelor’s degree in real estate management (FithZE4E & &%) from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T Fa81 4§ A E2), located in the PRC, in
July 1998. He was qualified as an Assistant Economist (BhIE £ &EM) by the
Title Reform Office of Langfang Economic Development Zone (8L 5 % (= B
243%) in October 1999.

B R R E E T IAEE AR A F] China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Wang Yagang (E Za i)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Wang Yagang (£ a5 l), aged 38, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wang Yagang is the Vice President of our Group,
responsible for overall management of industrial town projects. Mr. Wang
has 16 years of experience in the real estate industry. He graduated from
Agriculture University of Hebei (AL 2 %K), located in the PRC, majoring
in Management of Urban Economics (4 $B4% % & 32), in December 2004.

Huang Peikun (F1Zi#)

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Huang Peikun (& 5%1#H), aged 56, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Huang is the Chief Financial Officer of our Group,
responsible for our financial management and control. Mr. Huang has 15
years of experience in business management. He received his master’s
degree in Management Science and Engineering (&2 R} £8 T 72) from
Zhejiang University (#/T A £3), located in the PRC, in December 1999 and his
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology (& RHEAE), located in Hong Kong,
in June 2012. He was qualified as a senior accountant (=4, € 5HAm) by the
Department of Personnel Affairs of Guangdong Province (B& & AEEE) in
February 2000. Mr. Huang was the executive director of China Merchants
Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00978)
from 2 June 2012 to 8 August 2013.

Wang Wei (£ 7&)

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Wei (£ %%), aged 27, was appointed as our executive Director on 10
November 2017. Ms. Wang is the daughter of Mr. Wang Jianjun and Ms. Zhao
Ying. Ms. Wang holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics in June 2013. She worked in the Company on a
part-time basis and in an international investment institution before joining
the Company on full-time basis in July 2017. She is responsible for overseeing
the Group's corporate finance activities and mergers and acquisitions.

Zhao Ying (#78)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhao Ying (#878), aged 48, was appointed as our non-executive Director
on 13 February 2014 and a member of remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhao has 10 years of experience in the real estate industry. Ms.
Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun and the mother of Ms. Wang Wei.
Ms. Zhao also serves as a non-executive Director of China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
08199) since January 2017.
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Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (E 7k #)

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (£ k), aged 67, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
on 6 August 2014. Dr. Wong has approximately 24 years of experience in
accounting. He has a broad range of experience serving as directors of
various listed companies, including as an independent non-executive director
of APAC Resources Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 01104) since July 2004, an independent non-executive director of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 00757) since January 2008, an independent non-executive
director of China Merchants Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00978) since June 2012, an independent non-
executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08199) since September 2017,
an independent non-executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 08239) since
January 2018, an independent non-executive director of China Medical &
HealthCare Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 00383) since December 2018, and an independent non-executive
director of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 02019) since January 2019. Dr. Wong was
a principal consultant of KND & Co. CPA Limited (i &t BB AR A
7)) between April 1994 to December 2017. He was appointed a principal
consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited, Hong Kong (@A & &tEh1T AR 2
7)) since January 2018.

Dr. Wong received a degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the Philippines
in December 2010. Dr. Wong is member of the following institutions, including:
a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators;
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a
fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong; a member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute; a fellow member of Association of
International Accountants; a fellow member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; an associate
member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland; and a full member
of Macau Society of Certified Practicing Accountants.

Hsieh Yafang (#m:5%)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Hsieh Yafang (3tae 35 %z 1), aged 45, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, and a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee on 10 November 2017. Ms. Hsieh
is currently a senior presenter and anchor for a channel of Phoenix Satellite
Television Holdings Limited. She has over 20 years of journalist experience
in the PRC and Taiwan. She currently serves on the board of the Hong Kong
alumni association of the Cheung Kong Business School as the Executive Vice
President. Ms. Hsieh received her EMBA from Cheung Kong Business School
in 2007 and her Bachelor of Art with focus in Japanese studies from Soochow
University in Taiwan in 1996.

PEEE

EEMEEEAR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

FoxiE

BB TEE

ToAEE L © 675% 0 M2014E8 6B EZ T AR
PRBLIFPTESREREZESERFE - TiHL
BHAENEHER - THTATREZMLTA
RIESMEZLES  BIEBE2004F7 ARERSR
KERBBRAR(—HERB R ETMHAR - &
PHR5R01104) BB IEITES -~ §200851 A
REES K ERIERAR AT (— R L
MHRAR - BHRIR00757) BB FERITESE -
B2012F6 A EAERE R E AR A A (—HER
BEZZAT LT AR - R REHR00978) B & 37 FEH
TES - 8201759 B RETHEERE (2AR)
BRAR(—MRERZAT ETHAR - BHRSE
08199) HBZ IEITE S « B2018F 1 AT
BHeRERERAR(—HMRBRZMETHA
A BRIDE508239) M B IEMITEE - 52018
FRARETTRERMBEFRDE(— MR
AT ETH AR - BRDHR00383) BV L FEEATT
EE - B2019F 1 ARETEETRZEREREA
A(—HERE AT ETE AR - 5 #H5%02019)
BB FFITESE - TELMN1994F4 A %£2017
FERARELEESHIIESMARATNAE
FEJ°T)§2§2018¢1)5]£§§§E7% TELE AT

ARIHIAAFER

ITELH00F2ALKEFFEREAMBE LT
PETABRENTIHERHRFE LR - T8
TRATHEBNKE 81 HBESFTWERT
Eﬁ(/\éﬁ &2 BRRTWERGERE
i E/%%Ri‘“ BEREE  BEESFRIRES
FEREMAEEREE MR
BERGE  KERITTHEEEE &
ROZXHEEIEE « RFIGFNAE

o

SEFe

il

\

D

]]]E

Ju o% B )
%ﬂ; gm oo ]]]E>
IS ﬁ §§ )m]n
0 E,“;* %

0|

R

BUHNTEE

HIEF Lt - 455% - R2017E 11 A10E#Z (TS
BMMBYIENTES - REREES  REZ
SEMFTMEESKE - BiLTH AR EFEE
RERABETEEREEREREA o BRF
B & &ERS0FLELR - FREEARID
B EBRRGNITAIG K o #i 2 TH2007F %
RIFSEREREEABIRERBELTSMN I
PRI FEREBRRAXEAAFEZSBL+E o




Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEAEEE

Wang Yijiang (£ —3I)

Independent Non-executive Director

Professor Wang Yijiang (£ —)I#t#%), aged 65, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee
on 10 November 2017. Professor Wang is currently the Professor of
Economics and Human Resource Management and an Academic Associate
Dean of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (in charge of the
Shenzhen campus) and a senior fellow at the National Center of Economic
Research, Tsinghua University. He served as vice president of the Chinese
Economists Society of North America. He was also a Professor Emeritus of
Human Resource Management at the Carlson School of Management of
University of Minnesota.

Professor Wang graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a Master's degree in United States Economy in
1982 and 1985, respectively. He then pursued further studies and obtained
a Master’s degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Economics at
the Harvard University in 1989 and 1991, respectively. His research areas
cover human resource management, labour and personnel economics,
comparative international management systems, economics of transition and
emerging markets and economics of organization, and his research findings
have been frequently quoted.

Professor Wang currently serves as an independent director of Shenzhen
Zggame Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code 300052) since March 2014, a non-executive director of Zhejiang Red
Dragonfly Footwear Co.,Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code 603116) since September 2016, an independent non-
executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00908) since August 2015, and
an independent non-executive director of TCL Electronics Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 01070) since February
2016. He was an independent director of Beijing Huatu Hongyang Education
& Culture Corp., Ltd. (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations in the PRC with stock code: 830858) between November 2012 and
June 2017, and an external director of XCMG Construction Machinery Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000425)
between July 2010 and July 2017.

F-T

BUIHTEE

F—ITHE - 655% - K207 1M A10BEZ TR
BARBEIFNTES  HFZESXE  IF
ZEEEMREZEEKE - THREBAAKRIT
BERLHER AN ERERZHIE 2RI
RABERIRE) RBEREHRLBEHTH O
BRMEE WBEEFTRBELELGAISR
NERACHEABRAREESERANERE

FHREBZERIERKRE - 5 5IR 19824 K 19854
BIEERE+ REBLESIE TR0 - BERHk
KERE DRI 19894 K& 1991 45 48 7 E21E
TREESIE LB - HIREEEEANER
B MEASEE  BEHIEERLE - E@,
4P R FTEL T 45 R AR AT - IR R B S|
ﬁq o

FHIEH2014FIRESETRY T EETHH
B ABRA R (—RERNERIES RS LT
AFE - P HR5R300052) KB EE - H12016
FORAESEENMTABHEXRNBERAT
(—HREEFHZ S ETHAR - RODNKR
603116) IFERTTE S ~ A2015F8AES (T
BRI EEEBR A R (—RERBA A LW
AT R HEE00908) KB JESITE S - &
H2016F2 A =S EATCLE T IERAR A A (—
BRER T ETR AT - BDHKEE01070) B8
VIFMITESE - THIRBE2012F11 A £2017
FOAMBTLRERRGHE LERRNH A
AR (—MRPEFT=RETHAR - BHA
57830858 ) KB E = - KIE20109F7 A E2017
E7AMEAGISEE T REEMBENDBRAT
(—RRFIEHFR S ETHRF - RO
000425)FySMEFE S -

Annual Report 2018 %



o6

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEAEEE

Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business.

Xu Ming (#84)

Mr. Xu Ming (#:88), aged 52, was appointed as our vice president on 20
March 2006. He is responsible for our capital management and the daily
operation of Langfang VAST. Mr. Xu has over 33 years of experience in
business management. Mr. Xu graduated from Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics (K328 4& A £2), formerly known as Tianjin College of Finance
and Economics (k28148 E27), located in the PRC, in master’s course on
economics (&7 E2) in June 1999. He was qualified as a Senior Economist (5
44 EE) by the Agriculture Bank of China, Hebei branch (dh Bl &2 2 3R 77574t
A 71T) in December 1999.

Cui Xiangxu (£ @ h8)

Ms. Cui Xiangxu (£ [m)/8), aged 49, was appointed as our vice president on 3
August 2006. She is responsible for our finance, cost and legal management.
Ms. Cui has 23 years of experience in business management in the real
estate market. Ms. Cui graduated from the Lang Fang Radio & TV University
(BB Y7 EHEE R AE), located in the PRC, majoring in accounting (&3+£2), a
correspondence course, in July 1992. She was qualified as an Economist (4§
SERD) by the Medium Level Title Assessment Committee for Langfang Rural
Enterprises (ER4h i 4B $E > 2 b BB FETZ €) in September 2001.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang (#¥4%), aged 35, was appointed as the company
secretary of our Group on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
majoring in professional accountancy. He has over 12 years of experience
in audit, accounting and finance with an international audit firm and a listed
company in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices and continues to closely monitor the compliance with
the applicable requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wang Jianjun has been assuming the roles of both the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Company since the listing of
the Company’s shares on 25 August 2014. The Board believes that resting
the roles of both the chairman and the president in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
these two roles are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities
are shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority. In
addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the
board as well as senior management. The Board has three independent non-
executive directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation on a
regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would not impair
the balance of power in the Group.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders. Due to other pre-
arranged business commitments which must be attended to by each of
them, Ms. Zhao Ying, being a non-executive director of the Company, and
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. Hsieh Yafang, being independent non-
executive directors, were not present at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21 June 2018. However, Professor Wang Yijiang, being
an independent non-executive director of the Company, was present at
the annual general meeting to ensure an effective communication with the
shareholders thereat.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors of the Company and all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the applicable
standards set out in the Model Code throughout year ended 31 December
2018.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The Board holds
regular meetings to discuss the Group's businesses and operations. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management team. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive directors, one is non-executive director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive directors. The table below sets out the
roles of each member of the Board and their relationships:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and President of the Company

Directors
Wang Jianjun
(spouse of Zhao Ying
and father of Wang Wei)
Yang Yun
Wang Yagang
Huang Peikun

Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and Vice President
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei (daughter of Executive Director

Wang Jianjun and Zhao Ying)

Zhao Ying Non-executive Director

(spouse of Wang Jianjun and

mother of Wang Wei)
wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director
Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 52 to 56. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last published annual
report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all of
the independent non-executive directors and the Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

All Directors (including non-executive directors) are appointed for a specific
term of three years which may be extended as each and the Company
may agree, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company provides
that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.
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Attendance at Meetings of the Board, Shareholders
and Board Committees

During 2018, the Board held 4 regular board meetings, 2 audit committee
meetings, 1 remuneration committee meeting and 1 nomination committee
meeting. As regards general meetings, the Company held the AGM on 21
June 2018.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director at the relevant
meetings:
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Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend for the year ended 31 December 2018
HZ2018E12A3MB L EEHE AEREENEEEE

General Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board meeting Committee Committee Committee
Ezg BRRAE ERZES FMzEg REZEE
Executive Director gz
Wang Jianjun TRE 2/4 01 N/A N/A 7
TiER TEA
Yang Yun Hh 3/4 01 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA TEf
Wang Yagang TR 4/4 0N N/A N/A N/A
TEA A TiER
Huang Peikun EiE 4/4 ”n N/A N/A N/A
TiER TEA T
Wang Wei I% 4/4 7 N/A N/A N/A
TER TEA TEA
Non-executive Director FHTES
Zhao Ying et 4/4 0N N/A 11 N/A
TiER T
Independent Non-executive Director Bk TES
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Foxig 4/4 01 212 N/A N/A
TiEA TiEA
Hsieh Yafang D] 474 071 2/2 1N 1
Wang Yijiang -1 4/4 7N 212 Al N
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To assist Directors' continuing professional development, the Company
has arranged trainings and recommended Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The directors are also continually updated with legal
and regulatory requirements, and business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board meetings and
resolutions. The table below sets out the individual training records of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2018:

Read materials

EENFREEXRRE
RBBERNHASEERR  ARRERHE
WiEHEEHF AR T ABERIENRER
HBEEE - 2REEFAPFEEXERRNER
M WS EERDE R IR IIA B R R BT
EMBLE - EEZMEBSEETGHLRE
& THESAEREEREERTE  EBRMS
BWRMER - MERTTRE - TREFIVE
E2018F12A31 R L FE R EEMEZIEIINE
RFDER -

Attending seminar(s)/programme(s)/
conference(s)/training(s) relevant to

the Group's business or directors’ duties
BNERAEEEERESHEN

B AR g R gE L
Wang Jianjun FTEE v v/
Yang Yun B v v
Wang Yagang F R v v
Huang Peikun st v/ v
Wang Wei B v v
Zhao Ying 8 v/ v/
Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert B v v/
Hsieh Yafang EiEED v v
Wang Yijiang T v v

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting of three independent non-
executive directors, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (chairman), Ms.
Hsieh Yafang and Professor Wang Yijiang, was established with specific
written terms of reference and is responsible for the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls, and
recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee has met twice to review the
unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2018
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017,
review the risk management and internal control system of the Group, review
the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function and discuss with
the management and the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices which may affect the Group and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the Board’s
approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, was established with specific
written terms of reference, and is responsible for making recommendations
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management of the Company including making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
for approval by the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review the remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management of the Company and assess performance
of the executive Directors. The remuneration for the directors and senior
management comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements. Members of the Remuneration Committee are Professor Wang
Yijiang (chairman), Ms. Zhao Ying and Ms. Hsieh Yafang.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, consisting of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
approving and terminating the appointment of a director. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive director must also meet the
independence requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee met once to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board. Members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Wang Jianjun (chairman), Ms. Hsieh Yafang
and Professor Wang Yijiang.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
nine directors, of whom six are males and three are females. Three are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, nationality,
professional background and skills.
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company's policies and practices in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing the Company's compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and results of the Group. In doing so, the Directors
opted for suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and
used accounting estimates as appropriate in the circumstances. With the
assistance of the accounting and finance staff, the Directors ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 81 to 86.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control system of the Group, and an effective risk management
and internal control system enhances the Group's ability in achieving
business objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws
and regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. As such, the Group’s internal control procedures include a
comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and performance monitoring
system. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and the Group's risk management and internal control
system annually, covering all key control, including financial, operational
and compliance. The examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and
validation through observation and inspection (if necessary). The result of
review will be reported to the Board and some measures would be proposed
if there is any area for improvement. The Board has conducted reviews of
the risk management and internal control systems and is satisfied with the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside information
according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission and as indicated in the corporate
responsibility policy and various affiliate proceedings to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the propagation of such information is efficiently
and consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about the due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information with the latest regulatory updates.

Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total fees paid/payable in respect
of services provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:
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Services rendered Frid iy RS Fees paid/payable
Bt E A

RMB'000

AREFT

Audit services FEEHRTE 4,095
Review services ERIIR 2,270

Remuneration of Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration of the senior
management members is set out by band as follows:

SR EIEE /TN
HZE2018F12A31HILFE - aABEEREN
AR EYI T

Band of remuneration M 4E Bl Number of person
AE
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 756,000,001 26,500,0007T 2

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Wai Tsang was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 1 February 2018. Mr. Lam has complied with the relevant professional
training requirement for company secretary under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the Board.
An AGM of the Company shall be held each year at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").
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Right to Convene EGM

Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company's principal place of
business at Units 3707-08, 37/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and such may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified to not be in order, the shareholders
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s) concerned
at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- Atleast 21 clear days' notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in EGM,

- Atleast 14 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) for proposal of all other EGMs.
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2. Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

3. Right to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above. Pursuant to Article 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for
appointment as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodging of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the Company'’s
shareholders and investors through various channels, including, among
others, the Company’s interim reports, notices, announcements and the
Company'’s website at www.vastiud.com. The Company also holds press
conferences from time to time at which the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding the
Group's business and performance.

Change in Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2018, there had been no change to the
Company's memorandum and articles of association.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the provision of services in the planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
sections from pages 6 to 8 and pages 9 to 51 of this report, respectively. The
future development of the Group’s business is discussed in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 6 to 8 of this report. The Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section form part of this Directors’
Report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 87 t0 88.

Dividend

During the year, the Company declared and paid an interim dividend
of HK$0.05 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company. The
Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.11 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing a total payment of approximately
HK$181,636,000. The final dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be
held on 27 June 2019.

Upon shareholders” approval to be obtained at the AGM, the final dividend
will be payable on or around 29 November 2019 to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on 31 October 2019.
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Closure of Register of Members and Record
Date

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 June 2019
to 27 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 June 2019.

The period of closure of the register of members of the Company for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlements to the final dividend is
from 1 November 2019 to 5 November 2019 (both days inclusive), and during
such period, no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the entitlement of the final dividend, all transfers of shares of
the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the Company'’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31 October 2019.

Five Year Financial Summary

Five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 240.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings and Capitalization of Interests
Details of borrowings are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group's capitalized interest expenses and other
borrowing costs during the year under review are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

6/

TERERRELFERCRE
H H#A
RAEWER2019F6 A24 B E2019F6 A27 8 (8
EEEMA) M EMERRELTFE - #
AT EARRRMDBEERL - UWEEEED
ERRBEASI NG LRENBRRER - AE
BRHERRAFTFASTRE HEE - IEEAR
ﬂk@uﬁx#@ﬁﬁ%hﬁ&uﬁﬁmﬁm
201996 A218 T FARF309 Al » < EA N F
BEBRNBPER D EEARRES “&ﬁ@
A MU BB BT ERRBRISIHE TP L
7181712171654 - AR B0 F4E -

BETE RN AR REIR R B A TE =
TS R B R0 FAE BRI A2019F 11 818 20194
1MASE(REEEMA)  HEHEAZEARRA
RIDBFEER - AETHEEIREERBRS -
FIEARRRIRMDBE X FEREERE MBS R
mmvmwimﬂmaTﬁwhmn%'%é$
ARMBBROHBEERLDER BT RE
BRAE BB BEFEEAE %m%W\
AR 7481712-17 16514 ©

hFEHEERE
AEB AT EERTINRFE2408H

BER R
EREWTAEBRRERFEARR
BB E

M-~ BERRZE
REBYE - BEREEHESSDFIERT N REH
TEREMIFE6

BREY=

RIEZFMZE A TR

TEBIREMEL B FHIEHI NGRS M ERKRIN
170

ERRABER

{EREHBEHI RS M MR FES2 o REEH

Bl EAF E W E AL B 5 S A fE SR AN By 7%
BRI AR A M ISR MO

Annual Report 2018 %



68

Director's Report

EEEHRE

Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 23 December 2015, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Goldmark Success Ltd. (the “2015 Subscriber”) and other parties,
pursuant to which the 2015 Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the three-year term
6% convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 (the “2015
Convertible Bonds”) and the three-year term 12% notes in the principal
amount of US$50,000,000 (the “2015 Notes”) (the “2015 Subscription”). The
2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2015 Notes were secured by the pledge of
equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company and guaranteed by
Mr. Wang Jianjun (the executive director and chairman of the Board) and
Ms. Zhao Ying (the non-executive director and controlling shareholder of the
company).

Completion of the 2015 Subscription took place on 30 December 2015 and
the 2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2015 Notes were issued to the 2015
Subscriber on the same day. Holders of the 2015 Convertible Bonds have
the right at any time during the term of the 2015 Convertible Bonds requiring
the Company to convert all or any part of the principal amount outstanding
under the 2015 Convertible Bonds into Shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$3.1 per Share, subject to adjustments according to
terms of the agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a total of US$5,000,000 of 2015
Convertible Bonds have been converted to ordinary shares of the Company,
and the remaining balance of the 2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2015 Notes
have been repaid by the Group.

On 27 December 2017, the Company entered into another subscription
agreement with Chance Talent Management Limited (the “2018 Subscriber”)
and other parties, pursuant to which the 2018 Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue, the three-year term 6% convertible notes in the principal amount of
US$50,000,000 (the “2018 Convertible Bonds”) and the three-year term 6%
notes in the principal amount of US$110,000,000 (the “2018 Notes") (the
“2018 Subscription”). The 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes were
guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianjun, Ms. Zhao Ying, Profit East Limited and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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Completion of the 2018 Subscription took place on 9 January 2018 and
the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes were issued to the 2018
Subscriber on the same day. Holders of the 2018 Convertible Bonds have
the right at any time during the term of the 2018 Convertible Bonds requiring
the Company to convert all or any part of the principal amount outstanding
under the 2018 Convertible Bonds into Shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$4.75 per Share, subject to adjustments according to
terms of the agreement.

Details of the Group's convertible Bonds and notes are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year under review
and as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on page 91 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB449,175,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-bank financial institutions
which granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. As at 31 December 2018, such mortgage loan guarantees
amounted to RMB966.4 million compared to RMB1,189.3 million as at 31
December 2017. Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i)
the transfer of the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers;
or (ii) the satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the
purchasers.
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Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-bank financial institutions to secure certain loans and
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

The 2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2015 Notes were jointly guaranteed by
the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of entire
equity interest of Shing Cheong Holdings, China Vast International, King Billion
and Sheng Shi International.

significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has disposed of its
entire equity interests in two subsidiaries to independent third parties for
a total consideration of RMB51,100,000. The Group recognised a gain of
RMB3,037,000 in the profit or loss. These transactions did not constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules as none of the applicable percentage ratios reached 5% or more at the
time of the entering into of such disposal agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the percentages of purchases
from the Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 8.0%
and 31.2%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers were 21.9% and 59.5%,
respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates,
nor the substantial shareholders had any interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB15,089,000 (2017: RMB2,000,000).
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Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 1,148 employees (31
December 2017: 1,085 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

Details of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 which will be valid for 10 years from the
adoption date for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors
and eligible employees as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Under the rules of the Scheme, the
Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which a share option has
to be held before it can be exercised. Such discretion allows the Board to
provide incentives to grantees to remain employed with the Group during
the minimum period and thereby enabling the Group to benefit from the
continued services of such grantees during such period. This discretion,
coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as it
considers appropriate before any share option can be exercised, enables the
Group to incentivise the grantees. Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board also
has discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of any share
option.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Scheme is passed
on 21 July 2015 were 163,764,100 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares in issue at the date on which the Scheme as adopted.

On 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted
to certain individuals under the Scheme. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2015.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 54,000,000, and the remaining
life of the scheme is approximately 6 years and 7 months.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the
year:

VAN i BRI AN S [ sk At &) T M ARTTE -

Price of Company's
Number of share options shares
RAEESE FARRBURE
Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 At 31 grant of priceof  period of
January Granted Lapsed  December share share share
Name or category 2018 during during 2018 options options option At grant At exercise
of participant R2018%F  theyear  theyear  R2018%F RoEE  ROBE  ROSDE date date
SMEHEERER 1818 REARE RERXXK 128318 REAH i IS RREAE  ROEAH
HKS HKS HKS
Executive directors
YTES
Yang Yun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
wh 20158 i3l NEA
7H288
Wang Yagang 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
T A 20155 Al TER
7R288
Huang Peikun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 280 N/A
Hif 20158 P TR
7R288
13,500,000 - - 13,500,000
Other employees and 49,050,000 - (8550,0000 40,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
those who have 2015%F il TR
contributed or may 7H288
contribute to the Group
HitEEREERAHHARE
EHERNAL
62,550,000 - (8,550,000) 54,000,000

Note 1: One-third of which are exercisable during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31
July 2022, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2022 and from 28 July 2019 to 31 July
2022, respectively.

Details of the Group's Share Option Scheme are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report were:

Directors Position
Wang Jianjun Executive Director, Chairman of

the Board and President of the Company
Yang yun Executive Director and Vice President
Wang Yagang Executive Director and Vice President
Huang Peikun Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Wang Wei Executive Director
Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director
Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director
Hsieh Yafang Independent Non-executive Director
Wang Yijiang Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 52 to 56. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company's last published annual
report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may be
extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting ("AGM") in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of
association of the Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Significant Contracts
Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial
year or at any time during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under review,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors

As at 31 December 2018, the interest or short positions of the directors or
the chief executive of the Company in the Shares or underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares:

Name of Director Nature of interest

EEREROUESFHNER

BAREREES  NRFHEEMMBR RN
Ol B4 Z R R R L RT ST 2 B - AR
AIERAHERB AR AR EMEAB BN
RESFMEE - MEEFRRSEMEEH18
BRA T F BRI T (AT ] BB A R B S AE ]
HAityA AR EREFOEN - WETH
BITRERXF RN -

EEEE

2=

M2018F12A31H » AARIEZREBITHAE
RARR REREEE(FEREHFRAE KA
([ 7 FH R HAEIER) 1) EBEXVER) B A% 1 5l AR B AR 19
REHFTHEEIREEF RS EAIEI2EAR
RIATFBERNZLMATGEE: - SRR _E A8 BIR &%
TAEGZ ST RIS ITAG AR B KB AR
WHABIT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of
securities held

1ERRRE
EEnE EEME iR 5 E BHAED
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,196,682,664 72.47%
rEREA - (FIEET) R EE R
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,196,682,664 72.47%
TEEEEMT2) [
Mr. Huang Peikun Beneficial owner 20,000 00.00%

EIFE L BEnEE A
Notes:

(1) Ms. Zhao Ying is the sole shareholder of Profit East Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Profit East Limited.

(2 Mr. Wang Jianjun, the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying, is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Ms. Zhao Ying is interested.

Saved as disclosed above and in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or
chief executives had registered an interest or short position in any Share or
underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

R EETERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of relevant persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying shares, as recorded in the register

FERR

R2018F12A31H » AT (ARRESHE
BITHA BRBRIN R D AR D R AR IE
FH R HAE & D5 3361& 8

FEMECMATCE

required to be kept under Section 336 of SFO, were as follows: RS SABINT ¢
Long positions in the ordinary shares: REBBRALTE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
IR
BRIR A EENE iR SEE AT DL
Profit East Limited Beneficial Owner 1,196,682,664 72.47%
MERABRAF EREBA
Mr. Wang Wei (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
T EEAEPITED REGEEER
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited* Interest in a controlled Corporation
(Note 1) 163,600,336 9.91%
RY PR B R AR A R (1) R EE R
SF Holding (Group) Company Limited* (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
g 22 B (52 ) At B PR R (B =E1) S PRGEE R
SF Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.91%
B L7 R ABR A &) (FtEE1) R EE R
Celestial Ocean Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 163,600,336 9.91%
RERERR AR () EnfEEA
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
hRESREFREEAF(HEE2) REEE RS
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
RERERRITAO B R A B (HEE2) REHEEER
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BITER S EIERAB R AR (ME2) SEEEER
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BT mERARAR (MFE2) EEGEEER
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
R BN (1A% ) AR A R (M FE2) REGEE R
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 115,411,263 6.99%
BIREFITEER AT (MF2) YA E R
Chance Talent Management Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 115,411,263 6.99%

Chance Talent Management Limited (Ff3£2)

BB A

* For identification only

* {EHEA
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Notes:

(1) Celestial Ocean Investments Limited was directly interested in 163,600,336
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2018. Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was directly wholly-owned by SF Holding Limited, which was, in turn,
directly wholly-owned by SF Holding (Group) Company Limited. SF Holding
(Group) Company Limited was owned as to 68.4% by Shenzhen Minde Holding
Development Limited, which was, in turn, owned as to 99.9% by Mr. Wang Wei.
Therefore, each of SF Holding Limited, SF Holding (Group) Company Limited,
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited and Mr. Wang Wei was deemed
to be interested in the 163,600,336 Shares in which Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was interested.

(2)  Chance Talent Management Limited, the subscriber of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds, was directly interested in 115,411,263 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2018 (the number of shares involved will be affected by the conversion
price of the 2018 Convertible Bonds which is subject to adjustments according
to terms of the agreement). Chance Talent Management Limited was directly
wholly-owned by CCBI Investments Limited, which was, in turn, directly wholly-
owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings)
Limited was directly wholly-owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which
was, in turn, directly wholly-owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited.
CCB International Group Holdings Limited was directly wholly-owned by China
Construction Bank Corporation, which was owned as to 57.11% by Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. Therefore, each of CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International
(Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. was deemed to be interested in the 115,411,263 Shares in which
Chance Talent Management Limited was interested.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, no other persons
had registered an interest or short position in any Shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified.
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Competing Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors is considered
to have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company on 6 August 2014 (the “Deed of Non-
competition”). Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014. There has been no
change to the terms of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2018.

During the reporting period, no written notice of any New Opportunity
(as defined in the Deed of Non-competition) had been received by the
Company. The Company has received confirmations on compliance with
their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition from the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Confirmation”).
Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-executive directors
of the Company have reviewed the same as part of the annual review
process. In view of the above, the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Controlling Shareholders of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-competition given by them.

Loan Agreements with Covenants relating
to Specific Performance of the Controlling
Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the 2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2015 Notes, the
Controlling Shareholders have undertaken to, so long as any part of the 2015
Convertible Bonds or the 2015 Notes is outstanding, maintain an aggregate
beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less than 51% in the issued
share capital of the Company except as a result of the conversion of the 2015
Convertible Bonds. A breach of such covenant may constitute an event of
default pursuant to the terms of the 2015 Convertible Bonds and the 2015
Notes.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the 2018 Notes,
the Controlling Shareholders have covenanted to, until all obligations under
the 2018 Convertible Bonds or the 2018 Notes have been performed and
discharged in full by the Company and the guarantors, maintain an aggregate
beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less than (a) 51% of the
entire issued capital of the Company at all times on or prior to the date on
which all liabilities of the Company under the 2015 Convertible Bonds and
the 2015 Notes have been unconditionally and irrevocably discharged in full;
and (b) 34% of the entire issued capital of the Company at all times after the
above-mentioned date. A breach of any of such covenant may constitute an
event of default pursuant to the terms of the 2018 Convertible Bonds and the
2018 Notes.

The above requirements as to the maintenance of control result in the
disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

On 3 July 2017 and 28 December 2017, Profit East Limited provided unsecured
loans of HK$220,000,000 and HK$40,000,000, respectively, to the Company
at an interest rate of 8% per annum for a term of one year. As the loans were
unsecured and conducted on normal commercial terms or better to the
Group, the loans are fully exempt pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

On 7 December 2018 and 18 February 2019, Profit East Limited has provided
unsecured loans of HK$295,820,000 and HK$2,000,000, respectively, to the
Company at interest rates of 10% and 12% per annum, respectively, for
terms of six months. As the loans are unsecured and conducted on normal
commercial terms or better to the Group, the loans are fully exempt pursuant
to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none of the
related party transactions constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and there was
no connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Group
that need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the
normal course of business are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive Directors) have
confirmed that the connected transactions disclosed above are on normal
commercial terms and their respective terms are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company
has complied with all the reporting, announcement and other applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
connected transactions disclosed above.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Period.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director. The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’
liability insurance during the year under review, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company is committed to supporting environmental sustainability. The
Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing, including encouraging double-sided printing and
copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Company will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures in the
Group's business operation. The Company will publish its environmental,
social and governance report on an annual basis in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group's subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and China. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

Corporate Governance Practices
The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and
corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and the Model Code as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.
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Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company in its global
offering (after deducting the underwriting fees and related expenses, and
without taking into account the exercise of over-allotment option) amounted
to approximately HK$927.1 million. Up to 31 December 2018, the Group had
used all of the net proceeds in accordance with the proposed usage as set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2014 and details
can be referred to the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jianjun
Chairman

27 March 2019, Hong Kong
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA VAST INDUSTRIAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China VAST
Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 81 to
239, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by International Accounting Standard Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our  #EEAEEZEESETEKHER, -
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREEER

BAEEFTEE

PSR FHEE AR KRR IR B HE -

EHMEA AR NGRS M BRRERASREKN
MEIH - EEFHRTHMER A M BRI

HNELE

BAERMATREEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ET SN ELERETSE

Determination of fair values of the completed
investment properties
EERTREVELTE

We identified the determination of fair values of the completed
investment properties with the use of income capitalisation
method as a key audit matter because it requires an estimation
of future results, a set of assumptions and a determination of
key inputs, including: (i) term yields; (i) reversionary yields; and
(i) market unit rent of individual unit, which are judgmental.
Any changes to these inputs may have a significant impact
on the fair values. Management determined the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties at 31 December
2018 with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer.
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Details of the completed investment properties and the related
key estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 17 and Note 4,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair values
of the completed investment properties with the use of income
capitalisation method included:
HRBABANEE TR THREYEATENIRF2IE

3 Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuer engaged by

management;
o HMEBEEZEMNBEAEREEGEMNBERE - 8
DAEEME

3 Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by
the independent qualified professional valuer and
discussing with the independent qualified professional
valuer together with our internal valuation specialists to
understand the basis of determination of valuation; and
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3 With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
challenging the independent qualified professional valuer
on the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
the completed investment properties, such as (i) term
yields; (ii) reversionary vyields; and (iii) market unit rent
of individual unit, and obtaining the evidence that the
independent qualified professional valuer used to support
the key inputs.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
BRESEE

83

BRETEE e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RN ET SN EEERETSEE

Determination of fair values of the trade receivables at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
EERATFESABR(RATEFAERE)NE S BKRFIE
HRAEE

We identified the determination of fair values of the trade
receivables at FVTPL as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance of trade receivables at FVTPL, and
the significant estimation uncertainty resulting in determining
the fair value.

LM EERATEFAEEZNE ZEVFEN AT ELRH
RETEIE - ARERATESABRNE S ERFIBAESRNE
2 REEFEATFESHMNEA G THAMER -

Management determined the fair values of the Group's trade
receivables at FVTPL at 31 December 2018 with the assistance
of an independent qualified professional valuer. As disclosed
in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, the
fair values of the Group's trade receivables at FVTPL were
RMB2,037 million. Key assumptions adopted include future
contractual cash flows, estimated repayment periods and
discount rates.

EBRETELSERBEGEMBYT B BSEERAT
Bt A= E 5 EEIER2018F 12 A31 BB A F(E © a0
REMBRRMFIAEES - EEERATEFABRN
BIRKFIENAFTEAARE2037BETT - AN EZR
BREFERREHNREME  AEHENERITHNE -

Details of trade receivables at FVTPL and the related key
estimation uncertainty are set out in Note 37(c) and Note 4,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
BATEF AR E S RIEIE KA S st N EE 1R
B D BIE A GR & B 1 SRR T 137 (C) B Pt 34 o

Our procedures in relation to determination of fair values of the
trade receivables at FVTPL are as follows:
BEERATEFTABRZNE ZREFIER T ENEFBE

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuer engaged by
management;

o MABEEZENBUAARBEMEBEMAOBERE - &
NFEEE

. Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by
the independent qualified professional valuer and
discussing with the independent qualified professional
valuer together with our internal valuation specialists to
understand the basis of determination of valuation; and

o EHBUVAEREXEMHEMERNEERSGEIAN - WHEE
VABRBEGERREMOABEERERETIR - A
THREEMENEE &

. With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
challenging the independent qualified professional valuer
on the methodologies and judgments used in valuing
trade receivables at FVTPL, including future contractual
cash flows, estimated repayment periods and discount
rates, and obtaining the evidence that the independent
qualified professional valuer used to support the key
inputs.

o HEAINEEZERBE T - ERB LA ERFEGERMEEZ
N EFFAERNE F BRI GTEETHEMMKAN T ER
& - BERRENREME « HETEMNBARFTNE - I
BEUE N & BR B 2L ERD ISR A BURFT AN E
e
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

HERARD

EAAEFHRMARAK - AR BEFH
AR R EIER A B BRI R I

HE o

HMEREE M BRERNBER T BEEMER
BN RNMEATE A (REE 5 ©

WREHR MG EE M BRRNET - RPINEER
FEEMERNMRRE BELENEREGFAR
Bk REE P EFNEMBRENS « 1RK
BIRAPIR TAE - ﬁﬁmﬁﬁi\@éﬂfﬁiﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ
B} BMFB2REEEOEE - 2R Ll
B2 BFEWMENEER -

ESURMEENEEREBHRES
MBHBROEE

ERRERREARRRIASBEM BB E
ERIREFBNAERPIRENRE  RREBEAT
MR B MK WEAEFA BBV BN AL
B PAEAR & M IR N R EF R EE R
BEHBE ARG RERML

ERBUREMIBHERE - EEARNE BE5E
ARERE  REER) - BSEKE AR
= LA&&GH%T*%E?%% BRIEARAE - B
EXERBHE ESEHEFLEERERFRE
HE I R REE R o
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Lung, Wing Hung David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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37/

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2018 2017
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET R ARETT
Revenue A
Goods and services 72 0m R AR 7S 3,941,329 2,898,177
Rental e 53,895 36,840
Total Revenue FEAL@N 5 3,995,224 2,935,017
Cost of sales and services SHE KBRS A (1,563,904) (968,941)
Gross profit E7 2,431,320 1,966,076
Other income EAbUA 7 170,531 126,968
Other expenses Hh 7 (59.096) (2,234)
Other gains and losses E b lras R E18 8 (16,079) 44,624
Selling and marketing expenses $HE R T5 1T (69,911) (52,467)
Administrative expenses TR (430,928) (250,736)
Finance costs RbE A A 9 (194,431) (334,448)
Impairment losses, net of reversal REEE - HIBRE R 10 (11,302) -
Loss on fair value change of REMEANTE
investment properties HE)EIE (709) (4,353)
Loss on fair value change of B RWHIEANTFE
trade receivables BB)EE (52,208) =
Loss on fair value change of other financial 1% A Bzt AB e H)H Ath 81 75
assets at fair value through profitor loss ~ BEA T EEHEE 20 (3,212) =
Share of profits of associates FEAR B A RIURES 3,623 5,855
Share of profits (losses) of a joint venture &5 —fE& & ARz (E18) 589 (248)
Gain (losses) on fair value change of PTEMBETEARFEES
derivative lzs (Bst8) 11,201 (1,513)
Profit before tax BRE AR 1,779,388 1,497,530
Income tax expense FriSBiF 13 (658,041) (416,696)
Profit for the year IR i ) 1 1,121,347 1,080,834
Other comprehensive Hth2EUWE (E8)
income (expense)
Items that will not be reclassified to TEESHEE B HE
profit or 10ss
Fair value loss on investment in equity BAFEFA
instruments at fair value through Efh 2R
other comprehensive income AT B E AT EEE 21 (3,300) =
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEHMmEmEKE(EE)
for the year, net of income tax ERFTEH (3,300) -
Total comprehensive income for AEZHENELTE
the year 1,118,047 1,080,834

Annual Report 2018 £ §



8

Consolidated Statement of

Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

mEEERAEMZEWER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 2 Z2018%F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3181LEE
2018 2017
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR¥T T ARETT
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: REGH (EE) D
Owners of the Company RARIEA A 1,110,019 1,081,809
Non-controlling interests FERE S A e 11,328 (975)
1,121,347 1,080,834
Total comprehensive income (expense) for  ZARE 2 E ks (EE)
the year attributable to: PaN o
Oowners of the Company ¥iN/NCIEZ 2= DN 1,106,719 1,081,809
Non-controlling interests JEsTR A S 11,328 (975)
Total comprehensive income for REZHEHRZEEE
the year 1,118,047 1,080,834
Earnings per share BB
Basic (RMB) HAR(ARE) 15 0.67 0.66
Diluted (RMB) HE(ARK) 15 0.62 0.61

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BBERRR

AS at 31 December 2018 IR20184 12531 H

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
o=t AR¥T T ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepaid lease payments B EERIE 106,138 56,304
Property, plant and equipment L EN &‘“1% 16 904,132 706,953
Investment properties "EMZE 17 953,700 1,174,971
Interests in associates E NG [= o 18 272,642 260,036
Interest in a joint venture H—HEEARNER 19 60,313 59,724
Other financial assets at fair value BATEFTAERNEM
through profit or loss & E 20 34,030 =
Equity instruments at fair value through BRATFERT AEAD
other comprehensive income ZHNEMRATE 21(a) - -
Available-for-sale investment TL\Hj%Txéf 21(b) = 3,300
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 27 740,562 729,972
Prepayments and other receivables %Eﬁﬁﬁmﬁ & RIR 28 136,441 24,609
Restricted bank deposits SR ERITER 29 5,100 7,100
Deferred tax assets FEFIBE = 22 69,739 83,836
3,282,797 3,106,805
Current assets BE
In progress land development BT IR
arrangements 23 3,579,316 3,071,912
Amounts due from customers for BWEFE & AT IERIE
contract work 24 - 85,104
Properties under development for sale HRERERYE 26 2,114,006 2,268,332
Completed properties for sale FEBRIYE 933,701 832,258
Trade receivables E 5 W RIE 27 1,622,822 781,000
Prepayments and other receivables ?EH&E@JEW%XIE 28 418,394 500,536
Contract assets EHEE 25 51,828 =
Amounts due from related parties F&“H&Fﬁﬂﬁﬁ FKIE 44(a) 171,343 160,395
Restricted bank deposits XBE%\]‘{ETTT 72X 29 410,860 790,853
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBREIES 29 1,752,244 2,117,217
11,054,514 10,607,607
Total assets BERAE 14,337,311 13,714,412
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE M FERFKIR 30 1,628,519 1,694,226
Advance from customers for properties ?*E{?fﬁ’%%%&ﬁ S
developed for sale and rental business E!’J%)Eém 21,784 1,025,285
Amounts due to related parties FE{STRAES 5 30E 44(a) 368,308 300,844
Current tax liabilities METIES Tﬁ 649,015 428,809
Contract liabilities AHBE 31 85,338 =
Bank and other borrowings $RIT R EL MDA IR 32 1,477,701 1,805,138
Convertible bonds and notes AIEEIAES R E & 33 110,075 661,424
Derivative PTEMBITA 88 = 59,554
4,340,740 5,975,280
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,713,774 4,632,327
Total assets less current liabilities BELERREAR 9,996,571 7,739,132

Annual Report 2018 £ §



90

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
me BRI R(E)

As at 31 December 2018 IR20184 12831 H

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2018 2017
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR¥T T ARETT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings HRITREABIERK 32 3,702,760 3,262,578
Convertible bonds and notes ARG S R ERE 33 993,696 -
Derivative PTERB T A 33 23,378 -
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIBAE 22 173,604 81,541
Deferred income IEFEUA - 87,778
Contract liabilities AHBE 3l 84,161 =
4,977,599 3,431,897
Net assets BEFE 5,018,972 4,307,235
Capital and reserves AR M e e
Share capital &N 34 13,141 13,031
Reserves i 35 4,987,132 4,288,833
Equity attributable to owners of PN/NGEZZS DN
the Company FEfh = 5,000,273 4,301,864
Non-controlling interests SR RS 18,699 5,371
Total equity [ EREL 5,018,972 4,307,235

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 239 were approved  EE& 2 201943 527 B #t & 17 5k TS
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019 and are 81 E 25239 B H4RA M BHE - WHA T E

signed on its behalf by: EREXEZGEE
Wang Jianjun T#=E Huang Peikun %
Director &% Director %

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 220184 12431 H IF F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

BENARfTRE
Equity
attributable
Share to non-
Share Share  Merger  Capital Statutory Revaluation  option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  profits  Subtotal  interest  equity
REHE FEmtER
BE  ROEE AEEE  EADR  ERDE  ERRE i AOEAE Nt EEER  BRAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETn ARETn
At 1 January 2017 R2017%141A 13031 720578 48 28,062 330,240 2400 13900 228363 338353 136 3384881
Total comprehensive ER2ENE
income (expense) (BR)Eg
for the year - - - - - - - 1081809 1,081,809 (975) 1,080,834
Appropriations to REVEERBLNE
statutory reserve = = = = 6,313 = = (6,313) = = =
Dividend distribution AR - (1700%) = = - - = - (1700%) - (17009)
Recognition of RigsERf
equity-setled gl
share-based payments - - - - - - 6,619 - 6,619 - 6,619
Capital contribution by SRl ERRTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 5,000 5000
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31R 13,031 550479 48 28,062 336,553 2400 20519 3329131 4301864 531 4307235
Adjustments (Note 2 AE(f332) - - - - - - - (81.767)  (87.767) - (81.767)
A1 January 2018 (restated)  R2018%£1A18
(&3 13031 550,479 48 28062 336,553 24,011 20519 3241364 4,214,097 5371 4,219,468
Total comprehensive EM2AER)
(expense) income lhesats
for the year = = o = - (3,300) - 1110019 1,106,719 11,328 1,118,047
Conversion of convertible AT B
bonds (Note 33) SHA(F33) 110 42,212 - - - - = = 42,322 - 42,322
Appropriations to RIVERRHAE
statutory reserve - - -
Dividend distribution HERF - (420,692) - - - - - - (420,692) - (420,692)
Recognition of g
equity-settled ih
share-based payments - - - - - - 5187 - 51827 - 51827
Capital contribution by I BRI
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31A 13141 171,999 48 28062 336,553 20,741 78,346 4,351,383 5,000,273 18,699 5,018,972
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2018 220184 12531 H I F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B e ARETT ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETEHMERESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BREL AT A 1,779,388 1,497,530
Adjustments for: FATHIEMH T
Depreciation of property, M - RERSETE
plant and equipment 42,192 12,982
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE R EFUEE 1,577 -
Changes in fair value of investment REMENTEZE
properties 709 4,353
Changes in fair value of trade receivables BATER BN
at fair value through profit or loss B FRWFEATES 52,208 =
Change in fair value of other financial BATE AN B=rE A
assets at fair value through profit or loss PEEATEE 3,212 -
Share of profits of associates FE(RE & A Bl (3,623) (5,855)
Share of (profits) losses of a joint venture EEEE AR (Y ) ER (589) 248
Impairment losses recognised on TEL A FE UK IR HERR Y
other receivables BIEETE 11,302 -
Exchange losses (gains) b 8518 (Mas) 19,510 (43,461)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEDE « BEKEE
plant and equipment Ry 1R () 325 (107)
Interest income FEWA (119,616) (98,248)
Finance costs AR 194,431 334,448
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BRENBA TR (3,037) =
Share-based payment expenses s ok-4::! 57,827 6,619
Fair value change of derivative TN T AN FEES) (11,201) 1,513
Operating cash flows before movements EEASEIIMLE
in working capital RERE 2,024,615 1,710,028
Increase in land development for sale FE L FAIER MM (267,813) (369,179)
Decrease (increase) in properties under FEEEDRYERD
development for sale ($&0) 164,438 (760,496)
(Increase) decrease in completed FEERIHEGEM) RS
properties for sale (85,955) 173,800
Increase in amounts due from EWE P& A TIRFRIEL N
customers for contract work - (85,104)
Decrease in contract assets EHEERD 33,276 -
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e UGRIEE N (753,509) (518,267)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables a4 K E i fE UL R IE 1S A1 (67,933) (61,450)
Increase in amount due from related parties  fEU B 7 ZRIBIE hN (2,991) (2,086)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E M FE T FRIBE AN 222,296 119,726
Increase in advance from customers BREHERAENE
for properties developed for sale and R RFRIE N
rental business 3,679 182,512
Decrease in contract liabilities AHaERD (1,065,154) =
(Decrease) increase in amounts FERT RS A B ORs)
due to related parties 0 (19,826) 8,240
(Decrease) increase in deferred income IRFEWA O )3 i (2,600) 87,778

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 . £2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILEE
2018 2017
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Ffd 5 ARBT T ARETT
Cash generated from operations RETHMSHEE 182,523 485,502
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid AP R L B ER (302,419) (493,028)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEFTARSFE (119,896) (7,526)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received EH&U’F‘J 44,271 28,210
Payment for acquisition of prepaid EIEMNEEFES M HHRE
lease payments (108,034) (56,304)
Payments for acquisition of property, BEDE  BERRELH
plant and equipment HFRIE (220,053) (210,695)
Payment for acquisition of investment B B IR
properties (88,402) (38,969)
Repayment of a loan receivable EREFER = 21,453
Payments for investment in associates BN AR A S TR FIE (10,000) (104,636)
Payments for investment in an equity HEE R T A NHFIE
instrument (37,242) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREWE  WEMEE
plant and equipment FT{S kI8 574 511
Restricted bank deposits withdrawn EARERE X R HI$RI T K 753,038 102,190
Restricted bank deposits placed BEF AKX R IR TFER (371,045) (138,648)
Placement of deposits with original EAREIHBEB=1EA
maturity over three months PR (607,000) (706,000)
Withdrawal of deposits with original RERREEHBE=@EA
maturity over three months EORERY 607,500 299,500
Payments for purchase of other investments B8 H ik ERFKIA (2,578,270) (2,598,000)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments  f= & H 1% & K FT/5 2008 2,581,543 2,601,562
Withdrawal of amounts due from TRENE Wk A EsE 77 FRIE
related parties 1,209 -
Loans to related parties Bl e - (152,769)
Cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBATIESR 43 50,219 18,213
Net cash generated from (used in) investing  R&EEFIS(FTA)
activities REFHE 18,308 (934,382)

Annual Report 2018 £ §



94

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mEBEERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 220184 12531 H I F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
(i AR%T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETEMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised EARITERK 45 1,784,500 1,721,361
New other loans raised B AEMER 45 390,000 460,000
Repayment of bank borrowings RITETER 45 (1,436,723) (1,088,864)
Repayment of other loans HnEFE 45 (638,554) (735,500)
Loans received from related parties m) B 5 LR B BT 3R 45 362,837 224,285
Repayment of advance from related parties — # B8R 5 B HE R 45 (285,316) -
Interests paid EAFLE 45 (481,579) (465,989)
Dividend paid EfIRE (420,692) (170,099)
Issuance of convertible bonds and notes BT ERESRER 45 1,039,488 -
Repayment of convertible bonds and notes ~ RIEHAE 5 K Z & 45 (642,455) -
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEFRRR A R A EE
shareholder 2,000 5,000
Net cash used in financing activities RE RS AE S FE (326,494) (49,806)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERBSEEYRL FHE
EQUIVALENTS (428,082) (991,714)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MB1ENEERESEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 1,710,717 2,707,529
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNPETE RSz 2 63,609 (5,098)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A3MENERER
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by REEEY - ARTHER
bank balances and cash kB& 1,346,244 1,710,717

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

General Information

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 25 August 2014.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal activity of the
Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged
in industrial towns development, property development and property
leasing.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the
Company is Profit East Limited (“Profit East”), a company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is ultimately
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying. Ms. Zhao Ying together with her husband,
Mr. Wang lJianjun, are collectively referred to as the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB which
is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (‘000) unless otherwise indicated.

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs")

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the
first time in the current year:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

—RIEEE
HEEREXTRERBERAA(AR
A]1)R2014562 A13B IRIEMA SRS A alA
ERSEESFMKIREREERAA -
ARAERD 82014568 H25 B B E BB &
RGAAR AR ([EEAAT]) ER EM o &
NA M PR R B B Ay ik
# Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands AR RAIH) F ZEBFR/IREZEAR -
HMBARFZRHEFEEMHER W
BRRMERE -

RRANREZER AR RERERARR
MRARAR(TFR]) - EERIZREBE
LERES((REBRLHRES])  BBERLIR
PR o MERERELKRTRERER
AR BB AR BIR o

RAPMBREUAAREZY - ARBHBR
AARREKEB AR (B AEEH )8R
RALE - R BB EREDE
T AAERIIH TR -

FE R #5] I E 8 5T B BR B 1%

=22 B ([ B PR B 7 3 o5 2
811
RAFERFBIERBIET REESR
B PR B B 3R 5 2 B
ARERAEERERTAGER g2
RIIEFE ([1ASB ) B0 HT AT REBHTH
BRI

BREBREENRIR HH LA
BREBREENFR BPAHUAREEET

BRUBHEREZRE JESFEREZEER
REE2N
BREBRELRNEEE ROINAZSH5H

{Bz] i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

In addition, the Group has early applied Amendments to IFRS 9
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation which will be
mandatorily effective for the Group for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2019.

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current year and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the Group
has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

FERFE R EIET BB 717']’9}
il?jjé.;—/i‘iﬁl ([ B B B 7 3R 5

Al ) )
RAEERE LR T R BB
BRI B RS SR 5 2 Al (@)

BRI REEAES ALY FHREEN
fE31 EORHBTALRE

BAI R AR E A
REE A

Bl @ ERIE8SRER] /EAR20142 20168 F/E
BB IR 2B
=55

BB e EREI0RE] KEYZEE

eSS E FE A BIRR B A5 s 5 2RI ZE9
SRIERIA B R E )BT 1E - 112019
F1A1 BB R E SR B AR -

BN EAT AR RSN - BAARFEHITRER
R 6 B R 75 4 R0 4 3 A SR B AN AN
FHMBRR MR, RZ e M5
BRABEEEEATE -

2.1 BIRMBREEANISHEER
SRKBA
AREBRAFE B RERBRY B RS
ZERIFE155% - BRI MELERF15
SEEABIFR & SHERF 185U - B
REHERE1RELS A R ARR
e

AEEE B R AR HRE £
SE155% - M B XERAZEAINRETF
ZR2018F1AMBBRIERE BI#
R o REXMER B M EmZZRN
MRS A EH R - M LB
AR o o RIBEBRET B ELE
A 1SS EIRIR - NEEERE
#2018 1 A1H W AT & K E
B ZER - Et - HTHERER
R BEERIBF R &5 AR FE 185K
A BESFEFEIREES IR
TR ERE AN L ECE R AR I -



2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

. Industrial towns development — Land infrastructure and
industrial towns development and maintenance

3 Property development — Development and sale of properties

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are
disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 15

The following table summarises the impact of transition to IFRS 15
on retained profits at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

FE R ¥ 5] R E1E 5] B BR B 7%
WEER ([ BRI iR & &
Al ) e
RAEERE LR T R BB
IBE] PR B 7 3 25 B Al ()

21 BB BEHRELENISHEES
ERPBA (@)
AEBAUTEERERRESEH
A -

o EXMEHR-TIHEMRE
RER TSR G B R M

s MRBR-MEBRIHEE

BRASERBRRERERBERYHE
HEESFEEETBERNER D 5
FRIAPHRES B I 5ES -

YNGR Y
155 ELENTERE

TRFMP2018F1 518 BE = B
BSR4 22 RIS 155 AR D B A B A

B/ 488
& o

Impact of
adopting
IFRS 15 at
1 January 2018
M2018F181H
B R E 2R
FISHEHTE
RMB'000
ARETT
Retained profits R ERE
Advance from customers contain significant BREEAMELIH
financing components BEER (122,500
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract EEIS G HR IS TR AR 5,477
Tax effects HIEZE 29,256
Impact at 1 January 2018 7120181 A 1B & (87,767)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 15 (Continued)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January

2. BRI REIERBEIRS 717']'%

o 22 A (1 B PR Bt T 3 5

A1) o)

RAFEERFI LM REBET

BRI IR E R ()

2.1 BIRBI &5 %R

EREHBA (@)

11558 & 5

BRERABERTEREESE
1SSREENRERR (@)

1201851 A1 HRERE

BTSN R

RN SEIEL AT AR - RXE

2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not EREMNTEE TNEESER o
been included.
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported under IFRS 15
at 31 December at 1 January
2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018*
SAIR20175E R2018E1R18
128318 REEREERE
BE2HH ERIE155
REER ERipE] EifitE  SrENREEE*
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FizE ARBTTL ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Non-Current assets FRBEE
Deferred tax assets BIEHEEE e 833836 = 29,256 113,092
Current assets RBEE
Contract assets ANAE a - 85,104 - 85,104
Amounts due from customers for EREPEHTE
contract work R a 85,104 (85,104) - -
Contract costs BHRAR - - 5477 5477
Properties under development for sale HEERTNE d 2,268,332 - 20812 2,289,144
Current liabilities RBEE
Advance from customers for properties FRIEHEREE
developed for sale and rental business MENRPER 1,025,285 (1,007,180) - 18,105
Contract liabilities alERE d - 1,007,180 143,312 1,150,492
Non-Current liabilities FrRBaE
Deferred income BT C 87,778 (85,178) - 2,600
Contract liabilities AHBE c - 85,178 - 85,178
Capital and Reserves RAR G
Reserves i e 4,283 833 - (87.767) 4,201,066

* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from the

application of IFRS 9.

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 15 (Continued)

Notes:

(@

For industrial town development for other parks (note 5A(ii))
previously accounted for as construction contracts under IAS 11,
revenue is recognised over time under IFRS 15. The Group continues
to apply input method in estimating the performance obligations
satisfied up to date of initial application of IFRS 15. RMB85,104,000 of
amounts due from customers for contract work were reclassified to
contract assets.

The Group incurred incremental commission paid to intermediaries
and employees in connection with obtaining sales of properties
contracts with customers. These amounts were previously expensed
as incurred. At the date of initial application of IFRS 15, incremental
costs of RMB5,477,000 was recognised with corresponding
adjustments to retained profits.

As at 1 January 2018, RMB1,007,180,000 of advances from customers
and RMB85,178,000 of deferred income for advances received from
sales of properties contracts were reclassified to contract liabilities.

As at 1 January 2018, the contracts of properties sales which require
customers to prepay for the purchases more than 1 year prior
to the delivery of the properties, contained significant financing
components. The adjustments of advance from customers for the
effects of time value of money amounting to RMB143,312,000 and
RMB20,812,000 resulted increase in contract liabilities and properties
under development for sale, and RMB122,500,000 resulted a
decrease in opening retained profits before income tax.

The net effects arising from the initial application of IFRS 15 resulted
in a decrease of RMB87,767,000 in opening retained profits, and an
increase of RMB29,256,000 in deferred tax assets.

FE FA #73] & © 18 5T Bl PR B 7%
5 ZE R ([ B PR B A R 5 28
Al ) e

RAEE R E £ R R EEET

IBE] PR B 7 3 25 B Al ()

21 BB BEHRELENISHEES
ERIWA (@)
YNGR Y E
155 EE N ERE (@)

Bi%E -

@ FZAREEEEERE115%7
RAREANMEEMHAERNE
i B & (B RESA(N) » R BREI 75
RE AR5 - WA BE B R
R o AEBMBEBERBRNEM[R
HIR FE A BB B 765 #R 5 22 B 31557
RHAEEITHEOEE - BT
P& #TIZFIAARYS5,104,0007C
EMDBEERNEE -

b AEEELEMEESEEMENE
EHEBAHPEAREE L
BRE - 2SS BERBERDIEN
T8 o RERERABERI SRS %
BIZE155% A B - R A AR
5,477,000 R » W ARRE AR
DEFIE °

(0 M2018F1A1H  MEHEES
HNFBR2INEEPRRAR
1,007,180,000 7T & & SEUZ A A R #5
85,178,000 LEH D EEAHNEME -

d R20185FE1818 » ERFFPRRAM
YERRA - FEMNBERENY
XHECHNBEEAREDD - 5t
ERRBEEVENTSLRAE
BRENBERFERRTYVESD
Bl h0 A R #143,312,0007T A R
#£20,812,0007T * REBFIBRFLATAR
BE A1 R 2 A R 122,500,0007T ©

()  HINFER BRI R 2RI E 1557
EERNFTEEBYAD R E
B AR #E87,767,0007T MIEE R E
& EHE A R 29,256,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 220184 12 H31H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of IFRS 15 (Continued)
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying IFRS 15
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the current year for each of
the line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position

FE R ¥ 5] R E 85T B FR ﬂé}
BEZEA(EBRMBRE

A1) o)
T2 5 B 3 ii&ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ&aﬂ%“ﬂ
B PR B A5 3R 5 2R B (4

2.1 ![ﬁé’%ﬂﬁ%%&%éﬁ!ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
’%@ F.I’Jl-lﬁlk\sw
BOR E FA B PR B 7 3R 5 2E Bl 25
155RELENEEBRE @)
R FE A BB B S R 5 ERIEE 15
SR N AEEMN2018F12 A3 BERE
MR R RAFLREBE R EME
ARSIV EEENTE - A2
SEYENERTREEEN °

HEEMBRRRNTE

Amounts
without
Application of
As reported Adjustments IFRS 15
W EEA
BIFR B 5
H|EER
BEE2RH AR FISHNEEE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fisE ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Current assets REEE
Contract assets EHEE a 51,828 (51,828) =
Amounts due from customers EREFEHTRE
for contract work EerE] - 51,828 51,828
Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities AHBE b 85,338 (85,338) =
Advance from customers for properties  ZE{EHE RHEE
developed for sale and rental business ¥ Z BEFR 21,784 85,338 107,122
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Contract liabilities EHEE b 84,161 (84,161) -
Deferred income RREWRA - 84,161 84,161

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z22018F 12 H31H i F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments 2. ER#HITRCEITBERETE

to International Financial Reporting HEER((BERMBREE
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued) Al ]) cm)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are RS F E o ) 4 MV ET R E18ET
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued) BRET R EZER (@)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 21 BB BEREERNISHEEF
Customers (Continued) SRR @)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit HecBEBERHMMEZEKER
or loss and other comprehensive income 02
Amounts
without
Application of
As reported Adjustments IFRS 15
W 4% FE FI B BR
gyl
228 A% F1SHNEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fisE ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue oN c 3,995,224 (143,312) 3,851,912
Cost of sales and services SHE KRB c (1,563,904) 20,812 (1,543,092)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMHTTHAS c (69,911) 5,477 (64,434)
Profit before taxation BB AR 1,779,388 (117,023) 1,662,365
Income tax expense FrigRifx (658,041) 29,256 (628,785)
Profit for the year RERF 1,121,347 (87,767) 1,033,580
Total comprehensive income rE2EKE
for the year g 1,118,047 (87,767) 1,030,280
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash

FE P #7 R] K © A2 5T Bl R B 7%
s ([ B s %

Al 1) o)

R E R £ R T R EEET

BRI ISR 2R ()

2.1 EIR B R EER
ERPBA @)
HEGEEaRSRERNTE

11558 & 5

flows
Amounts
without
Application of
As reported Adjustments IFRS 15
0 4% FE FI B RR
B R EER
BER AE F1SRNEEE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bk AREFT ARETT ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before taxation R AR A 1,779,388 (117,023) 1,662,365
Operating cash flows before HEASEEAN
movements in working capital RERENE 2,024,615 (117,023) 1,907,592
Decrease in properties under FEEERMERD
development for sale C 164,438 (20,812) 143,626
Increase in amounts due from EREFEHTRE
customers for contract work AL a - 33,276 33,276
Decrease in contract assets BREERD a 33,276 (33,276) -
Increase in advance from customers BREHEREE
for properties developed for sale and o EL:0EYSEAE N
rental business = b 3,679 (921,842) (918,163)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD b, c (1,065,154) 1,065,154 -
Increase in trade and other payables B REMEMZEEN 222,296 (5,477) 216,819
Cash generated from operations RETEEFERE 182,523 - 182,523

R R EETEEE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash

flows (continued)
Notes:

(@  For industrial town development for other parks (note 5A(ii))
previously accounted for as construction contracts under IAS 11,
revenue is recognised over time under IFRS 15. The Group continues
to apply input method in estimating the performance obligations
satisfied up to date of initial application of IFRS 15. According
to IFRS 15, RMB51,828,000 of amounts due from customers for
contract work was reported as contract assets for the year ended 31
December 2018, and contract assets decreased by RMB33,276,000
during the year of 2018.

(b)  According to IFRS 15, RMB85,338,000 of advances from customers
and RMB84,161,000 of deferred income for advances received from
sales of properties contracts were reported as contract liabilities for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Without the application of IFRS
15, advance from customers for properties developed for sale for the
year 2018 would have been decreased by RMB921,842,000 under IAS
18.

() Asdisclosed previously, upon the application of IFRS 15, the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as at 1 January 2018 were adjusted
for the significant financing components and capitalised incremental
commission costs from contracts of properties sales. Revenue from
such contracts was recognised in year 2018. Without the application
of IFRS 15, revenue, cost of sales and selling and marketing expenses
for the year 2018 would have been decreased by RMB143,312,000,
RMB20,812,000 and RMB5,477,000 under IAS 18.

FEAFE] R 2185 BIBRE 7']’93‘
iﬁjjc'.;—/iﬁ-ﬁl (BB | E
EUNNIE)
RS F E o ) 4 MV ET R E18ET
IBE] PR B 7 3 25 B Al ()
BB B R EERISHERF
SEBWA (&)
HEEESRERNEE W)

BRE -

(a) BzAREREE S ERIE 1195
RAREANCZEETRERNE
ftb B[ (P RESAG)) » 1R EIER B 75
R ERIF155% - WA S BE R R R
R o ANEBBERAR AR ER
K024k e P 2 B B 75 i 2 2 B 55 155%
BERIE BITMBAEE o RIEE
BRBA TS 3R 2 B S8 1555% - # E2018
FRANBLEFERERKEFANT
2B AR#51,828,000 L 2R AR
WEE - ME018FEEEHNEER
> AR#33,276,0007T °

(b)) REERGERELEDFE 155 -
HE2018F12A3MBLFEELE
MESHNMBRERNEFR2RAR
#585,338,000 7T K i FE UL A A R #E
84,161,000 EMACHBE - BFE
JIE FR B PR BA 7S 3R 5 AR RN 81557+ 1R
BEE ST R E185E - BEFEH
EMENTFBFN2018F E R
L AR #921,842,0007T °

© WHAIZEE  EABERMBE®RS
AERIE155% - N B R 201841
R1EMGEVBHRE EAED
¥HEANANEARELH RE
MMz EBEBRESKA - WEEHZ
WA BE2018FEHER - BEEA
B PR B H5 7R 5 E RSB 1555 - IRIRE
BREaT Rl 185, « KA ~ $HERK
A EHE K15 1T 85 2 12018 4F
E # 5 BlR 2 A R ¥ 143,312,000
7T+ AR #20,812,000 7T F1 A R #
5,477,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 220184 12 H31H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation and the related consequential
amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements
for 1) the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial
assets and contract assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and
has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Eﬁ%ﬂ&EWﬁ@@ﬂﬁ

o 22 A (1 B PR Bt T 3 5

A1) o)

P75 BE IR I AR SRV T R R EAERT

B B o 7 3 o 2 B ()

2.2 B MIRELABIRIMHK
TA
AR - AREEEAERNERE
RAEIRHHTA - BBRHHHRE
ERIEOR BT AL B E 8B
1 R AT R LRI R
HIEET - ERITEHRELAEIHN
BT MRS B EE RIS ENS
BRI R DM BEERAHEED
T8 8 R ([ T SR ) 1)
—HREDRE R IITRE -

ANEEERIRER I B R EERFE
SR BT A B 16 S TR FR B BR B A 3R 5
HERIF95E - BIE2018F1 A1 (H
RERABE) MARKIEERNITER
WA BRI EHTE (BIEEBRE
EEBEATRRE)  ErEER
20181 AMA B ILFERH TAEW
JERARRTE - K2017F12A318H
BREEEREN201841 A1 BHEEE
B2 B EEREARD EFERE
A EMIBH P ER - BEEYILER

Bt + & T HOBA R A L T RIREE
REEAEVRAIHLA - ERE
FHERAOLEARHELR -

& PR B BR B 75 o 5 2R A SR 9 G By
BT BERR M RS



105

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 220184 12 H31H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments 2. ER#HITRCEITBERETE

to International Financial Reporting EAER| ([ BEIRR ji’%ﬁﬁ’—tiﬁ
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued) Al ) e
New and Amendments to IFRSs that are RAFERE LRI REIEET
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) BIpR B AR R (@)
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 2.2 BEIFRE SRS ERISE 955 BT 7%
THE&E)
summary of effects arising from initial BIRIEFERR 0 # 3R 5 2 Al 5
application of IFRS 9 IRELENTERE
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement TREIMR2018F1 A1 E X ERH
(including impairment) of financial assets subject to ECL under HAAR 15 B PR BA 7S ¥R &5 2E RI S5 95% I [
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. e T EREIRE e LA EREER
BEOVBEEEN ERAE(BE
RE) °

Financial assets

at amortised
cost (previously Financial
Available- classified assets at Equity
for-sale as trade FVTPL required instruments
investment  receivables) by IFRS 9 at FVTOCI

BB RS
RBHRATE ERIZE9H
HKEE fifER  ROVERA
THNE (ZH2ER AVESARE  Ht2ERE
kg EIEERE) WEKEE BWRATA
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
s ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Closing balance at R2017F12831 BHER

31 December 2017 - IAS39 foh - BB ETERIE39%: 3,300 1,344,869 - -
Effect arising from initial BRERERIEREE

application of IFRS 9: EOEFELNSE
Reclassification EfNE
From available-for-sale investment B ftHERE a (3,300) - - 3,300
From trade receivables 5E SEWFUE b - (1,344,869) 1,344,869 -
Opening balance at R2018F1 5184

1 January 2018 FEEEE - - 1,344,869 3,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments 2.

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of IFRS 9 (Continued)
Notes:

(@  The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
for the fair value changes of all its equity investments previously
classified as available-for-sale. RMB3,300,000 related to unquoted
equity investments previously measured at cost less impairment
under IAS 39. These investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial
application of IFRS 9, RMB3,300,000 were reclassified from available-
for-sale investment to equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").

(b)  Trade receivables of RMB1,344,869,000 were reclassified from trade
receivables to trade receivables — at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"). Because even though the Group’s business model is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, the
contractual terms of these trade receivables do not give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

As at 1 January 2018, the Group reviewed and assessed the
Group's existing financial assets subject to ECL assessment under
IFRS 9, and concluded that the application of ECL model has no
material impact on the retained profits at 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of
Investment Property

The amendment clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessments of whether a property
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by evidence that a change in use has
occurred. The amendment further clarify that the situation other
than the ones that listed in IAS 40 may evidence a change in
use, and that a change in use is possible for properties under
construction.

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the

classification of certain properties based on conditions existed at
the date, there is no impact to the classification at 1 January 2018.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

B AT R E 45 5T BB B 75
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RAREEREERNFT REEET
B R B 7 3R a5 ZE Bl ()

2.2 BIRREI SR ZE R SE 95K B i
TH®)
EpN:EE e R
%%EE\%§H§ﬁ>
‘E?E:

@ AEEREEEMEEmRES(EM
ZEWRE P 2R ZATHERAH
HENMAERNREN A TEE
&) - AR #3,300,0007T &2 55 AT 1R 8
BB & 51 22 Rl 55 39 5% 12 AR AN IR 2Rl
Bt EMELTRARERTH - Z
EREWHRHIEEEREFTEE
AR BREE - NBIRM GRS
A FIOREHAREAAY AR
3,300,000 C B e Al i HH £ 18 B E 5T
PEERATEFAEMEE RS
(MRAFEFAHEMEZE K] A
RATE -

(b B S EWKKIEARY,344,869,000
THESRRAEEFSPEERA
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EITEBEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R AR R (4]

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 A31H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

financial position arising from the application

of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial position
had to be restated. The following table show the adjustments
recognised for each of the line items affected. Line items that

were not affected by the changes have not been included.

FE B 78] ) © A& 5] B BR Bt 7

WEER ([ BRI iR & &

Al 1) ca)

RAFEEREI LRI REIEET

IBE] PR B 7 3 25 B Al ()

2.3 HERAMEHTER MY A
AR RRNTE

i Ei AR E R SRR R - B
EAMBHRREATEF]  THSI
THETYENEE FRRNEE -
RERDYBOBE UTRETER -

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) IFRS 15 IFRS 9 (Restated)
2017 20185
12A318 EREBHRE ERMERE 1818
(BER) EBE15% EBI%E9% (&=51)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFT AREFT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale investments AfHMERE 3,300 - (3,300) -
Equity instruments at fair value through BATEGAEMEE
other comprehensive income WaARATE = = 3300 3300
Trade receivables - at amortised cost RRERATENE S
JEYE 729,972 - (726,547) 3,425
Trade receivables - at FVTPL ERATEHAERNES
IR = = 726,547 726,547
Deferred tax assets ERHBEE 83,836 29,256 = 113,092
Others with no adjustments Hith(REHE) 2,289,697 - - 2,289,697
Current assets REEE
Contract assets BIEE - 85,104 - 85,104
Amounts due from customers for contractwork ~ ENZE AN TI2EE 85,104 (85,104) - -
Contract costs BHFKA - 5,477 - 5477
Trade receivables - at amortised cost RBHEKATTENE S
IR 781,000 = (618,322) 162,678
Trade receivables - at FVTPL BATEFABRNES
FEMR - - 618,322 618,322
Properties under development for sale BERRERYE 2,268,332 20,812 - 2,289,144
Others with no adjustments Hiy(KEHE) 7473171 - - 7473171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 22018F 12 H31H i F/Z

2. ERA#HTREIETERRI
EER| ([ R R & &
EUINES)
RARFEEREIEMRNFET REIER]
Bl PR S R 2Bl ()

2.3 HERMEHTER MY A
HREMBERRROTEE)

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

financial position arising from the application

of all new standards (continued)

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) IFRS 15 IFRS 9 (Restated)
2017% 2018
12A318 EIRHBERE  ERHBERS 1A1A
(&%) %R 15% ERIE% (&=5))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETL ARETTL ARBTR
Current liabilities hEas
Advance from customers for properties EREHENER
developed for sale and rental business HEXBNEPEN 1,025,285 (1,007,180) = 18,105
Contract liabilities AHEE - 1,150,492 = 1,150,492
Others with no adjustments Hin(REFE) 4,949,995 - - 4,949,995
Net Current Assets FBEETE 4,632,327 (117,0293) = 4,515,304
Total Assets less Current Liabilities EEABRRBER 7,739,132 (87,767) - 7,651,365
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred income ELIA 87,778 (85,178) - 2,600
Contract liabilities AHEE - 85,178 = 85,178
Others with no adjustments Hin(REHEK) 3,344,119 - - 3,344,119
Net Assets EEFE 4,307,235 (87,767) - 4,219,468
Equity i i
Issuied capital BETRA 13,031 - - 13,031
Reserves i 4,288,833 (87,767) - 4,201,066
Non-controlling interests JEEIM R 5,371 - - 5,371
Total Equity BREH 4,307,235 (87,767) - 4,219,468

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January

2018 as disclosed above.

R R EETEEE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16 Leases’
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material®
and IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?
Amendments to IFRSs  Annual Improvements to IFRSS
2015-2017 Cycle

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2,

FER#ET RESTEIPRE 7'1’%
$B]zjé|;—'?§—,ﬁ\' (I BRI RS

All) e
CEMEMRERNFITRCIET
] R B 75 3 5 2E

AEMI R AR R TS EMAENK
E RO ST R E S ST BRR B A 3R 4 -

BRI REERE 165 HE
BRI REERETS REAAP
BRNBRERBERG AiHEZnTRT
$23%
BRI BRERRESR EENES

{E:T
BRI BHREERE10% KEZLRHE LA
REBRSTHERERY:. AEATEEEHES
{E5T JEE?

BRe EAE1RKE EEZHATES
SHplERA )

T\E.ﬁﬁ-ﬁ‘l%wsﬂ 1 FEIEET - A E

ﬁﬁ-ﬁ‘l%z&ﬂ’}é REERRREE L AR

REER

BREISRERANEET  H2015F22017F 54
FEEBEBREER
igéi:4

! 201961 B1B sk 2 BB FEEHBRAE
B e

2 EE B Hisk 2 & e 2 FEERAER -

3 2021461 B1B sk 2 B ABHFEEHRAE
B e

4 SRS B 242020451 A1 B 82 B FIIA R0
BEFEEHEABIZENETEHRE
EWEAER ©

3 M20204F1 B 1B sk 2 A K FE EE &
R o

Annual Report 2018 %



10

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSsS in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations

when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
IFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined
based on the requirements of IFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. IFRS 16 also includes

requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by

lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease
payments will continue to be presented as investing or operating cash
flows in accordance to the nature, as appropriate.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements
in IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

FE R ¥ 5] &R E1E 5] B BR B 7%
WEER ([ BRI iR &£
Al 1) o)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB50,490,000 as disclosed in note 38. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and
IFRIC-Int 4 determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and
not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and provide
additional guidance with the objective of assisting entities to determine
whether a transaction should be accounted for as a business
combination or an asset acquisition. Furthermore, an optional
concentration test is introduced to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group prospectively
for acquisition transactions completed on or after 1 January 2020.

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgements. The amendments also align the definition across all IFRS
Standards and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in I1AS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EESHEEw

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of
the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations (land
infrastructure development, marketing and promotional service and
industrial towns maintenance), the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying
each performance obligation is determined at contract inception. It
represents the price at which the Group would sell a promised good
or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not
directly observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods
or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (marketing and
promotional service), the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using either the expected value method or
the most likely amount, depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such
an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if
the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides
the customer or the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment
terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods or services less than one year, the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEESTBE®
EEEHAWA(RBHE20BE
FE B BR B A5 3R 5 ZE RIS 1555 12 )

(4
NT=W,

ERE
HRESNERE(ZHEERRE)NE
% AEEREREREEEHRE AT
e EAREBRNRESTE - BUR
A pEE TR AR E K E R MK ES
BRRETDE

BHUSREERNTHAEZLRER
R M ABRESBER KRR AT
BMEBAMABLIE - 75 A & KB
SRR ARSER -

RE WS IR - AR E B H A R 5
(BEEFMEYTRRE S LT EROT
) SN RIS BRI R R 4
EHROERED -

FHEEARERSD

REETER 5 B + s BT it 7 15 505 S (B3
TR AEPEAKESRATFEE
EmARBNEARE R - BIAREE
REBREEEYEAFARRESFTET
AR RZFBEAT GHNEEEARE
D > PimmE AR A MR TSR
FBERE KR T IHE X HEREER - 15
AFEERRERD °

BN REEREER S MR HRE
R—FNEHNME » AEEREAERE
BERDEATRABI HEMNAITREZA



121

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Existence of significant financing component
(Continued)

For advance payments received from customers before the transfer
of the associated goods or services in which the Group adjusts for
the promised amount of consideration for a significant financing
component, the Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the same basis as
other borrowing costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all incremental
costs to obtain a contract if these costs would otherwise have been
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Income from land development arrangements

For land development projects under collaboration arrangements with
local government authority, the Group is given the right to carry out
construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
within certain districts. When the land plots are sold by the local
government authority to land buyers through public auction, tender
or listing, the Group is entitled to receive from the local government
authority a proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

The Group's share of the proceeds from the land development is
recognised upon completion of related construction works and when
the amount of income can be measured reliably, which occurs upon
sales of land plots by the local government authority. Accordingly, at
the time of the sales of land, proceeds entitled to be received from the
local government authority by the Group are recognised as income.

Revenue from construction contract with certain local government
authorities for land development is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the period plus an agreed cost-plus
margin.

The Group’s entitlement to additional income relating to these land
development activities in the form of marketing and promotional service
is recognised when such income become receivable in accordance with
the specific rate and basis set out in the relevant service agreements
entered into between the Group and the local government authorities.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

Operating lease income

Operating lease income from investment properties is recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease term which is the non-cancellable
period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the properties.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
apportionment basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Construction contract

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference
to the recoverable cost incurred during the period plus the fee earned,
measured by the proportion that cost incurred to date bear to the
estimated total costs of the contract.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract cost
incurred that it is possible will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due
to customers for contract work. Amount received before the related
work is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed
for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under trade and other
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or oss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating leases. Specially, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building element in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than that entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or 10ss
in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of
the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
pUrpOSES).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for
as investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

Investment property carried at fair value is transferred to owner-
occupied property or inventory when there is a change in use evidenced
by the ending of an operating lease and the commencement of owner
occupation. The property's deemed cost for subsequent accounting is
its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In progress land development arrangements
Development cost of in progress land development arrangements
which are under collaboration arrangements with the relevant local
government authority comprises the aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, capitalised staff costs, capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowing funds during the period of construction and
other costs directly attributable to such in progress land development
arrangements.

In progress land development arrangements is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account
the Group's share of estimated proceeds derived from the sale of in
progress land development arrangements by the local government
authorities, less costs to completion and the costs to be incurred
in realising the revenue derived from the sale of in progress land
development arrangements based on prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold in the
ordinary course of business upon completion of development are
classified as current assets, and carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and anticipated cost to completion. Costs include the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to completed
properties for sale upon completion.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The
recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment 0ss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated in the reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEESHHEE @
BMEITR@E®

B EE®)

BITS A DR E B B (RIEH 526018
S PR R B s A 958 ) (4

(i)

(i)

HE B FIEG AR M2 E R a7
KA TA
BATER AR MEEREARAT
AREHRBRATEFE HATE
BE)EE s RBEN M2 EK
mAER LN B RET - BBAEITR
BFHE - HERARER - Retlas
AEBEE I EEH RS B8
BEERDEAMNE -

EASERERATARE R NE
MEELE - ZFRERBaEPHER -
MR B AR R U BB D R B R A A
RO o BB Rt Az [ E A A 1]
B -

BATEH BB EE
T ISR AT AR
fo2 B I AR AT B AR
fER S R ER OB AR - &
AT AR E -

RAFEF ARG ENTBEER
BEMEPRRAFEFE - MEFD
FEMEREIRRAINIE TR - N8
a0 T AR O Y 2 o S 1R BRI A B 48 B
BEEMRBAEFREHAE -
AN E e BB JER -



135

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade receivables — at
amortised cost, other receivables, contract assets, amounts due from
related parties, lease receivables, bank balances and cash, restricted
bank deposits and financial guarantee contracts). The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets, trade
receivables — at amortised cost and lease receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effect.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

3 significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

3 existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

3 an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to
be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk, for financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider,

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continue) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivables, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IAS 17 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a
discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken into
account by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 1oss in profit or 10ss
for all financial assets at amortised cost through a loss allowance
account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments, AFS financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. The Group's financial assets are classified into
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

(i) AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investment or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

M RTESETEZERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEESHHEE @

BMEITR@E®

B EE®)

BT 4 7 8 AR R Y S 20 38 2 FE PR

BR B R ER S R S595R ) (/80)

() EHEEEENH B RER ()
BN TR T A A B E B
HE RERMEEERE TR
B EUERT - SR AR
EEMB R A H -

MM BREFRAOMS - BREEBIRE

B % B 75 3 25 HE RN SE O SR HESE RO 1B
RESEEVRERSTR(HER)
FEAREIAFTER ) RAHIRA 2 BEER
W%E@E/‘u ©

REEEBEIRB RN B SRR
BREHKN AT BN BEEERER

B END AR ETE(R201851 71
P & R BIFR B ¥R o E RIS 955 2 AT
MBEEA D RATRESRS : BAFE
SAABRSEHPBEE  BHEEZIHERE -
Al E B E A KR B R EUGRIA »
FBEERMEERANEDR - WRIIH
ﬁE: BFETE - ARBHNPBEERN D /A
HHE(AIHEE DORBEE - BERXK
JEW IR - FTARREENMBEERR
ZRAEEERRKE LR - TREERE
SRR T 5 L3R RSB Pl T aR B (R A8
BEENYBEERS -

) AHEGENFEE
ﬁﬂj’%ﬁffﬁ&iééi%?biﬁ%Tfﬁﬂj%
KA AR A () B AR BB IR
FRAZIMKE E}Z }E/Aﬂ?ﬁaﬂk
BEHPBEE

A E IR T AR AR BN A & E A
SZURER LS RO A B B 2 O HERR ©



141

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before

application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i) AFS financial assets (Continued)
AFS equity instruments that do not have quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets set out below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinguency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial assets. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
AFS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon application
of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative gain or 10ss
previously accumulated in the AFS revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term; or

° On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Prior to application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds and notes, and amounts
due to related parties are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1
January 2018); and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Convertible bonds and notes

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the
debt component of the convertible bonds and notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds and
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion
and are amortised over the period of the convertible bonds and notes
using the effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or 10ss.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument that are
separated from the host contracts are treated as a single compound
embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to different risk
exposures and are readily separable and independent of each other.

Embedded derivatives (under IFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial asset
hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. The entire hybrid
contract is classified and subsequently measured in its entirety as either
amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Embedded derivatives (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BEESHHEE @

BT Rm)

TTEMKEITA

PTEM BT AMNSRTERE TAA DT
v EHM A FERR - HE R RRE
KO ATEBHE o FE LMK
BERSRIB2ARIER o

—RME RE-TREANZERANT
EMHETEERE-—BEERANTERH
THRRE  BIEZSENEMBTALRS
FEk - B% B8R BER D E KB -

AR TB(H2018651 A1 5 218
15 BB IR R B 9%
HARRA A NHITEMTS TA(IERE
B B 7 30 5 B S5 9% R A B 79 ¢ 3 it
BEE)  HTEREHH - BERAEH
(ER) BB ERARATESEREE
TR -

BARETEETEONITER B TER
b REFEEFANEWEZIBEZR M
FELNW BRI IR EERFE R AT
BRI EEEB IR AFET AR
mare - ASTEMB T ESEADFED
PTHEMIE T HERRE -

8 XY BBk

BAXSTEMBTA(RK2018F 118 ER
I 5% B 765 e 2 22 I S5 951 AT )
ERARIENTEEENNITETH AN
ERkEFEEEANENEZTIBE M
ZEBHWIEE D TFEFABEANE - A
ZOTEMBTABIEASRKITEMB T
BRI o

MBEREARLRR
EREEASENRETHER  BUYN
ERE AEESER IR BARE -
RIEER B AENREEEE HRER
RABRZRHNRRER -



147

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
with regards to the Group's investment properties located in Mainland
China, the directors of the Company considered that they are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in these investment properties over
time. Therefore, the directors of the Company have determined with
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
located in Mainland China measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the Group’s
investment properties located in Mainland China on the basis that the
entire carrying amounts of these properties are recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key 4.

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
Investment properties were stated at fair values determined by
management with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer. The determination of the fair values of the
completed investment properties with the use income capitalisation
method involves an estimation of future results, a set of assumptions
and a determination of key inputs, including: (i) term vyields; (ii)
reversionary yields, and (iii) market unit rent of individual unit; which
are judgmental. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2018 was approximately RMB953,700,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,174,971,000). More details are set out in note 17.

Fair value measurement of certain trade
receivables at FVTPL

Certain of the Group's trade receivables amounting to
RMB2,036,857,000 as at 31 December 2018 are classified as FVTPL
and measured at fair values, which were determined by management
with the assistance of an independent qualified professional valuer.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof, mainly including
future contractual cash flows, estimated repayment periods and
discount rates. See note 37(c) for further disclosures. Changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of these trade
receivables and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain
or loss reported in profit or loss.

Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax assets of RMB69,739,000 (31
December 2017: RMB83,836,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets in respect of certain
tax losses of RMB158,639,000 (31 December 2017: RMB215,108,000)
and deductible temporary differences of RMB145,256,000 (31 December
2017: nil) were not recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisation of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
or more than expected, a reversal or future provision of deferred tax
assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which such a reversal or further provision takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

5. Revenue 5. WA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the years ended AT RAEEEZE20185F k201712 831
31 December 2018 and 2017. AIEFERWBADHT ©

Year ended 31 December

BZ1283181LEE
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

Income arising from land FETHFREEEE BA
development arrangements 2,801,516 2,775,327
Revenue from the sales of properties YIS E A 1,139,813 122,850
Revenue from property leasing YIRS A 53,895 36,840
3,995,224 2,935,017
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A. EZE2018F12A31HLEE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contract (i) EFERAVANDE

with customers

For the year ended
31 December 2018

HZ2018F12A31HILEE
Income arising Revenue
from land from the
development sales of
arrangements properties
#FELit
BREHKA YIEESHE A
Segments Paniy RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR%T T
Timing of revenue recognition [ ONT !
A point in time EX—RFEE 1,965,918 1,139,813
Over time EXE—REA 835,598 -
Total revenue from contract with BPEAERABIKA
customers 2,801,516 1,139,813
All of the Group's revenue is generated in the PRC based RS R MR ATIRE R
on where goods are sold or services are rendered, and HEE - AEBAERAKRE
substantially all of the Group's identifiable assets and RE - mAEER KD 0]
liabilities are located in the PRC. RIEERBEHIMNHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

5. Revenue continued)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts

with customers

Industrial towns development under collaboration
arrangements

The industrial town development agreements the Group
signed with the Longhe local government authority (“Longhe
Park”) is a kind of collaboration arrangement, under which,
the Group cooperates with the local government authority
to develop and operate the industrial town, including land
infrastructure development, marketing and promotional
service, and industrial town maintenance service.

For land infrastructure development under collaboration
arrangements with above local government authority,
the Group is given the right to carry out construction and
preparation works in respect of land infrastructure within
certain districts. When the land plots are sold by the local
government authority to land buyers through public auction,
tender or listing, the Group is entitled to receive from the
local government authority a proportion of the proceeds
from land sales.

The Group's share of the proceeds from the land
development is recognised upon completion of related
construction works and when the amount of income can be
measured reliably, which occurs upon sales of land plots by
the local government authority. Accordingly, at the time of
the sales of land, proceeds entitled to be received from the
local government authority by the Group are recognised as
revenue.

As consideration for its promotion and maintenance service,
the Group shares certain percent of the local government
authority's return from the operating of Longhe Park
annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

5. Revenue (continued)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts
with customers (Continued)
Industrial towns development for other parks
The industrial town development agreements the Group
signed with the local government authorities of other
industrial parks contain three performance obligations
as following: (i) land infrastructure development, (ii)
marketing and promotional service and (i) industrial towns
maintenance.

. For land infrastructure development services and
the industrial towns maintenance services (including
infrastructure maintenance and property management)
each service is recognised as one performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised
for these construction and maintenance services
based on the stage of completion of the contract using
input method.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the construction services are performed representing
the Group's right to consideration for the services
performed because the rights are conditioned on the
Group's future performance in achieving specified
milestones. The contract assets are transferred
to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

. For the marketing and promotional services, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when control of the
services has provided and the estimated amount of
variable consideration is included in the transaction
price only to the extent that is highly probable that
such estimation will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

5. Revenue continued)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers (continued)

Revenue from the sales of properties (revenue recognised
at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of
properties, the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with alternative use to the Group. Based on opinion
from external legal counsel, taking into consideration of
the relevant contract terms and the legal environment,
the Group concluded that the Group does not have an
enforceable right to payment prior to transfer of the relevant
properties to customers. Revenue from sales of residential
properties is therefore recognised at a point in time when
the completed property is transferred to customers, being
at the point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right to
payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreement. However,
depending on market conditions, the Group may offer
customers a discount compared to the listed sales price,
provided that the customers agree to pay the balance of the
consideration early while construction is still ongoing. Such
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction period for
the full amount of the contract price.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain
significant financing component and accordingly the amount
of consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value
of money taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period of construction, it
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

For sales from properties, the performance obligation
of the Group is part of a contract that has an expected
duration of one year or less as permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

5. WA

A. EZE2018F12A31HLEE

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

6. Segment Information

The executive directors of the Group are identified as the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM") of the Group for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. The information
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses
of the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as

follows:

. Industrial towns development — Land infrastructure and industrial
towns development and maintenance

. Property development — Development and sale of properties

. Property leasing — Lease of properties

Inter-segment sales are transacted with reference to the selling prices

used for sales made to third parties at the prevailing market price.

Segment revenue and results

AEEE
BROBREBRMIEEEMS * NA A
HITEEAAEENIELERES
(fCODM ) ° Bt 5 Be B IR A FT4 24 M )
CODMZERH ERHFRI EF R AEBEE
TS - NEBMKE RREDIPAOT

o EXEMETR-THMERRENAKRE
E RS R K Mk

s MERBER-MFHRIEHEE

o PEEE-HEME

SHMHELRARERTTEAES S
M EERTRS -

DERAR ELE
Industrial
towns Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total  Eliminations Total
EXTERE NERR NERE ViR ) BHHESH &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
For the year ended BE2018512A31A 1L
31 December 2018 ERE
Segment revenue AEHBA
— External segment revenue —H9M B 2,801,516 1,139,813 53,895 3,995,224 - 3,995,224
Consolidated revenue HFAKA 2,801,516 1,139,813 53,895 3,995,224 - 3,995,224
Segment results S 1,563,418 553,244 3,592 2,120,254 - 2,120,254
Unallocated profit or 0SS items: AiEREE
Other income HipA 18,472
Other expense Hihg (40,000)
Other gains and losses HiolhaRER (27,654)
Seling and marketing expenses  $HERMIR{THEX (15,445)
Administrative expenses THFX (198,487)
Gain on fair value change of ITERBTANTE
Qerivative Bl 11,201
Finance costs BARA (85,741)
Loss on fair value change of other A TfEET AB2H)
financial assets at fair value At EEATE
through profit or loss BYER (3212)
Profit before tax BRATER 1,779,388
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continue) 6.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Indlustrial
towns Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Eliminations Total
EXTRER NERR NERE PEEE iz At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT
For the year ended BE2017512A31A1E
31 December 2017 g
Segment revenue AEUA
~ External segment revenue —H9M BB 2,775,327 122,850 36,840 2,935,017 - 2,935,017
Consolidated revenue FAA 2,775,327 122,850 36,840 2,935,017 - 2,935,017
Segment results DEEE 1,600,893 394 1,506 1,602,793 = 1,602,793
Unallocated profit or loss items: AHEIBAIER -
Other income ELION 19,762
Other gains and losses Hinh# R ER 48,092
Selling and marketing expenses SELTETEEY (10,840)
Administrative expenses THEY (94,927)
Loss on fair value change of (TR I AATE
derivative -0 7 (1513)
Finance costs BERA (65,837)
Profit before tax BRBATRA 1,497,530

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3 to these consolidated financial statements. Segment results
represent the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
certain items incurred for central management purpose, including
certain other income, certain other expenses, certain other gains and
losses, certain selling and marketing expenses, certain administrative
expenses, gain (loss) on fair value change of derivative, loss on fair
value change of other financial assets at FVTPL and certain finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

RERAIREDBERN ST BRELS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. PEEEw
Segment assets and liabilities PHEENsBEE
Industrial
towns Property Property
development development leasing Total
EXTEERE MEERRE WEHRE &st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AR¥TRT AR¥TRT AR¥TR

As at 31 December 2018 2018%F12831H
Segment assets DEBEE 8,406,655 4,069,631 1,245,953 13,722,239
Inter-segment elimination D EPEHE S (452,700)
Unallocated assets: ROMLEE :
Property, plant and equipment 4% - iR k& 399,161
Deferred tax assets FERIBE B 69,739
Prepayments and other TEfRT R E b FE U
receivables HRIE 22,599
Amounts due from related FE R RRES 5 2 IE
parties 586
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIE S 541,657
Other financial assets at fair BATEF ABZE
value through profit or loss Hib B i & &= 34,030
Total assets BERE 14,337,311
Segment liabilities DEPEE 6,152,129 1,048,500 328,092 7,528,721
Inter-segment elimination 7 BB E (452,700)
Unallocated liabilities: RAOMLALE -
Other payables oA e 30E 8,896
Amounts due to related parties  FE{ EEEE 5 k18 268,108
Current tax liabilities REHIEAE 649,015
Convertible bonds and notes AIEIRES RER 1,103,771
Derivative PTERB T A 23,378
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBA G 173,604
Borrowings B 15,546
Total liabilities Fy=] 9,318,339
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. TEEE
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEENMsBEB )
Industrial
towns Property Property
development  development leasing Total
EXMEER YIEER YIERE &&r
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2017 M2017%12831H
Segment assets DEREE 6,695,990 5,375,005 1,330,051 13,401,046
Inter-segment elimination D EBEHE S (360,260)
Unallocated assets: ROBLEE :
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1¥ - BiE &R 405,005
Deferred tax assets RERIBE B 83,836
Prepayments and other TR R E A FE U
receivables IE 35,177
Amounts due from related FE U BRES 5 IE
parties 1,795
Bank balances and cash RITHER RS 147,813
Total assets AR 13,714,412
Segment liabilities DEPBE 5,685,180 2,225,357 305,956 8,216,493
Inter-segment elimination 7 EBEHE S (360,260)
Unallocated liabilities: ROBLAE :
Other payables H b e FA 8,417
Amounts due to related parties [/~ B T 208 295,644
Current tax liabilities mEHIEAEE 428,809
Convertible bonds and notes A ERES KRR 661,424
Derivative PTEMBIA 59,554
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBAG 81,541
Borrowings EEN 15,555
Total liabilities Rrafs 9,407,177

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

6. Segment Information (continue)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain property, plant and equipment, deferred tax
assets, certain prepayments and other receivables, certain
amounts due from related parties, certain bank balances and cash
and other financial assets at FVTPL, all other assets are allocated
to segment assets; and

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain other payables, certain amounts due to related
parties, current tax liabilities, convertible bonds and notes,
derivative, deferred tax liabilities and certain borrowings, all other
liabilities are allocated to segment liabilities.

Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2018

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

2 EEE @)
AHAEN S HEHE)
RAFED BERNEA BHRARTE

s KREUFREEMELANEE(BRES
THWE BEE®RE ELHRAE
E - & TIRMNFAEREMEKIE
TR 30R - B TRITHAR
KB ARRAFEFTABSNE M
MBHEE)IN  MERGEESES
DEEE &

s KREUPAEEMELANEE(BRES
THMENTRIE - & TR BT R
o n@HAAE  JEBREFLRE
B TAMB IR  REHRIBEEIN
RETEFN  FEEMEEDE

ENHALE -

HitbpZEE
B ZE2018F12A31HLLEE
FFAD SBIBR D B EERNE 5B

segment assets
Industrial
towns Property Property Segment
development  development |easing total Elimination ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
EETERR NERR WEHE A ik k2 AOE &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AEET T AEET T ARET T ARETT
Addition to non-current assets FErEEERNEM 62,003 - 9,180 71183 - - 71183
Interests n associates ﬁg‘mﬁﬁ% 118,697 153,945 - 272,642 - - 272,642
Interest n a joint venture -HAELANER 60,313 - - 60,313 - - 60,313
Interest income # JWW\ 102,388 8,089 1,004 111,481 - 8,135 119,616
Interest expense flegi
~ Charge to the proft orloss -BEER 108,690 - - 108,690 - 85,741 194,431
- Capitalisation ~EAf 239,591 50,390 - 289,981 - - 289,981
Loss on disposal of property, RENE  BER
plant and equipment RENER (325) - - (325) - - (325)
Share of profits of associates lEBEN NG 5,184 (1,561) = 3,623 = = 3,623
Share of profits of a joint venture Eh—AEAANE 589 - - 589 - - 589
Depreciation and amortisation HERES 6,094 14,763 4,439 25,296 - 18473 43,769
Change in fair value of RENEATHE
investment properties 2 = - (709) (709) - - (709)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continueq) 6. DEEEw@
Other segment information (continued) Hih o EEE®)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZE2017F12A31B LFE
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or stADERIEER S DR EER S F
segment assets
Inalustrial
towns Property Property Segment
(evelopment  development leasing total Elimination Unallocated ~ Consolidated
EXMELR NFER NERE P kgl AR 4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Addition to non-current assets FRDEENEM 9982 279957 2970 292909 - 35,857 648,766
Interests in associates W&% ERANER 86,450 173,586 - 260,036 - - 260036
Interestin a joint venture R-HAENAER 59724 - - 59,724 - - 59724
Interest income FBHA 147,774 4720 91 152,585 (74,056) 19,719 98,248
Interest expense FlEXH
~Charge tothe profitor loss -BERME 28,411 - - 28,411 - 65,837 334,448
- Capitalisation v 286,543 74,055 - 360598 (74,056) - 286,542
Gain on disposal of property, REWZ BER
plant and equipment Byl 89 - - 89 - 12 101
Share of profits of associates I 2178 36771 - 5,85 - - 5855
Share of losses of ajoint venture ~ EA—HALATEA (248) - - (248) - - (248)
Depreciation & 5,936 3190 2,961 11,687 - 1,295 12982
Change in fair value of RENFATE
investment properties 29 = = (4353) (4:353) - - (8359

R R EETEEE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continue) 6. TEEEwm
Information about major customers EREITEEZENER
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the wEERME AR EB W AI0BIA FREER
Group's revenug is as follows: WA

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Customer A2 EEA 875,314 N/AN S A
Customer B2 =EB? 562,186 N/AA S A
Customer C2 BEC? 453,106 N/AA S A
Customer D2 BFED? N/ATE A1 834,887
Customer E2 BFE N/ATE A1 551,273
1,890,606 1,386,160
Notes: Bi5E
1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s 1. HEERRAEEREERAI0%BAT
revenue.
2. Income arising from land development arrangements. 2. T HhFASIE B YA o
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of operations AREBREZRAEHEEEREES IS
of the relevant group entities is derived solely in Mainland China. Non- RINREFE R AERE R A - A%
current assets of the Group by location of assets are all located in Bz & EM B S ENIER B & E R 2 B0
Mainland China. FAFR B A b, o
7. Other Income and Expenses 7. SR ARZH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Other income: HAKA -
Interest income on bank deposits SRITFERFISWA 21,830 44,372
Interest income on trade receivables and B 5 & H A FEWGRIEFILE,
other receivables WA 89,139 49,545
Interest income on amounts due from FE L — & RS 3 ROE A S
a related party WA 8,647 4,331
Government grants (note) BT B (B =) 16,700 5,862
Others Hih 34,215 22,858
170,531 126,968
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

7. Other Income and EXpenses (continued) 7. EMRARNEZH @
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12B31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETT
Other expenses: HihzH :
Litigation settlement fee (note 48) AR E B (M97148) (40,000) -
Donations b=l (15,089) (2,000)
Others HAth (4,007) (234)
(59,096) (2,234)
Note: The amounts mainly represented the grants from the local government Mzt ZeREZRASEREMCERREY
authority for contributions to local economic development by the Group. BB B E BT ERPIES BB
8. Other Gains and Losses 8. Hfttlzm K E51E
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFT
Net gains and losses FW s R 1R
Exchange (losses) gains, net b 3 5 (818 s (19,510) 43,461
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BEEMB A AW 3,037 -
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, BEWMZE - HER&ED
plant and equipment, net F(EE) ke (325) 101
Others EHAh, 719 1,062
(16,079) 44,624

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

9. Finance Costs 9. BMEHNA
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Interests on bank loans RITEFHFE (169,521) (160,201)
Interests on other loans HERRFE (203,453) (346,850)
Interest on convertible AEEIRES REBRMNFE
bonds and notes (note 33) (PH3E33) (109,676) (103,300)
Interests on related party loans R B FE (1,762) (10,639)
Total borrowing costs ER N L] (484,412) (620,990)
Less: Amount capitalised in in progress land B SFE T HBERIER Y
development arrangements =% N g 239,591 212,487
Amount capitalised in properties FEREPMENERNL
under development for sale ik ] 50,390 74,055
(194,431) (334,448)
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally is RERNMBEFEHERENMEERB AT
7.97% (2017: 8.78%) per annum for the current year. F7.97% (20174 : 8.78%) °
10. Impairment Losses, Net of Reversal 10. WEEE - HBREE
Year ended 31 December
HZE128310ILEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Impairment losses recognised on: HERR(EIRL
— Other receivables — H U IR 11,302 -
11,302 =
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December HE2018F 12 A31H I FE B BRI ETE
2018 are set out in note 37. FEIBEEMIRE37 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

11.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

11. REEF

RERMPIGRGEA) TS RRSFH

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Directors’ emoluments EEHM(BIERD
(including share-based payment expenses) SRER) 26,095 12,001
Staff costs 8T RA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMER 204,130 140,350
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RIREFETEI R 15,425 9,959
Share-based payment expenses fRipZ & A 43,370 5,191
Total staff costs BT ABRE(BE
(including Directors’ emoluments) EEHM) 289,020 167,501
Less: Amount capitalised in progress B ST HFARIEE MEAL
land development arrangements ik} (21,715) (16,614)
Amount capitalised in properties under HERRPMENERL
development for sale x| (2,575) (3,903)
264,730 146,984
Rental income from property leasing classified — HIEAREYENYERE
as investment properties FriSES A (53,895) (36,840)
Less: Direct operating expenses for property B MEREEECERY
leasing 19,244 19,320
(34,651) (17,520)
Cost of properties sold EEMIHERR A 522,228 113,246
Cost of land development arrangements T IR B A AN 1,022,432 836,376
Operating lease rental expense LEHEHESHS 15,350 12,171
Auditor's remuneration Z AN S 6,365 4,238
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - BB REETTE 42,192 12,982

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12. 2= - FE{THAERAN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals B =5 A T HEEN
Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were EffSENARRESHMOT
as follows:
Contribution
Salaries to retirement Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme related bonus expense Total
E2ic RINER REHH
He HitfEH SIS MERL ROXAER CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TT AR¥MTn AR¥TR AR%®TT AR%¥Tx
Year ended 31 December HZ2018%128318 1t
2018 £E
Executive directors: NIES
Wang Jianjun (Note () TRE (W) - 658 52 240 - 950
Yang Yun B - 359 39 216 4,819 5,433
Wang Yagang B - 359 39 216 4,819 5,433
Huang Peikun HEH - 4,364 16 2,910 4,819 12,109
Wang Wei 5 - 1,089 16 - - 1,105
Non-executive director: FHTES
Zhao Ying izt - 263 13 - - 276
Independent non-executive BUIEHTES
directors:
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 263 - - - - 263
Hsieh Yafang EIE: 263 - - - - 263
Wang Yijiang E=L 263 - - - - 263
789 7,092 175 3,582 14,457 26,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12.2E - FE{THAERAN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals EEHATHEMN 2
Emoluments continued)
Contribution
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits  performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme  related bonus expense

Fem RINGET KA
e Hftid] sTRIHERR WiEEL  ROhXNER
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR

Total

i

RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR

Year ended 31 December BZ22017%128318 1k

2017 £E
Executive directors: HTEE:
Wang Jianjun (Note (j) FEZE(BIFE) = 529 45 353 - 927
Yang Yun D = 356 32 216 476 1,080
Wang Yagang FLH - 356 2 216 476 1,080
Huang Peikun B = 4,000 15 2,666 476 7,157
Chen Lianggjiu (Note (i) EEGAGRED) - 132 7 80 - 219
Wang Wei (Note (i) B2 GBI - 501 4 17 - 522
Non-executive director: FHTES
Zhao Ying izs = 250 13 - - 263
Independent non-executive BUFRTES:
directors:
Zhang Xiaomei (Note (i) R (F k) 216 - - - - 26
Wei Yu (Note (i) T (REE() 216 - - - - 26
Hsien Yafang (Note (i) a3 (R 3 - - - - 35
Wang Yijiang (Note (i) F (e GiD) % - - - - %
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert FokiE 251 - - . _ 251
753 6,124 148 3548 1,428 12,001
Notes: ()  Mr. Wang Jianjun is also the president (regarded as chief MiEE:() ERERENAARRBIR(RIEE

executive) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above also include those for services rendered by him as the
president.

(i)~ Mr. Chen Lianggiu has resigned with effect from 17 March
2017. Ms. Wang Wei has been appointed as an executive
director with effect from 10 November 2017.

(i)~ Ms. Zhang Xiaomei and Mr. Wei Yu have resigned with
effect from 10 November 2017. Ms. Hsieh Yafang and Mr.
Wang Yijiang have been appointed as the independent non-
executive directors with effect from 10 November 2017.

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

12,85 FETBRAEBRAN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals
Emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of directors of the Company shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or respective subsidiaries’
performance for such financial year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals include 3 individuals disclosed as
the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
(year ended 31 December 2017: 3 individuals). The emoluments of the
remaining 2 highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2018 (year ended 31 December 2017: 2 individuals) are as follows:

BEaHATHEHEM @

it ST A AR AR A B B SR A B = 22 ER
BB AR B R AR B H) E R AR
B

RALRA R B A B A T A M R
R -

FfuBEHFAL
HZE2018F12A31HLFE AU
ATBEMEEAANREEN=((BZE
201712 ANBIEFE : =) AL - #HE
2018F 12 A31HIEFE « M (H=E
201712 A3MB IEFE : M) &E=H AL
BB T -

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
Salaries and other benefits e REAET 719 680
Discretionary performance-related bonus R BYIEIEAL 456 432
Share-based payment expense nEENE=d:E! 9,638 952
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme IRREFFTEI 3R 39 32
10,852 2,096

Annual Report 2018 %



166

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

12. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 12.2E - FE{THAERAN

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals
Emoluments (continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

BREHATHHN @
AUBRSHEALE)

WHARBEEME NI HMEE RS
FBETABIAT -

Number of employees

BT A
2018 2017
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") 1,000,001 to 7S ([ 7% 1)1,000,001 T2
HK$1,500,000 1,500,0007T - 2
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 751#6,000,001TE
6,500,0007T 2 -

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, none of the directors
of the Company nor the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments.

Saved as disclosed above, the directors of the Company confirm that
no housing or other allowances, benefits in kind, contributions to
pension scheme, discretionary bonus, inducement to join the Group,
compensation for loss of any office in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group has been made to the five
highest paid individuals during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
nil).

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

13.Income Tax Expense

13. FiE BB

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETT
Current tax: B HARIE -

- PRC enterprise income tax — B EMEH (470,038) (415,415)
— Land appreciation tax — T HIRER (56,863) (3,364)

— Over (under) provision for — AR ERRE RS
prior year (BETR) 4,276 (5,395)
(522,625) (424,174)
Deferred tax (note 22) IRIERITE (FTE22) (135,416) 7,478
(658,041) (416,696)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on
28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both
years. No Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s subsidiaries had no
assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

20183 A21H » BB ZEEBMA 17¢2017
FERTE(EET) (B75) GBI E 2= ) ([CEHI
BR)])  SIAFGHMAGE - ZIEHE
2018328 AR B AAE R
BATRE - REMBFEHRE - §EH%
CEEREBE2ASTHFBEESEH
8.25% * MiB BB 2B B THFIBEEEH
F116.5% © TREMATRGIE N EEEE
1) 751 T 45 2 4 LA 116.5% ) B TE Tt SRR

ARAEERR  BEremAFSHEZH
BROEHEFEMBERRILBEERY
2 - RMEFEERNEHREBEED
HETIERBUATIA16.5%5TH » RALE
AT VE O B 88 7 ) b B 8 SR i I 2
FEMEHR - At MBHRRARER
BB NSTEL A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

13. Income Tax EXpense (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang VAST Urban Development
Co., Ltd. (“Langfang VAST"), Langfang Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and Langfang Yonglun Property Development
Co., Ltd., were subject to the enterprise income tax of Mainland China
at a tax rate of 25% on a verification collection basis at deemed profit
which represents 10% or 15% of its revenue after adjusting the non-
deductible subsidies paid to customers (enterprises establishing their
businesses in Longhe Park) prior to 1 January 2014 in accordance with
authorised tax valuation method (% #4k) approved by local tax
bureau pursuant to the applicable PRC tax regulations (the “Deemed
Profit Basis”). From 1 January 2014, the three subsidiaries of the Group
mentioned above no longer enjoyed the tax benefit of the authorised
tax valuation method. Certain income tax calculated on Deemed Profit
Basis of unrealised profit earned in prior years was realised in 2017 and
2018.

The enterprise income tax rate for subsidiaries of the Group located in
Mainland China was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
25%).

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (FR2E A R £ F1B] + i3S EH E 1T 14651)
effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (FRZE A R HF0E £ b
WEREITIEME A effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
of the Group (being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (Ei@iZ#(F =) if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

13. i8HMAXZ @

BEFREASE  AEEETHBAA
BRI T AR E TR E B R A E ([ B
Z&])  BYMEBREHEZRESR AR
KBTI oK @ B E F B A R A Rl AR
TEBUEZE » DA 75 B A5 B L B4% B &k
WA - R EE A (B201441 A 18 Bl
KL FRARNEEFNEERFHNT
AR B A B AR 1E 9 10% 8k 15% WA ) 1%
25%7%t R BN B N T EFT SR o #HE
20141 A818 » Lt =FHAEENHE LD
AITEZEREHRMFIEER - Kitig
FR LA BT 4F 2 B EIR ) oA 2 3R 02 ) 89 58 i A
AL ENATERAE2017FF12018F B -

HE2018F12A318 ILFE » AEBUR
FEABAH B RTINS EMSHRRER A
25%(20174F : 25%) °

BIE1994F1 A1 8 BAERAK R EARIEAM
B 4 38 (B 1 B 17 1651 )FN199541 A 27 B
RBAE RN R EE A R LA B + S B R B 1T
BAIERAREFE - B TISER LA E
BRI R FIE B 4458 20% M) LB IZ R E £
MEEBE AL ERBEASENEA
T E AR EREARA(EEMEMER
BRAERE R MY RS HE R0
B EIR T IR ER0%E0%RER
SR 4 40+ 1 HE (B B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

13. Income Tax EXpense (continued)

13.

The tax charge can be reconciled to profit before tax as follows:

Pyl A

BIASZ H AT R B A a A S AR IA T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Profit before tax FR A% AT g A 1,779,388 1,497,530
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate BB ZEATEH25%T B HY
of 25% 18 (444,847) (374,383)
Effect on Deemed Profit Basis of enterprise T EEFTIS R 3R i A 2
income tax 7 5,708 346
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A HB A RS E
tax purpose (7,363) (3,451)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised as TR AR IAE ERTIIR
deferred tax assets EBEORETE (18,650) (13,279)
Tax effect of deductible temporary TAER BIELERIBEEN
difference not recognised as EIEwilk Sy Th
deferred tax assets 7 (35,489) =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AT ARERBIRLETRE
recognised as deferred tax assets BEMHRIBEE 32,366 6,476
Tax effect of share of profits of associates FE(GEE SN Tl A B R fS 28 906 1,464
Tax effect of share of profits (losses) of Eh—EEaERRmH
ajoint venture (BR)MBRBETE 147 (62)
Effect of tax free policy of Cayman Islands FESHENEBRZHS R
and BVI Bk 2 (51,455) 4,960
Tax effect of planned dividend distribution R B A b T 219 R A R Y
out of Mainland China R E (105,655) (30,081)
LAT + IR (E R (56,863) (3,364)
Tax effect of LAT TS ER AT R 14,216 841
Over (under) provision for prior year BEFEBREREREETR) 4,276 (5,395)
Others A 4,662 (768)
Income tax expense S fi A (658,041) (416,696)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

14.

15.

Dividend

A final dividend of HK$0.11 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2018 amounting to approximately HK$181,636,000 in
aggregate has been proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 will be paid out from the Company’s share premium
and retained profits. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
such distribution is in compliance with the Articles of Association
adopted by the Company and also the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

During the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.25 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 amounting to
HK$412,810,000 in aggregate (equivalent to RMB348,040,000) was
declared and paid out from the Company’s share premium.

An interim dividend of HK$0.05 per share in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2018 amounting to HK$82,562,000 in aggregate
(equivalent to RMB72,652,000) was declared and paid out from the
Company's share premium.

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

14.

15.

R E
HZE2018F 12 A31 B I FERARHR 2
FRRARE0.117T - BET A4 181,636,000
TC o IBRFEBEAARESRE VAR
HARMKRFAFAS ERBREE - &
Z2018F 12 AN B L FEMREBRARR
AR AR B RARDEFBESZE o KIEAR
RAEEMNER  EBDRFAEAAFK
MABBERBAARFASHEARESE
22Z (1961FHEIRS » KRB RERR) ©

FEREHRE - BE2017F12A8318 LF
EHREANE B FRAB 0257 © BaETBEE
412,810,000 7t ( #1 & A R ¥ 348,040,000
L) BEEREEARARBRAEES X
1 o

HZ201846 A308 LEA A A M Bk 8.5
B ME0.05TT + K83 ¥ 82,562,0007T (4
& NR#72,652,0007E) + BAEE IR R
ARBAEBR A o

BRER
ARTEENEEFRELRBERFR
ER AT RIREF R -

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTT
Earnings &R
Profit for the year attributable to owners REREARFmE
of the Company for the purpose NARER AEEER
of basic earnings per share gl 1,110,019 1,081,809
Adjustment to the profit for the year attributable  ZtERESE RS
to owners of the Company for the purpose of KARIER AEMLFEA
diluted earnings per share i 1| ) B
— impact of convertible bonds issued — NRBIFTEITAI SR ES S
by the Company EZ 50,309 8,658
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RERESRAm S
the Company for the purpose of NARER AEEER
diluted earnings per share pavall 1,160,328 1,090,467

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



{14l

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

15. Earnings Per Share continued)

15. SRR EBF @)

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETT
Number of shares e
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEREARZFMEH
for the purpose of basic earnings per share e E AR N 8 1,647,587 1,637,641
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EBEA# ST RRMTE
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 212,379 135,965
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for gt &A% #EE Z i = #0 Bk
the purpose of diluted earnings per share i F5 X 1,859,966 1,773,606
The profit attributable to owners of the Company and the number of AT EHZE2018F 12A3NBIEFEFR
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share BE RTINS AR REA AR &
for the year ended 31 December 2018 had been adjusted assuming LEREE EREAERESERA
that the conversion of the convertible bonds has been effective from 1 20181 A1 B BAEMMIEL A% o
January 2018.
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended ATEH ZE2018F K 2017F 12 A31 8 LEF
31 December 2018 and 2017 does not assume the exercise of share E R G RRE S & 7 I SRR AR D BT
options because the adjusted exercise price of those options was - RERFBZZERMDBAETEBESESRZ
higher than the average market price for shares for both periods. M EHAEE T RN TTISER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. 915 - MERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Motor fittings and
buildings vehicles  equipment Total
HETHR RE - H#E
EEY RE & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥TF T
Cost AR
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1A418 49,269 23,470 14,758 87,497
Additions NE 635,720 7,083 5,963 648,766
Disposals HeE - (379) (2,314) (2,693)
At 31 December 2017 R2017512 318 684,989 30,174 18,407 733,570
Additions NE 867 2,717 11,679 15,263
Transfer from investment properties @& [ #% & ) % 225,070 - - 225,070
Disposals & - (987) (289) (1,276)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE AT - - (33) (33)
At 31 December 2018 20184128318 910,926 31,904 29,764 972,594
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2017 H201741 818 (2,522) (4,710) (8,686) (15,918)
Provided for the year FNEE (2,353) (5,287) (5,342) (12,982)
Eliminated on disposals S B - 324 1,959 2,283
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12 8318 (4,875) (9,673) (12,069) (26,617)
Provided for the year FRREE (29,402) (7,485) (5,305) (42,192)
Eliminated on disposals o B B 8 - 210 134 344
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - 3 3
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H (34,277) (16,948) (17,237) (68,462)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831H 876,649 14,956 12,527 904,132
At 31 December 2017 2017%12H318 680,114 20,501 6,338 706,953

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



173

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

16. Property, Plant and Equipment continueq)

17.

16. Y% - MERRE =)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual value, at the
following rates per annum:

4.75%-4.85%
19%-19.4%
19%-19.4%

Leasehold land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB42,066,000 (31 December
2017: RMB44,452,000) were pledged to a bank to secure certain
mortgage loan to the Group, details of which are set out in note 32(a).

As at 31 December 2017, a trust loan with outstanding principal of
RMB175,000,000 was secured by the Group’s investment properties
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB250,000,000. While
during the year of 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to
replace these investment properties with the buildings in property,
plant and equipment to secure the loan, which carrying amount was
RMB349,453,000 as at 31 December 2018, details of which are set out
in note 32(b).

Investment Properties

Ltz - BB MR IR B R Et R ERIER
BEENERERATEFLERRNE

TAE i R EEY) 4.75%-4.85%
B 19%-19.4%
RE - HERRE 19%-19.4%

201812 A31H  AKBREENAR
#42 066,0007C (20174128318 : AR
44,452,00070) KI¥D % ~ Wk M a& 14 & 4
FRIT - WS AEENE TRBER
B EES2() °

R20174F12A318 » —£XEEXEAA
R #175,000,0007C K& s EE KB AR EH
8R E{E 49 & A B #250,000,000 7T K 3 B 4
EEE - R2018F R AEERAWE
WEREEANEEYAEREZSREDE
WET S — IR AEBRE R - R20184F
12 A31 B HEEE A A K% 349,453,000
7T AR EENHIEEI2(D) ©

17. REY%E

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
=354 BRP
REWE REYZE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARKETTT ARKEFTT ARBFT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2017 201791818 1,105,068 142,700 1,247,768
Additions AN 15,669 1,887 17,556
Transfer to properties under HIGERRESP
development for sale ES (86,000) - (86,000)
Decrease in fair value N ERD
— Unrealised (loss) gain — REIR (BRI (5,066) 713 (4,353)
At 31 December 2017 M20179F12A31H 1,029,671 145,300 1,174,971
Additions AN 2,942 1,566 4,508
Transfer to properties under I - BE KEER
property, plant and equipment S (225,070) - (225,070)
Decrease in fair value NEERD
— Unrealised gain (loss) —ARER W= (BX) 19,657 (20,366) (709)
At 31 December 2018 72018412 831H 827,200 126,500 953,700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

17. Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model, and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of respective reporting
periods by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (“Savills
Valuation”), an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB598,300,000 (31 December 2017:
nil) were pledged to a bank to secure certain mortgage loan to the
Group, details of which are set out in note 32(a).

Certain investment properties (31 December 2017: RMB85,600,000)
pledged to secure a bank loan (31 December 2017: RMB120,000,000) in
prior year are free from restriction as the loan was fully repaid in 2018,
details of which are set out in note 32(a).

Certain investment properties (31 December 2017: RMB55,700,000)
pledged to secure certain other loan (31 December 2017:
RMB219,000,000) in prior year are free from restriction as the loan was
fully repaid in 2018, details of which are set out in note 32(b).

Certain investment properties (31 December 2017: RMB250,000,000)
pledged to secure certain trust loan (31 December 2017:
RMB175,000,000) in prior year are free from restriction as the collateral
was substituted by certain buildings in properties, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2018, details are set out in note 32(b).

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

17. REWHE »)

REEL THANE ML EHEEARIE
SMEREERAFEEAGE LA
DEEMINRSIEYR

AEFREYMENAFERSHREAME
REME-AFHANGEREXERE
RAR([F—KFBAEHGED FHORE
BFTE o (S{ERD A EA 5 B B 1 78
A AR EEMERD -

RETEVRAFER - YRORLT REE
FR#RBARAE o

R2018F 12318 » AEEREMEET
E 49 A R #598,300,0007T (20174 12 A 31
B : &) BEIRFRITUWERAQ RS T
BER - AEFIBERHTES2Q) ©

REFRBESRITER (20177412 A4318 ¢
A R #120,000,0007T ) & #Hr9 & FTHE
Y3 (20174812 A318 © AR#85,600,000
70) A E R E R 2018 4 A 2R (& 12 1 AR BR IR
#l - FEERHIFEI2() ©

REFRIEE THEMER(20177F12A
31H : AR #219,000,0007T ) & # &
ETHREME(7EI2A31A : AR
55,700,0007T ) B B 5172018 F B S8 32
FRBRIR & - FHIEERMIEES2(D)

2018 F 12 A3MBERNERBHEE T W
¥ BB REEEEMRN - B BRI
EBEEELER(2017F12A318 + A
R ¥175,000,00070) R E TR EME
(201712 A318 : AR#¥250,000,0007T)
ERERR S - FHEERMIEES20D)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

17. Investment Properties (continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

17. REWE o)
TERIZSIRE LD T A AR (5
B P B PR (R B A B0 ) B
ARIBIE A FE B8 AR Bz
EEATESES BODTESE -

At 31 December 2018 7A2018%F12H31H

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
AEERERENE ATEER HERNRTERALE EATABRRALE AUBEEANERATENER
Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account of yield Aslight increase in the term yield used would
RENE-BRT E=R method (term and generated from comparable properties and result in a significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) adjustment to reflect the certainty of term measrement of the investment properties,
WAEA(LE (F8R income securect and to be received, of range and vice versa.
&%) from 3.5% to 5%. [FRARBRERT - ASEHRANXATE
Tl ARAREEIFEENNERE  EAETR R4
RERIERERABERORBRAREL S
B NFISNET -
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual Aslight increase in the reversionary yield used
(1) Termyield; unit market rental income and unit market value ~ would result in a Significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionaryyield;and o the comparable properties, of range from 4%~ measurement of the investment properties and vice
(3)  Market unit rent of 105.5%. Vrsa.
individual unit SR SRR ENRNER ST [FRABRRGRT - WeEHRENEATET
IZRAZEA AEWARELTE - N F4%Z255% EAGETH  R2MA
() EBkhs
Q BENGE R Market unit rent, using direct market comparable A slight increase in the market unit rent used would
@ ERIEfHTSENES  and taking into account of time, location resultin a significant increase in the fair value
and other indlividual factors such as size and meastrement of the investment properties and vice
quantum of properties, of range from Versa.
RMBO.6/50.m./day to RMB2.1/5g.m./day. (FRATAE SR - BIEEBRANRXAT
RS FREETATHIER R BEEARLA - R -
STRER  HEALBEAESR - Mz
NREE  NTERETARARK6TE
SRETHRARE2IT
Investment properties - held Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodtion valui, using direct market Anincrease in the accommodation value used
for rental/under development £ The key input is: comparable and taking into account of time, would result in an increase in the fair value
REME—HEER /g (1) Site unitrate location and individual factors Slich as ize measurement of the investment properties, and
HEHE AT ERAREA and quantum of properties, of range from Vice versa.

() PHENER

RVIB544/50.m t0 RVB1 240/5.m.
BELE  FRERTATRLEERR
HTRERE  HERENEE - flnmER) R
2 NTSEARAREMTEETRR
ARE1 2407 °

WARBEELELT  AESARENEAT
[BEELA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

17. Investment Properties (continued)

At 31 December 2017

17. REWHE o)

2017412 H31H

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
AEERERENE AYEER HERREERARE EXTABRRRAE AUEREA\HBEATENBR
Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalisation Term yield, taking into account of yield generated A slight increase in the term yield used would
REWF-ERT £=8 method (term and from comparable properties and adjustment to resultin a significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) reflect the certainty of term income Secured and to - measurement of the investment properties,
WABKIE (FHREEE)  bereceived, of range from 3.5% t0 5.0%. and vice versa.
Tl - SRR RNFEEONER (R AE R - BleBRRENEATE
BREBIERERDFRROE AN HERETH R -
TifEt 88 - N F35%Z50%
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit A slight increase in the reversionary yield used
(1) Termyield; market rental income and unit market valug of the  would result in a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionaryyield;and  comparable properties, of range from 4.0% to 5.5%.  measurement of the investment properties and vice
(3 Marketunitrent of BElG HRTELANENFEENTARS  versa
individual unit WA RETiE - 1 F4.0%255% (TR AE RN - AeBRRaNEAT 6
TEGNHER SRS R -
() ek Market unit rent, using direct market comparable
0 HEkE R and taking into account of time, location and other A slight increase in the market unt rent used would
@ ERBuHDEENLAS  indiidual factors such as size and quantumof  resultin a Significant increase in the fair value
properties, of range from RMB0.58/sq.m./dayto  measurement of the investment properties and vice
RMB2.2/50.m./dy. Versa.
Rl FREETATHIBEE R RATREMRS R - AIeEHRENEAT
STRER  BENAMERRE - fIMEANR  EREAELA - R2HA
2 NTERETARARK0STZEA
FERRAREL2T -
Investment properties - held for rental/ ~ Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodation value, using direct market Anincrease in the accommodation value used would
Under development E= The key input is: comparable and taking into account of time, location result in an increase in the fair valug measurement
RENE-#ELE /AR (1) Steunitrate and individual factors sLch as ize and quantum — of the investment properties, and vice versa.
BRUEETEGAZEA:  of properties, of range from RMBS30/sg.mto (FFREALELT  AleSNRENELTEs
() FHEMER RVIB1,075/50.m. (HFTRFBENE LA - R -

BENE  RABRTTRIEVAR RARER
HERERNRE - BvARA ) REE MBS
RARBSOTESTHRARE 0757 °

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17.

18.

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation
of the Group's investment properties. At the end of each reporting
period, management of the Group worked closely with the independent
qualified professional valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived from observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will
adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there

17. REWE o)

DNHEFERMAERRE

EHAEEREMEN D FEMER @ K
SERBAHEROT S A BRRIER -
BEF—RNBARE  AEESREE
TYRBEREXMGEMEAEENREYE
ETHE - REREAMERE - AEE
MEEBRBYSBERIXGEMETA
5 MBYREEEENHERITEE =
BME =R R FETENRAZE - A&
s g EERBREAE BB ARE - B
RS ARER BRRTS EM A BER
BERS - MEAFE - MNBABE - A&
EReRASEFEF=RBARBNMGER

is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the it o MEAEATFEEBEAEE  Alen
fluctuations will be reported to management of the Group. AEEEEEREEEESNRE -
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years. FA - WEE A S HE= -
Interests in Associates 18. HHtE A R MVE R
At 31 December
MW12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Bt A AR ERR A —JE LT 244,256 236,256
Share of post-acquisition profits FEAGUEETR m T H0BR
net of dividends received BUARE 41,223 36,617
Impairment l0ss (note a) T EEE (MfsEa) (12,837) (12,837)
272,642 260,036

Note:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2010, as requested by other equity
holders of Huayuan and agreed by the Group, Langfang VAST unilaterally
made additional cash contribution to Huayuan as further capital injection
into Huayuan amounting to RMB19,750,000 with shareholding interest in
Huayuan unchanged. An impairment loss amounting to RMB12,837,000 was
recognised by the Group based on an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the Group's interest in Huayuan during the year ended 31 December
2010.

G

a.  HE2010F12A3MBIFE @ BEREM
BEFEANERRAEERE © BHA
REHENRESH AR AZEREINEE A
R #19,750,0007T R B+ =R ) AR #E 0 4%
BE o NEBEEE2010F128318 IEF
EERAEBERERN T IE S
fhEHRER AR %512,837,0007TH R EIB K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

18. Interests in Associates (continueq) 18. I E N TN ER @)

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

B WS B RS - AEE G A TR

associates: NG
Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ Equity interest
Name of company (note i) establishment/acquisition  registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ARIER(H) R/ W SR A BRTRAR/AMER REEELER TEEK
At 31 December
M2B31A
2018 2017
% %
Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating Mainland China RMB117,000,000 35 35 Heatenergy generation
€0, Ltd. ("Huayuan’) 21 Auguist 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) AT
BTEREE RN ERAR HEIRI ARH117,000,00070
(E23)) 007687218 (BRsHER)
Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Property leasing and
Co., Ltd. ("Kaihong") 10 December 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) property development
BTE AR E B ERAR HEIR AR 100,000,000 NERENNELE
(%) 20105128108 (BRRER)
Langfang Shengshi Zhiye Real Estates Mainland China RMB10,000,000 20 20 Property development
Development Co. Lid. 10 May 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) NERRE
("Shengshi Zhiye") HElR AR10,000,0007
Bt E XN EREARAR 2017658108 (BRFMER)
([mtrEZ])
Central Technology Development (Beijing) ~ Mainland China RMB100,000,000 30 30 Technology development
Co. Lid. 27 uly 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) HEERE
REYERBRE (L R)ERAT HEIRi, AR 100,000,000
017F7/278 (BRFMER)
Wuhan Aviclub Real Estate Development Mainland China RMB36,917,100 30 30 Property development
Co. Ltd. ("Wuhan Aviclub’) 17 May 2017 (Paic-up registered capital) NERRE
LEEREM R BERARAR PEIRi, ARE36917,1007T
([REERE) 017958178 (BRMER)
Sinosteel Metals & Resources Co. Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 46 46 Trade business
(*Sinomerco”) 1 December 2017 (Paid-up registered capital) EVESS
HfineARERAR HEIR, AR 100,000,007
([Fag)) N17512A18 (BRER)
Hubei Eche Supply Chain Management Mainland China RMB100,000,000 10 - Trade business
Co,, Lid. (*Hubei Eche”)note i) 25 July 2018 (Paic-Up registered capital) Bo5%
BB ERERERAR FEIRI, A& 100,000,007
(I3 ) (Boti) 1857258 (BIRaMER)
Note: RS

English name for identification only.

ii. The Group has significant influence on managerial decision-making of Hubei
Eche by accrediting a director on its board of directors. As a result, Hubei
Eche is accounted for as an associate.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

18. Interests in Associates (continued) 18. HiHtE N R MR ()
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material BRAAEEN T BHMA N RN EE R
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below WA o AN E RHE A R Bt A B AR
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements BRI EREER L IERS ST MRERN
prepared in accordance with IFRSs for equity accounting purpose. B TS TRR P TR S 58 ©
Huayuan ZR

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Current assets MENEEE 43,539 119,143
Non-current assets JEmENEE 479,435 368,996
current liabilities mENAaE (160,966) (104,315)
Non-current liabilities ERBAG (179,817) (211,107)
Net assets FEE 182,191 172,717

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Total revenue FEAL N 109,418 99,123
Profit and total comprehensive income REGHRE2E SR EE

for the year 9,474 6,224

Group's share of profit of the associate SEpEEEE QR 3,316 2,178

Dividends received from the associate &IN5 = =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

18. Interests in Associates (continued) 18. B & A RIS ()
Huayuan (Continued) EZR)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB RS B R Bl B R AR A IS R A
the carrying amount of the interest in Huayuan recognised in these RN E RN ERREESRNOT
consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

MA12831H

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETT

Net assets of Huayuan ERNFEE 182,191 172,717
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRE RO A EER

interest in Huayuan 5] 35% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group’s R EE IR R 2 ) BR TE

interest in Huayuan BE 63,767 60,451

Kaihong =
At 31 December
A12831H

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Current assets MENE E 48,362 236,140

Non-current assets EMEEE 540,716 560,032

Current liabilities MEAE (39,025) (239,739)

Non-current liabilities FErREAaE (210,500) (224,000)

Net assets FEE 339,553 332,433

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

18. Interests in Associates (continued)

Kaihong (continued)

18.

e

THS N B AR R ()

Ll |—L|/4Hw‘\‘
i (58)

{]

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283101LEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Total revenue FEAL PN 63,023 63,773

Profit and total comprehensive income AERHNREE W= LEEE

for the year 7,120 21,788
Group's share of profit of the associate EEEEEE QR 2,136 6,537

Dividends received from the associate

WCER B 2 N AR B

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Kaihong recognised in these

consolidated financial statements:

it BA RS B R B B AR A B IR A
ERNN RN RS REELRAT -

At 31 December

M12831H

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREFT

Net assets of Kaihong SIRRFEE 339,553 332,433
Proportion of the Group's ownership AREBRNEHNHEAERER

interest in Kaihong sd ]l 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the Group’s RS E RS 75 ) 2 B BR TED

interest in Kaihong BE 101,866 99,730

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s equity interest of Kaihong with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB101,866,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB99,730,000) were pledged to a non-financial institution in Mainland
China to secure certain mortgage loan to the Group, details of which

are set out in note 32(b).

R2018F 12 318 » A% ER sl 7= 8 AR HE
R T E 49 A R #5101,866,0007T (2017 512
A318 : AR#99,730,0007T) B & # ¥
B A — S RS - (EAAEEER
HTIRBERNER - GEF BN
32(b) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

18. Interests in Associates (continued) 18. HiEtE N R MR ()
Aggregate information of associates that are not ERIFEE KB E A RNELAEFE

individually material

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ART R ARETT
Group's share of losses of associates SEEREE R RIREE (1,829) (2,860)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERZE A R ERY
interests in these associates T AR E AL RE 107,009 99,855
There is no unrecognised share of losses of any associate. RERIEREE R R ERE ©
There is no significant restriction on the ability of the associates to BERANRINREREERES TASE
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay EEREERBRENHEZ D EARS]
advances made by the Group.
19. Interest in a Joint Venture 19. 5 E N FNER
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as follows: AEBR—HEEERBIMREFBFET ¢
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Cost of unlisted investment JE_ETIRE A 60,000 60,000
Share of post-establishment profit (l0ss) B ERF(BR) &R 313 (276)
60,313 59,724

R R EETEEE B2 T China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

19. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 19. HEE QA FHER @)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had interest in the following joint R2018%12A318 » AEBE &L R
venture: TR ARER ¢
Proportion of ownership
interest held by
Place of the Group as
Date of establishment  Fully paid-up/ at 31 December Principal
Name of entity establishment and operation  registered capital FEER12A31H activity
AFER R BHE RUNEERES CHE/ ZRELR BENEERERILS FEER
2018 2017
% %
Hubei International Aviation 8 December 2016 Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 60 60 Investment,

Development Co., Ltd. 2016F12F8H FEI A AR 100,000,0007T
(“Hubei International”)

BB EE R
EERARAR(HILER])

construction,
operation and
leasing
BERME

On 4 December 2016, Langfang VAST entered into a joint venture
agreement (“2016 JV Agreement”) with Shenzhen Shunfeng Airport
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shunfeng”) for the establishment
of Hubei International. The principal activities of Hubei International
are investment, construction service for industrial park, operation
and leasing. Upon establishment, Hubei International is owned as to
60% by Langfang VAST and 40% by Shenzhen Shunfeng. Under the
2016 JV Agreement, unanimous approvals by the directors of Hubei
International are required for decisions on directing the relevant
activities of Hubei International. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group's interest in Hubei International is accounted for as
a joint venture.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSS.

2016512848 @ B RRERY IS #5

BREARAE
SOHAEBIRR &Y
AL B A

(DRINNEE ) 2EE T B
ek ([20165F & it ) »

IR#% - EEREE o KIZ1R - LB

JRB Y1 72 255 15 60% SR Y IR 45 AL 40% © 1R
1®20165F & & e - BNt EEARRIES
ETRRBRENILRBERN—BURB -

RRBEZR

7 NEERHIE B a4

mAARIIE—HAERF] e

BRAAREED

&2 R AN TS E RS

T UTHMBERBLES 2R BARER
BB REEAREOPERET RS

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

19. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 19. 8 E N TNER @
Hubei International S b B R

At 31 December

MW12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current assets mENEE 102,762 101,780
Non-current assets IERBNEE - -
Current liabilities mEAE (2,240) (2,240)
Non-current liabilities B EE - -
Net assets BEFE 100,522 99 540
The above amounts of assets and NEMEBEERBESRE
liabilities include the following: BETYEHE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 2,762 101,780
Year ended 31 December
BE12A318LLFE
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Total revenue I ONL = -
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive AEH A (EE) RE2H
income (expense) for the year zs (B518) 4858 982 414)
Group's share of profit (loss) of the joint venture &£ EfE(L & & A Fles (B518) 589 (248)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB E R R E AR A SRR A
carrying amount of the interest in Hubei International recognised in RO B e AR E B H AR T

these consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

M12H31H

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT

Net assets of Hubei International WL B RS E = 100,522 99,540
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in -~ Zx& B 7 L RS g 5 #

Hubei International MRS LE 60% 60%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Hubei ZN&= B AL BIBR BRE 2R 59

International BREEE 60,313 59,724

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

20.0ther Financial Assets at Fair Value 20.1Z AT @I AEHHNEAME

Through Profit or Loss BEE
31/12/2018
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Investment in a limited partnership fund REREBRESHNIRE 34,030

The loss on fair value change of other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018
was RMB3,212,000.

21@@. Equity Instruments at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income

HZ=2018F 12 A31 8 I FEFTiERIZ A F
Bt \BENEMTBEEATFEZEE

BA A RE3,212,0007T °
N6, B AFEFTAEMEZEEFE
HERATE
31/12/2018
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Unlisted investment: FEEMIRE -
— equity securities —RiEE S

The above unlisted equity investment represents the Group's equity
interest in a private entity established in Mainland China. Upon
application of IFRS 9, the directors of the Company have elected to
designate the investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI as they
believe that the equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.

The fair value change recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018
decreased the Group's other comprehensive income by RMB3,300,000.

21(h. Available-For-Sale Investment

A LI EMBRERERRAEERFEHA
ARSI LA BB A EE - KERBRY
BHELEREIRER  ARAEZTDEE
A T AR E I E /R A FER A
2EKE  RESZEATALIRHIEE
g TEREBA R ETERNERRK

HZE2018F 12 A31H L FERRNAF
BEEHERAEEEMEZAREARE
3,300,0007T °

1. THEEERE

Available-for-sale investment comprise: AHEEERE R
31/12/2017
RMB'000
ARBTT
Unlisted investment: FEETIRE :
— equity securities — RS 3,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

22. Deferred Tax 22 R IE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AT 2 e IS RS BT R IR A SR AT

reporting purposes:

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Deferred tax assets BIERIHE B 69,739 83,836
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIEA E (173,604) (81,541)
The deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised by the Group and EAFARSERROEETIE(BE)E
movements thereon during the year are as follows: ERFEHIT :
Fairvalue ~ Accruedtax  Temporary Fair value Unrealised Profit on Financing
changeon  forplanned differences change profiton ~ transactions Property components
investment dividend  on property Tax ontrade  Impairment  intra-group withan  revaluation in contract
properties ~ distribution sl and LAT losses ~ receivables  ofassets transactions associate reserve Other liabilities Total
g-f
NEHER g5 SERE BENR
REME  HEDR  THEER R pEES C G FIES Gt

NPERS BARHHR  ERER  RAEE  OVER®  AENE & wEd  EhER Ay HEESD At
RMB000 RMB000 RVBO00 RMBI000 RMBI000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RVBO00
ARBTL  ARMTT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARRTr  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR

A1 January 2017 ROTEI B (84,102) - 18751 308 - 6616 30550 - 6013 (019) - (5,163
Crecit (charge)to HAGIRE)BR

proftor loss 1088 (30081) 1208 @ - - 3 1.9 - 357 - 7478
At31 December 2017 ROTERAYA (83014) (30081 60788 301 - 6416 0457 7.9 8013 1239 - 29
Adustment (note 2 B {E2) = = = = = - - - - - 9256 2.5
At lanuary 2018 (estated) ~ R2018%1A1B (EE51) (83014) (30081) 60784 301 - 6516 0457 2129 (8013 129 825 31,551
Credit (charge) toprofitorloss ARG ) B m (1557) (52492) (2460) 13052 (580) (3204) - - 1491 29.25) (135,416)
At 31 December 2018 ROBEIAA (82837) (105,655) 829 551 13082 603% 75 0% 8013 16,140 - (103865)

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

22. Deferred Tax (Continued) 22.

Details of the Group’s unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences are as follows:

ERERIE ()
5 65 8 55 PR BB RSB % TR S R B 2 28
BT

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred RPIEERTE B E R
tax assets HIBEE 158,639 215,108
Deductible temporary differences unrecognised  RgtiEEFIIEE ERER W
for deferred tax assets AIEERERR 145,256 -
303,895 215,108

The following unrecognised tax losses has fixed expiry date, which will
be expired in the following years:

NHIEIE 2 H A R R R R B R AS IR A
NEEEEE

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
2018 20184 - 1,604
2019 20194 3,344 3,344
2020 20204 6,924 6,924
2021 20214 24,535 24,535
2022 20224 38,887 168,352
2023 20234 71,741 =
Total B5T 145,431 204,759

Besides, at the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB13,208,000 (31 December 2017: RMB10,349,000)
available for offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2018, a deferred tax liability of RMB105,655,000
(31 December 2017: RMB30,081,000) for undistributed earnings of the
subsidiaries located in Mainland China has been recognised as there
is a plan of the dividends distribution out of Mainland China in the
foreseeable future by these subsidiaries.

BEAN - RS AR RE - NEE AN
SH 1] B2 #E IR 2R 45 8 40 R 10R A1 A9 1M R B A
FRIEEs 18 A A R #13,208,0007T (2017412
A318 : AR#10,349,0007T) ° B AKAE
TEORI A SR TR - Bt st R I A e R
RIELEFBEE -

R2018F 128318 + AR H E ALK E A
AIET IR 7] B R 2R 5 A B A i DA S b [ 5
KA S - BBz E B R AR RS Ik
B ERIEER 8 & B A R 105,655,000
JL (2017412 A31H : A R # 30,081,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

23. In Progress Land Development Arrangements

In progress land development arrangements mainly represent costs
incurred for land development under collaboration arrangements
with the relevant local government authority within the districts of the
development project.

According to the arrangement, the Group is entitled to receive from the
local government authority a proportion of the proceeds from land sales
when the land plots are sold by the local government authority.

Income from land development which are under collaboration
arrangements with the relevant local government authority are
recognised upon sales of related land plots by the local government
authority with the corresponding costs incurred under such
arrangements recognised as cost of sales. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying amount of the in progress land development arrangements
under collaboration contract was RMB3,579,316,000 (31 December
2017: RMB3,071,912,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s in progress land development
arrangements with a carrying amount of approximately RMB550,000,000
(31 December 2017: RMB550,000,000) were pledged to a bank to secure
certain banking facility granted to the Group, details of which are set
out in note 32(a).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s in progress land development
arrangements with a carrying amount of approximately RMB338,876,000
(31 December 2017: RMB338,876,000) were pledged to a third party to
secure certain other loan to the Group, details of which are set out in
note 32(b).

23.

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

FETHFEKESR
FELMARER EERRERRENE
PO % SR AERE B SO BT B & (R R B A 15
£ £ HBIROR B AL PORKA ©

RIBFERLH - SHBTHE L ELT
W+ 75 [E 5 R ) & St BT H R U B+ st
HESH—F5 -

1R I5 B AR R 2 B B & (E R BB &
B EE U AT & 1 B AT HE A s AR B 3
R - MAREA BT RREEENRAE
RIFER BHEKA - R2018F 128318 -
BEAEAHNFE T HBEERMREE
B8 AR¥3,579,316,0007T (2017412 A 31
B : AR¥3,071,912,0007T) °

201812 A31H  ARBERABEHNAR
#550,000,0007C (2017412 318 : AR
#.550,000,0007T ) FIFF & T b 318 B B3
WTFRIT - MEAR FTASEMNE TRTT
AERIER - AR BERHES2E) ©

201812 A31H  AKBERABENAR
#338,876,0007C (2017412 318 : AR
& 338,876,0007T ) M FFE T FEIHE B
ERTF—EZE=F  MEARTAEERD
ETHMERNER - GEFEHNMHE
32(b) °



189

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

24. Amounts Due from Customers for Contract 24. EWEEAHITREZIE

Work
At 31 December
R12H31H8
2017
RMB'000
ARETT
Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period R BRI A RS R EHA A 49
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits REREEESHREINEER
less recognised losses as at the year end i AR B W R S 1R 1,558,251
Less: progress billings o EEFIE (1,473,147)
85,104
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TREREDTAE -
Amounts due from contract customers U A KR F I8 85,104
25. contract Assets 25. 5N EE
At 31 December At 1 January
M12831H M1A1H
2018 2018*
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Construction contracts HEER 51,828 85,104
51,828 85,104

* The amount in this column are after the adjustments from the application

of IFRS 15.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into
certain land development agreements with the local government
authorities, pursuant to these agreements, the Group is entitled to
receive from the local government authorities income arising from
land development arrangements by reference to the recoverable costs

incurred during the period plus an agreed cost-plus margin.

* AP SRR EABEBRTBREERNE

155R AR D ©

REBZE2018F12A31H IEFE + AEBEHE
EHRAHERI LA TR ERE - R

B E e

AREEZL2ZE AT E H)

FXASIN_E 1 B AR AR DIAK 1R - B RE[R)E
BURTHERA U ER e A B 3 R B TE B O ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

26. Properties Under Development for Sale 26. FERREARYE

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12B31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
At beginning of year &2 2,268,332 1,347,781
Additions NE 505,759 920,551
Disposal of subsidiaries LS E A A (45,602) =
Transfer to completed properties for sale EREHEDR T (614,483) -
At end of year FR 2,114,006 2,268,332

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with carrying amount of approximately
RMB200,000,000 (31 December 2017: RMB140,000,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group, details
of which are set out in note 32(a).

Certain of the Group’s properties under development for sale with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB110,000,000 as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB110,000,000) was pledged
to a trust company to secure certain other loan to the Group. Certain
of the Group's properties under development for sale with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB674,789,000 was pledged to a third party
to secure certain other loan of the Group, details of which are set out in
note 32(b).

As at 31 December 2018, properties under development for sale with
carrying amount of approximately RMB33,000,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB614,483,000) were expected to be completed within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

2018512 A318 » A&BEE THREEY
A R #200,000,0007T (2017412 A318 :
AR #140,000,00070) AFEHERYEE
ERFRIT - HEAREBEER S TRT
BB AR - AP FIBERIHES2) ©

AEBR2018FE12A3MBNE THREEA
E 49 A R %110,000,0007T (20174 12 A 31
H : AR#110,000,00070) WEEHEEHY
¥CHEE T BELAF - (EAREER
BETEMERNER - AEEETHRER
B AREE674,789,000TT I FEZEH Y
¥R TFT—RE=F  EALASERSE
ETHMEROER - BRAFBEISNHE
32(b) °

M2018F 128318 « TEHIREEN AR
33,000,0007C (20176128318 : AR%
614,483,0007T) M E B R AP MEASRRE
HMERBM12E A ZWEK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

27.Trade Receivables 27. E G FEWFRIE
At 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
— At amortised cost — R S AN B BR
Receivables from industrial towns development 2k & FE ¥ B2 R A e W TR 307,430 1,487,011
Receivables from sales of properties A HE Y ENE R FIE 16,270 23,961
Receivables from rental properties REHEYZEN EWGRIE 2,827 -
326,527 1,510,972
— At FVTPL — R ATEFTABETIER
Receivables from industrial towns development 3k B &= % i 2R 89 fE W R 18 2,036,857 -
Total 1RET 2,363,384 1,510,972
At 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFIT
Analysis for reporting purpose as: MMEMS ONAE
— At amortised cost — RSP AN AR
- Current assets —mENEE 320,471 781,000
— Non-current assets —IERBEE 6,056 729,972
326,527 1,510,972
— At FVTPL — AT EFFABEYIER
— Current assets —mBEE 1,302,351 =
— Non-current assets —IERBEE 734,506 -
2,036,857 =
Total FEE
— Current assets —mBEE 1,622,822 781,000
— Non-current assets —IEREEE 740,562 729,972
2,363,384 1,510,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

27.Trade Receivables (continueq)

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s trade receivables from
industrial towns development with carrying amount of approximately
RMB348,130,000 (31 December 2017: RMB124,294,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain loans to the Group, details of which are set out
in note 32(a).

Trade receivables — at amortised cost

At 31 December 2018, receivable from industrial towns development is
due from Longhe Park in respect of the land development collaboration
arrangement as explained in note 5. Upon public auction of the
developed land, the successful land buyers would enter into land
acquisition agreements with the local government authority. According
to these land acquisition agreements, the land buyers are usually
granted a credit period ranging from 1 to 3 months to settle the full
amount of land acquisition consideration with the local government
authority. The Group would normally be able to recover the full amount
of trade receivables from the government authority shortly after
the local government authority has received the full amount of land
acquisition consideration from the land buyers.

The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables — at amortised
cost, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on revenue
recognition date, at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

27. EZ EWHEIE o)

201812 A31H  ARBERABENAR
#348,130,0007C (2017412 318 : AR
#.124,294,00070) 5 TEXMERENE
SRERWGERRTET - (EAAEEIE
HETEROER - HPFBHRHTEI2)

B R AT AR B 5 FE K IR
R20186F 124318+ REEETRAERN
FENSRIB RS L0 B B A IR B I M T
BHEAFE - MM - NEFIH
TR ARIRIEE - RIIEO LI ER
A B2 5 BAS HE A 5T S S A 13 % - AR
BRETRBHE - LHER—RER
FREEHNTFIEIEA « bAR T BT #
BB T B R - R TT BT
AL B A B L B B 1R
75 5 B — R A SR ST B 7 P9 BB B A TR A
U218 55 P IHOR -

PR B A R - R AR B R S K AR B
AREVE 5 W R (N BR P 2 51| R AR E65)
RIBWATER B BRI T

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFT
0 to 180 days 02180k 296,715 579,030
181 to 365 days 1812365k 1,872 285,323
1-2 years 1225 22,556 640,283
2-3 years 2234 926 5,779
Over 3 years HRIB3F 4,458 557
326,527 1,510,972

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



198

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e TR HRAR M (&

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

27.Trade Receivables (continuea)

27. EZ EWRERIE o)

Trade receivables - at amortised cost (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

B A5 R B B 5 B WK TR

£ 180 M1 3 S B 0 8 53 P O M B
o -

At 31 December

R12H31H
2017
RMB'000
ARBTT

Past due but not impaired: BEAEITRRE
181 to 365 days past due BHI181KE 365K 636,937
1t0 2 years past due B2 -
2 to 3 years past due BEI2E3F 557
Over 3 years =
637,494

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables — at amortised
cost for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 37(b).

Trade receivables - at FVTPL

Trade receivables — at FVTPL are in respect of income arising from
land infrastructure development for industrial parks other than Longhe
Park. The Group entered into service agreements with the relevant
local government authorities, according to which the Group provides
construction services and is entitled to service consideration on a cost-
plus basis. The settlements of service consideration will be made in
accordance with the terms specified in the agreements. According to
the agreements, the cash flows of the receivables could not pass the
solely payments of principal and interest testing, and were classified as
FVTPL from 1 January 2018.

The fair value change recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018

decreased the Group’s profit by RMB52,208,000.

Details of fair value information of trade receivables — at FVTPL as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 37(c).

BLZE20185F 12 A31 B L F E I S A 5
REVE 5 IR R E R A B ST L
37(b) °

BAVETFABRSENE S BRROER
BAFEFABENE 5 REFIRT AR
BEA =0 37T [ LA S i) FE 3 [ o 3 B P AR e 3
RATEENBA - AEE EA 7 BT
WRARI IR P ek - IRUL - ARERME
FIRT - WA IR A D BOE Y ER AR TS
1B o B B BRTE (B 4% AR 175 58 P AT B MO 16
HIEN » RIFZ S - BEANR S
MEREBBE/SINAS KA LKA
- WH20185F1 1B RSB AKRATFE
sTAEE ©

HE2018F12A3NBILEFEE BRA
AFERBEAEBOEFILD AR
52,208,0007T °

R2018F 12 A3 B IR A FE ABEZMNE
SEBGRIBAFEERFBEHAMESZ(C)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

28. Prepayments and Other Receivables

28. A R H AW IR

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARBFT
Prepayments: SR
— Prepayments for construction activities —BEEKMBMNRE 128,881 98,343
— Prepayments for taxes —TEFRIE 45,162 31,317
- Others —HAb 3,959 4,995
Other receivables: H A RIS -
— Receivables from local authorities — 3R B b 5 R A e U ER TR 255,502 255,502
— Loan receivables (note) — FEWRE SR (BT =E) 40,000 40,000
— Deposits —zI& 20,466 28,931
— Other advances —H b #FR 22,273 3,280
— Staff advances — BT8R 10,730 10,332
— Interest receivable — FEURILE - 25,714
- Others —Hh 39,164 26,731
566,137 525,145
Less: allowance for other receivables ik EAth RIS R IE RS (11,302) =
554,835 525,145
Analysis for reporting purposes as: MIRERENDIT
Current assets MEBEE 418,394 500,536
Non-current assets ERBNE E 136,441 24,609
554,835 525,145

Note: Loan receivables at the end of the reporting period made to independent
third parties were unsecured and recoverable on demand, with interest-

bearing based on the benchmark interest rate.

MIRE : B S AR AR R A (R B AL 55 = 75 R A JE
WE G R EER RN BRI E - 7 E
EMEEE

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREEREE)
2018
RMB'000
ARET
At 1 January M1A1H =
Impairment losses recognised BRI B &1 11,302
At 31 December R12H318 11,302

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the year

ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 37(b).

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

29.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 29.8R{7&8 R IZR4IETES
Deposits

At 31 December

R12831H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARST T ARBTT
Bank balances and cash in hand RITERRTFRHES 1,407,225 1,908,670
Time deposits EHES 760,979 1,006,500
Total bank deposits, bank balances and BTN - BOBHRTFHE
cash in hand Be e 2,168,204 2,915,170
Less: Deposits pledged for banking facilities W BRITRLE B ATE R
(note a) (FfzFa) (354,979) (600,000)
Deposits pledged for other loans (note b) ShEM B R E R A TE R
(BtzED) (5,100) (7,100)
Deposits pledged for guarantees FhI R PR R E R
granted to customers (note c) T (KizEe) (55,881) (54,838)
Other restricted deposit for H A 2R ITF R LARS B W) 5
property purchase = (136,015)
1,752,244 2,117,217
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity 35 : REIHE A=18 A A FHES
of three months or more HEEFER
when acquired (406,000) (406,500)
Total cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated ~ HABREREXANRLRRESE
statement of cash flows MR 1,346,244 1,710,717
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash in AP EEEHERSRI TR « RITH
hand denominated in: BEFRHES
- RMB(functional currency of the - ARE(HABRNIEER)
relevant entities) 1,712,322 2,836,676
- United States dollars (“US$") —Zn([Exl) 377,088 74,303
- HK$ — B 78,636 4,037
- Singapore dollars (“SG$") =T ([ FrnsTl) 157 154
- Japanese dollars (“JPY") —HE(TBEE]) 1 -
2,168,204 2,915,170
Analysis for reporting purpose as: RIMEREIWHT ¢
- Current assets — BN EE 2,163,104 2,908,070
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 5,100 7,100
2,168,204 2,915,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

29.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 29.38R{T4&t: R IR4IBITES

Deposits (continued)

Notes:

a. The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 32(a)).

b. The amounts represented deposits in RMB pledged to a trust fund company
as security for the other loan facility to the Group (note 32(b)).

C. The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the Group’s
customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon receiving
the building ownership certificate of the respective properties by the banks
from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage loans granted.

Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2018 were mainly
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in
the international market. The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by
the government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of
Mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
government of the PRC.

The restricted bank deposits and bank balances carry prevailing market
interest rates as follows:

(&)
g

a.  AEFREER/AKEERETRITRE

BRI (R ER T E R A RS RITER (KT
#+32(a)) °

b. ZERERERAEERRHGEREE
A —RETES QA ERNARBEER
(F7E32(b)) °

c. EEFREERRTAAEEEFRESE
TRIBE AR [ RTE AR
RITER » ZRBRITEFRERBRITRER
PURBREMENEEMA#EE(EREEE
SREVHEAR) B ARERIR Bl

R2018%F12A31H » RITEHRREER
MARBHE - MARETEERB TS
B  AREEXZIHEBRFNR
B BEHESELTEABTZRNE
BT B B ) IR PR )

BTSN EGFT BB HRTERE
RITAEERINT -

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
% %
Interest rate per annum FER= 0.35-2.75 0.35-2.25

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

30. Trade and Other Payables 30. EZ R HAENAFIE
At 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETT
Trade payables B S ENRIE 954,041 830,843
Property, plant and equipment costs payable FERTDZE BB AR R AR 236,910 438,071
Investment properties construction costs payable FE{EE ¥ %2 RN 126,578 210,472
Other deposits received Hthe a2 64,675 28,784
Other payables HAb e FE 109,253 91,037
Refundable deposits (note) AEREET S (MiFE) 137,062 44,812
Accrued expenses FERTRISE = 207
1,628,519 1,694,226
Note: The amounts represent refundable deposits received from interested Miz:  ZESRENEEREASEMEE TH(E
parties for potential investments in the land developed by the Group. RBEREMNA TR AREETE ©
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on services/ AR ARREAMERE - &5 EMNKIE
materials received date at the end of the reporting period: RIREE RS M R B BT R BR R 5
#r

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T AEETT
Less than 1 year DIR1E 533,275 266,668
1-2 years 1224 54,139 426,563
2-3years 2534F 229,842 135,426
Over 3 years BiE3F 136,785 52,186
954,041 880,843
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

31. Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities (recorded in deferred income and advances from
customers within trade and other payables before application of IFRS
15) represent the obligations to transfer properties to the customers in
accordance with the revenue recognition policy and the nature of the

31.

BHEE

B HRIBE (FFE B B 765 5 2E R 55 AT 1
FLER R A K2R B 5 B B At FE 5K
IR P 2T B IR BRATER R R T
MEREFPERMESNRL

business.
At 31 December At 1 January
M12831A R1A18

2018 2018*

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Sales of properties SHEYIZ 85,338 1,150,492
Deferred income IRFEUT A 84,161 85,178
169,499 1,235,670
Current RE 85,338 1,150,492
Non-current IERED 84,161 85,178
169,499 1,235,670

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application

of IFRS 15.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

31. Contract Liabilities (continued) 31. 6B Ew
Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled within the EHBaEFERT TSN AEERNIER S
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current and non- FHRNETEE)BREAEB AT EEERN
current based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or mERENRFEBTEEDEARS R
services to the customers. FEMED ©
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the TRIFEEEAENEBEEANEFER
current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. RULABESEE -
Contract
liabilities
EHERE
RMB'000
ARETT
Revenue recognised that was FNMAE BB
included in the contract liability balance BERERUBA
at the beginning of the year 1,151,509
The Group receives the advance when signing the contracts with AEEREFEZERBEHEMENE R
customers on sales of properties. However, depending on market WEREL R o AT - P RER TRZDA
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount compared to ETPRREXNRESLSRS  FNEEBHR
the listed sales price, provided that the customers agree to pay the FhiZRAEFREREKIEEREN
balance of the consideration early while construction is still ongoing. e - RaaEmELRE & RBANK
The deposits and advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities BEREEYETIREAHEER  BEEEFR
being recognised throughout the property construction period until the 1SEEMNYEESIERL

customer obtains control of the completed property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

32.Bank and Other Borrowings

32. RIT R HAMERR

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Bank loans RITER
Secured (note a) B (MEa) 2,947,268 2,597,735
Other loans HAER
Secured/guaranteed (note b) BIER R (D) 2,233,193 2,449,981
Unsecured (note c) AR (B 5Ee) = 20,000
5,180,461 5,067,716
Total borrowings are repayable as follows: EREENEEFROT
- Repayable on demand —REREE - 140,202
— Repayable within one year —BR—FREE 1,477,701 1,664,936
— Repayable over 1 year and within 2 years — R —F R EMERNER 1,540,635 1,042,437
— Repayable over 2 years and within 5 years —ARMER L TFANEE 2,131,756 2,135,198
— Repayable over 5 years — AR AFRER 30,369 84,943
5,180,461 5,067,716
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities & : 7BV & EE N5 REE%E (1,477,701) (1,805,138)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBABEE N RS 3,702,760 3,262,578
Floating rate borrowings EFSRIF N 2,359,245 2,009,568
Fixed rate borrowings TEBER 2,821,216 3,038,148
Interest-free borrowings EFSRIEP = 20,000
5,180,461 5,067,716
Bank and other borrowings denominated in: AT SIS HEHERERT T R EL ALK -
- RMB — AR#¥ 5,164,915 5,052,161
— HK$ — B 15,546 15,555
5,180,461 5,067,716

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & 220184 12 H31H 1 F/Z

32.Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes:

The secured bank loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the
Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

2. (RITREMER @

McE

a. ASENEEMRTEFUAAEEETE
EfEAER - HREEENT

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y - BB KR (HEE16) 42,066 44,452
Investment properties (note 17) BEYE(HEE17) 598,300 85,600

In progress land development arrangements FELIHFAEIER

(note 23) (Hft5E23) 550,000 550,000
Properties under development for sale (note 26) FEEREDYE(HFE26) 200,000 140,000
Trade receivables (note 27) 2 5 rEWRIE (H3E27) 348,130 124,294
Restricted bank deposits (note 29) SR HIERITER (FT3529) 354,979 600,000
Equity of a subsidiary —RFRAIRER 619,358 620,183
2,712,833 2,164,529

The secured other loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the
Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

b. AEENEEMEMEFAAKREETE
EERER - HREENT

At 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) W - BB &R (HEE16) 349,453 -
Investment properties (note 17) BEME(HE17) = 305,700

In progress land development arrangements FETHFEIER

(note 23) (Hf$5E23) 338,876 338,876
Properties under development for sale (note 26) FFERRTWE(F726) 784,789 110,000
Restricted bank deposits (note 29) Z R BRI TR (HE7E29) 5,100 7,100
Equity of a subsidiary —RFRARIER = 1,476
Equity of an associate (note 18) — I AR AR (FEE18) 101,866 99,730
1,580,084 862,882

Details of the guarantees of other loans are set out in note 44.

B RE A R R BB R4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

32.Bank and Other Borrowings (continued) 32. RIT R HAMER )
Notes: (Continued) BisE (&)
c.  The details of unsecured other loan of the Group are as follows: c. AEEEEREMERAFEET

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Loan from a third party (note i) F=HE (M) = 20,000
()  The above loan from the third party was fully repaid in March 2018, () EHEBE=FEFHN2018F3IAEHEE
and the balance as at 31 December 2017 was interest-free and # - mrR20175F12 A31 B EREE R
repayable on demand. R BIWBIRENRER o
The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are as REEEROERFEGENT -
follows:
At 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
% %
Effective interest rate per annum: BRFERNX :

Floating rate borrowings FEER 4.90-8.63 4.90-8.63
Fixed rate borrowings EBER 5.25-12.00 4.87-11.84
Interest on borrowings denominated in RMB at floating rates is based on BAAREEHERZE SEREOF 2 TR EH
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China. Interest on B ARBITAMHERFIRETH - LABE
borrowings denominated in HK$ at floating rate is based on the Hong Kong FHEAF B EROT S TRBEEBRTH

Interbank Offered Rate and repriced monthly. ¥REFTE  WEASHER -

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

Derivative

On 30 December 2015, the Company issued a three-year term
convertible bonds of US$50,000,000 (the “2015 Convertible Bonds”)
and a three-year term secured guaranteed notes of US$50,000,000 (the
“2015 Notes”) to the same third party. The coupon rates of the 2015
Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes are 6% and 12% respectively and the
interests will be paid semi-annually. The effective interest rate is 16.10%
per annum after considering the effect of the transaction costs.

The 2015 Convertible Bonds can be converted into a number of
125,000,000 shares of the Company at an initial conversion price
of HK$3.10 per share before maturity, which should be subject to
adjustment in certain events. The total net proceeds received by the
Company from the issues of the 2015 Convertible Bonds have been split
between a liability component and a derivative component in its initial
recognition. The conversion option component of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds is separately accounted for as derivative and measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

During the year of 2018, the Company has paid off the 2015 Notes of
US$50,000,000 and the 2015 Convertible Bonds of US$45,000,000. The
residual 10 percent of the 2015 Convertible Bonds of US$50,000,000
have been converted into 13,596,491 ordinary shares of the Company.

The 2015 Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes are jointly guaranteed by
the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of
entire equity interest of Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd. (“Shing Cheong”),
China Vast International Holdings Limited (“China Vast International”),
King Billion Corporation Limited (“King Billion”) and Sheng Shi
International (HK) Development Limited (“Sheng Shi”), all are subsidiaries
of the Company.

33.convertible Bonds and Notes and 33. EHBREAREBURITE

METHE
201512 308 » ARRAEE—F=FH
1T Bl 550,000,000 7T B A Sk fE
#([2015%F Al 8 #f& % |) }50,000,000% 7T
WAERBEERZE(20158 2K ]) - 4
R 15 A =48 - 20154 A @i & 4 2015
FEBROZAEMNED B H6%K12% + Wi
BHFEIN—RFE - EERERFHEKAH
HEE  BBREFNEERE16.10% °

20154 A (B 75 FE 2 3 A AT AR B AR X
DB #3310t M B (s T S 3%
A= BRF R ] T 8B ) #E#R 75125,000,00088 A A
AR - AR A R EEAT20155F A A 5 5 A
IS TCRFEBEN RN I EARDH/ S
BERD RITEMBTEAIS ° 20155 7]
Bt ESNERER BRI D D REARSIT
EPBTARD MEAFEFE - MAF
ERBAPIE R IR -

20184 + AR AA]E & #P{E 2 50,000,0005
JTH9 2015 4F 22 #& }% 45,000,0003% 7T #92015
FrRIEIAES - W ER T 10%#950,000,000
ET05FAERESFFEBR AR A
13,596,491 R% & 3BA% -

20154F Rl (A 5 K 2015 F RIF G B &
PR RR A RER - AR ERIRAER
AA([HE])  PRRFEEZEBRERA
A(HEZRERE])  KFERAF (MK
T REEERER(EE)ERARAR (%
) (B AERABNNERR) 2 A E
A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

33.Convertible Bonds and Notes and

Derivative (continued)

On 9 January 2018, the Company issued a three-year term convertible
bonds of US$50,000,000 (the “2018 Convertible Bonds”) and also issued
three guaranteed notes due 2019, 2020 and 2021 respectively in an
aggregate principal amount of US$110,000,000 (the “2018 Notes”) to the
same third party. The coupon rates of both the 2018 Convertible Bonds
and 2018 Notes are 6% and the interests will be paid semi-annually. The
2018 Convertible Bonds can be converted into a number of 82,105,000
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$4.75 per
share before maturity, which should be subject to adjustment in certain
events.

Due to a final dividend of HK$0.25 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 and an interim dividend of HK$0.05 per share
in respect of six months ended 30 June 2018 declared and paid during
2018, the initial conversion price was adjusted to HK$4.43, and the
shares that the 2018 Convertible Bonds can be converted into a number
of approximately 88,036,000.

The Company may redeem the 2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes
to the holders after the date falling 24 months from the issue date. The
fair value of the early redemption option of the 2018 Notes is immaterial.
Therefore, the Company does not account for the early redemption
option of the 2018 Notes. The conversion option component and the
early redemption option of the 2018 Convertible Bonds are accounted
for as derivative and measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or l0ss. The effective interest rate for the 2018
Notes and the liability component of the 2018 Convertible Bonds is 8.05%
per annum after considering the effect of the transaction costs.

The 2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes are jointly guaranteed by
the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, Profit East, Shing Cheong, China
Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi.

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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33.convertible Bonds and Notes and 33. EHBREAREBURITE

Derivative continued)

The movements of the debt component and derivative component of
the 2015 and 2018 Convertible Bonds and Notes for 2018 and 2017 are

set out below:

BT B
20154 [ 20184E Al A E A B EEHH B
67 4 BT T30 5 & 2 15 7E20184F %2017
ERBBRIIMT -

Debt
component
of the
convertible Derivative
bonds  component The Notes
AERES T BN
8&85 IAEDS =B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFIT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2017 H201741 818 319,450 61,619 333,290
Fair value change recognised EERERNATE
in profit or loss b= - 1,513 -
Interest charged for the year FAEAF)E 51,650 - 51,650
Interest paid BRFE (29,944) = (29,944)
Exchange realignment bE 5 SR (16,962) (3,578) (17,766)
As at 31 December 2017 2017512 H31H 324,194 59,554 337,230
New issuance of 2018 Convertible FEEIT2018F AT E SR K&
Bonds and 2018 Notes 2018 F =& 317,844 28,721 692,923
Fair value change recognised FEERERNATE
in profit or loss #E) = (11,201) -
Interest charged for the year FRERFE 52,741 - 56,935
Interest paid EFLE (89,554) - (32,106)
Conversion of the 2015 00154 Al 82 E 5
Convertible Bonds (32,703) (9,619) -
Repayment of the 2015 E192015F AT 88 (E 5 &
Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes 2015F 2% (259,026) (46,199) (337,230)
Exchange realignment PE 5 SRR 33,507 2,122 39,016
As at 31 December 2018 72018412 831H 347,003 23,378 756,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

33.convertible Bonds and Notes and 33. TEBRE4XREERURITE

Derivative (continued) MBI R
At 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Analysis for reporting purpose as: AREREINA
Convertible bonds and notes ATEEnES R R
— Current liabilities —nRBAE 110,075 661,424
- Non-current liabilities —JEmBAE 993,696 -
1,103,771 661,424
Derivative PTEMBE TR
— Current liabilities —REAE - 59,554
— Non-current liabilities —3EmEAaRE 23,378 -
23,378 59,554
34. Share Capital 34. g7
Share capital of the Group includes only issued and fully paid share AEBERAR BIEATHIEH A B TR
capital of the Company as set out below. BARRIRA -
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
ZiER ZER HER
B HE LEREE
HK$'000 RMB’000
BT T ARETT
Authorised ordinary shares BREES0.017T
of HK$0.01 each: HEE EBAR
As at 31 December 2017 and 72017128318 &
31 December 2018 2018F12H31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 39,792
Issued and fully paid: BITWHR -
As at 31 December 2017 2017912 H31H 1,637,641,000 16,376 13,031
Conversion of convertible bonds A B[ 5 Y B A 13,596,491 136 110
As at 31 December 2018 72018512 831H 1,651,237,491 16,512 13,141

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

35. Reserves
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the reporting period are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The principal reserves of the Group consist of the following:

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve in these consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represented the share
capital of Shing Cheong.

(i) Share premium

Share premium at 31 December 2018 represented share premium
of the Company. The share premium account is governed by the
Cayman Companies Law and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to members;
(b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (c) the redemption
and repurchase of shares (subject to the provisions of section 37
of the Cayman Companies Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary
expenses of the Company; and (e) writing-off the expenses of, or
the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares
or debentures of the Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity shareholders
out of the share premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

(iii) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations in Mainland China,
those subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China are
required to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation,
after offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the
relevant accounting policies and financial regulations applicable
to entities established in Mainland China, to the statutory reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to equity owners of these subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. Statutory reserve is non-distributable other
than in liquidation and can be used to make good previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in capital
in proportion to the existing interests of equity owners, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

35. f# e
REBEREHIB ARG S RERE
M) FELRAERESRPETIIR -

REETENRERIE NIISE

(i) Ebt#E
20184 ) 20174E 12 A31 Bér & 81715
RR KIS HHEBRIERER
AR o

(i) BAHE
R20185 12 A31 B R EIRAR
R IEE - RIDBEERBFSHS
REEERE - BA] AR AR IRAAL:
ERAM R ABRGEREA & E (1
BIEAR QX N2RSRE TR
B (B RAEEIT T AR RIBREIALE
B RA BRI RIETIRG - OFERES
B R RVEFE 7RG R R T &R
REBERRG  WEARFHANE
A REMBEARRBEITRG K ES
R & sk BE It S RO £ 304G T RO9T

1o
A ©

BIFEZRE D IRE B IS B
% RAIEAREET B EEENEIH
&% - BRIR R AR AR (B Ak
RIEH DRSS -

(i) EERE
REBEHEAENRBERIER - &
SERFER B R AR M F A
FEETEKREERNFTBEFEAK
YRR AR SR B IR R A E R
T EEBREFMEDEARFERD
B - R D R0%H0F MR
NEERME - BEVEEREBOMREE
FZ AR EMEAES0%  FREUEE
[ BARE R BRSNS
RAOBEKREZAETT ° FREERFE
WIERSN  RERE T EEERDIKE
Bz BWNBERRIFEREK AT
[ RER AR EIRRM A © 0
TE (o (R 8 TR PR A BOR A 5 A L
EREENBRER - EFmEEl
BEERBNBRBD D NEMEARD
25% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

36. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern; to maintain the confidence
of creditors; to sustain future development of the group entities
and to maximize the return to the owners of the Company through
optimisation of debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, convertible
bonds and notes, net of cash and cash equivalents, and total equity of
the Group.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividend,
raise of new capital, issue of new debt or the reduction of existing

debts.

37.Financial Instruments

37.

a. Categories of financial instruments

36. EXERERE

A48 B B A AR AR A B 7 A
HEQE  BREEANED MRS
BELEGRERTE  SREEREY
RRBR - AR ARATEEABREA
CER

REENEAREHASENER (NGRS
ERREEEY)  TERESMRRNE
ARAEAERK

ARAEEEHNEREALRE - (ERULA
BRH—8D  ARREZEEEARKA
NREXRBERR - BEARTDEZNE
& AKERBEBRNEE R SEHE
A BITHEXERBRBES - A FHEHE
R E RS -

B THE
a. BT EER

At 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Financial assets s EE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTABED
Mg & E
— Trade receivables — at FVTPL — AT EFTAEZR
B 5 I8 2,036,857 -
— Other financial assets at FVTPL —RAFEFT AEE
MEME T EE 34,030 =
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAFEGAEMEZARER
Mg EE
- Equity instruments at FVTOCI —ERATEST AREMEE
WA T A = =
Financial assets at amortised cost R SERANS | BRI TS B B
— Trade receivables — at amortised cost — RSP AN T BRI B 5
FEUL ZRIE 326,527 1,510,972
— Other receivables — H Ath FEUERIR 366,103 380,158
— Amounts due from related parties — [EUR B8 5 TRIE 171,343 160,395
— Restricted bank deposits — R HIRITIFR 415,960 797,953
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBR IR 1,752,244 2,117,217
Available-for-sale investment Al ERE - 3,300
Financial liabilities B%aE
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBITA 23,378 59,554
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEN AT RSB E
— Trade and other payables — B 5 REAEMANRE 1,581,476 1,696,897
— Amounts due to related parties — FETREESE 5 A 368,308 300,844
- Bank and other borrowings —$RIT R EHABE K 5,180,461 5,067,716
— Convertible bonds and notes — AR E SRR 1,103,771 661,424

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

37. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments consisted of bank balances
and cash, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, other
receivables, equity instruments at FVTOCI, other financial assets at
FVTPL, available-for-sale investment amounts due from/to related
parties, trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds and notes and derivative. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include interest rate risk, credit
risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Company does
not have any significant exposure to financial risks.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
directors of the Company manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
convertible bonds and notes (note 33) and fixed-rate bank and
other borrowings (note 32).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on cash
and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings carried at
prevailing market interest rates based on or by reference to the
interest rates promulgated by the People’s Bank of China, London
Interbank Offered Rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage
their interest rate risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure, but will closely monitor its interest rate
exposure in the future.

The variable rate sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable rate
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and assumed that
the amounts outstanding at the end of reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. Bank balances are excluded form
sensitivity analysis as the directors of the Company consider that
the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable
rate bank balances in insignificant.

37. 8t
b.

IR

MERBEEBEREE

REBEMPM G T ABIRRITERKLE
£ XRHBTER - BZRUK
- EAMEWGRIA - MATERAR
2 ERERA T A LA FER
ABHEMHBEE  AIHHER
& RN R B RE
o FERT IR ~ SRITREMIETR - A8
BRESREBEMITEM BT - B15
TAMFBESHBNEARE - &
Mz TAMERSIENXE
B EERR  SMNERBERBESD
RS o ZARRQ BN A AE A E A7
R

ARANAREZE R AR RER T
X ARAEEERERETEZEHA
B NERERRAEREREEE
i)

MERER
AEBEAZANTERESRER
(BHEES3) ~ & BERTT REMAE SR (M
H)MATEREAMS -

RN S RIE S EEMNRT R EM
fEFRIRER TSN ERGE - MREH
BHRARIEL S ERBEARRITHE
AR - RBERITRZERE REBR
TTRIZEIR B PTIREA RETE - B A
SETARZRSREN KR -

& B AT AR BURE IR A X
B - JREERT SR RIS EAS R AR -
MERS ) BE R H B AR B R AR o
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HARR BN & REEEFESHARF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

37. Financial Instruments (continued) 37. 0B ITAuw

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
If interest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, there would have no significant impact on the Group’s
total equity apart from retained profits and the potential effect on
profit after tax (at 25% PRC statutory rate corporate income tax
rate), after taking into account the interest capitalisation effect, for
the each of reporting period is as follows:

b.

B E R EIE B ERBUER(8)

Fi == @B ()

FREEDNT

EERMWE R EFR TBR0E 2
(20174 : SOEB)MABHMEE
R BRTIREAMEIN - AEE
NBREEB TSI EATE  ME
BREENMEEER  SREHEY
1% a8 M) (o BUEE D RS B A %
25%)EETERZZIAT ¢

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Change in post-tax profit for the year FERFENEES 3,551 4,059

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

37. Financial Instruments continued) 37. MBI A
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. BXREMEEEEREE®)

policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each of
reporting period are as follows:

SMNE /2L B

R 5 B RS LUSNES
ENEBEEREKaEREEND
™

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARET T ARETT
Assets EE
us$ =T
Bank balances and cash SRITRBR MRS 377,088 74,303
HKS PRI
Bank balances and cash SRITHRB MRS 78,636 4,037
Amounts due from related parties FE UK BE B T IR 586 1,795
SG$ N
Bank balances and cash RITHRBR NI 157 154
Liabilities &f&
us$ ETT
Convertible bonds and notes AR E SN ZE 1,103,771 661,424
HK$ piti
Bank and other borrowings SRIT R EHAb{EFK 15,546 15,555
Amounts due to a related party FE{S — 2 B8 5 7R 264,599 272,309
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in US$ and HK$
against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2017:
5%) increase and decrease in the exchange rates of RMB
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2017: 5%) represents
the directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting period for a 5%
(2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive (negative)
number below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax
profit for the year where RMB strengthens against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit for the year.

AEENTERBREAETREE L
AREHEE RS o

TRESAEEE AR N BRAINE
FER EF K RN#k5%(20174F : 5%)H)
BREEFEE - 5% (20174 : 5%) A&
ERHINBERTESBEEFHMNT
fly o MBEEDITEBFBAINEHER
MAZMERKER - WHE RS M
4ERIF ASMNE TE R | F5%(20174F -
5%) ERE % - TIIEH(BH)IE
AR S G BEINE s8R - FAR
BFEEIEIMCHD) - ARBHRES
#555% (20174 : 5%) 85 - HWER%E
B SENHERTEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

37. Financial Instruments (continueq) 37. MBI R
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HEEBREEBERBEK®)

policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

INE LB (1)
BRE D ()

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HILEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Increase in profit post-tax for the year (US$) AT &5 A1 hn () 36,798 30,276
Increase in profit post-tax for the year (HK$)  4F A 14 S 132 hn (5 #5) 9,939 13,979

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure at the end of reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during that particular year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of financial assets
best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. The monitoring procedures
for the customer’s credit quality are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on
trade receivables — at amortised cost, contract assets, other
receivables, amounts due from related parties and financial
guarantee contracts respectively. In determining the carrying
amounts of these assets, the Group considered various factors,
such as the credit risk characteristics of debtors in different
districts, aging analysis and forward-looking adjustment based on
present and future economic conditions.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties have high
credit ratings. The directors of the Company do not expect any
counterparty would fail to meet its obligations.

EFEmEZRE AR /AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

37. Financial Instruments continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the

following categories:

37Mﬁlﬁw
BEEKREEE L

Trade receivables/
contract assets/
amounts due from

ERBUR(8)

EERERERRER G (@)

AEBENALEERRTREFEAT
5l

Internal related parties Other financial

credit rating Description (trade nature) assets/other items

g5 ElWE
BREE/
PE U BA B 5 TR IE

REBEE TR L] (BHME) Hitb & E HihEe

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL

K& default and does not have any not credit-impaired 128 BBz E & 18
past-due amounts. GFEREHREEEE—

HFEFEAORBERE FEERE
B e HARR K o

Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

&k in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed GFESEHEESE - GFERBEHEERE -
internally or external resources FEERE FEERE

B YA TERUAR - (EEEREBAFE
HNEDERREZEIE N
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
&8 asset is credit-impaired. credit-impaired credit-impaired
ARBRAZEEC HREERE ° FEREHREEEE— FEPEREEEE—
EERE EERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

37. Financial Instruments (continued) 37. E!ﬁ%IE-w
b. Financial risk management objectives and BRRREEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEERREBET S e
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TR AEERIEEHZERS
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: B AR EENEERRMO
Internal Gross
31 December 2018 credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL carrying amount
2018%12A31H NEMEERT R 1218 A s iF B ERTE B s B B8 AREAAE
RMB'000
AR
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBHEBATIRNMBEE
Trade receivables Note 1 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
Z S WG IE i FREBEREEEECGHEERE) 326,527
Other receivables Low risk 12-month ECL
H e U R IE iV 1218 AR A E B &R 58,076
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
e~ FEMAEBEEERGHEERE) 319,329
Pledged deposits Low risk 12-month ECL
EEHER il 1218 ATEERE E &R 415,960
Time deposits with maturity of Low risk 12-month ECL
over three months KRB 1218 ATEEE B &R
E|HAE & =1E A LA LB EEAFER 406,000
Cash and cash equivalents Low risk 12-month ECL
ReERREEEY 1K B 1218 ATEE = B &R 1,346,244
Amounts due from related parties Note 1 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
(trade nature) Bt 331 FRBEREEEEGHEERE)
FEM RS IR (B 51 E) 2,991
Amounts due from related parties Low risk 12-month ECL
(non-trade nature) KRR 1218 AR B E B &R
FEM AR S IR GEE H1EE) 168,352
Other items
Hinm g
Contract assets Note 1 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
EREE Bt 321 FREBEREEEECGHEERE) 51,828
Financial guarantee contracts (Note 2) Low risk 12-month ECL
MISERE D (MEE2) ivE T 1218 ATEE = B E1E 966,446
Notes: Bff5E
1. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied 1. BEBEIHERE IE&’-VOQFHFJ =
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at AEECERARETERE 9'1%9
lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually. SHRREE R ERFEERESREE
BEGEBRER  AEEHZE
BENTER s EERETERIRE -
2. For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount 2. HEUBREREAOMNS  REAER
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed under AEEREBESEHNERERNEER
the respective contracts. PN

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



215

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

37. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no impairment
allowance was provided for the trade receivables — at amortised
cost and contract assets, as the Group would normally be able
to recover the full amount of these assets from the government
authority shortly after the local government authority has received
the full amount of land acquisition consideration from the land
buyers.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided
RMB11,302,000 impairment allowance for other receivables. The
following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances that has
been recognised for other receivables.

37. E!?H%IEMM

B EREE R ERBE )
EE R NRE R ()

HE2018F12A31HIEFE - AR
ANEE (B8 A T BT R URER i
BN TR EREEBRIEZER
A Al B BT R R B 2 BR iR S K
A ENE S EWGFBRENEE
Mt E R S E R R E R

B ZE2018F12A31HILFE - A&EE
Rt A R ¥11,302,0007T &9 E A 8 U
FORRE R o AN RIBFREALE
WHIRE MR R B R A AR

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

EEEER

(EEERE)

RMB’000

AR¥T T

As at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 #2017 12831 B A& ERISE395RET -

Adjustment upon application of IFRS 9 J&E FA B PR B 7S 3R 25 YE RI SR 052 FO A B =

As at 1 January 2018 - As restated 7"2018F1H1H —RE5 -
Changes due to financial instruments 201841 A 1B FERHY

recognised as at 1 January 2018 BiET AL
— Impairment losses recognised —BERBESE 11,302
As at 31 December 2018 A2018%F12H31H 11,302

Changes in the loss allowance for other receivables in 2018
arose from both receivables from private companies and local
government authorities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group performed
impairment assessment under 12m ECL model for pledged
deposits, time deposits with maturity of over three months, cash
and cash equivalents and amounts due from related parties
(non-trade nature), and concluded that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Since the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings or related parties
with sound credit, the probability of defaults of the counterparties
are low and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided
for these financial assets.

20185 HA R IR B IR B S B
EE BME R BT BRATH R 8
WA

RIS RERE - AEERS G
ﬁ%\ AR R=(EA L‘M:EI‘JEHHT
- RE MRS FEY MR
mlﬁ(#%ﬁ% Iiﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬂzflﬂﬁﬁﬂ

EEEBERERETRER G - A
E%)W*EEuL\LA?KF%HW%E%%P‘
e R FHRAEREEFNED
RITHEBERFHRE T - MHFH
EHFREERE - Bt - $HERZE
I AEREEEERERE
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37. Financial Instruments (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Details of
observable data evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
are set out in note 3.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 41.65% (31
December 2017: 59.30%) and 95.22% (31 December 2017: 98.44%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers within the industrial
towns development segment. Since the three largest customers
mentioned above are the local government authorities which
have good credit standing and strong economic background, the
directors of the Company consider that the exposure of the credit
risk arising from customer concentration is insignificant.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds and notes.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans and other borrowings
with a repayable on demand clause were included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the lenders choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

EFEmEZRE AR /AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

b.

37. BT Aw

MEEREEEERBE®)

EE R R RER G (@)

HABEERREERENS - AEER
7% B BRRRERERRAEINPEREIR
BB ER AT KA BB
HEEA(BEAEE (T RAEE
FANEERR))E - BEOEMS
B o

BERE-ERSEHPBEEMR
Xﬁ%m%ﬁﬁﬂ%%m$ﬁ%'%
BEELREERE FHNBEE
HREEREN T BRBER RN
TERPOHIFES

REXEMHEERS I - AEEEYK
AEBZARFRARBTFIEES
FEUGRIEABEE - 41.65% (2017412 A
31H : 59.30% ) & 95.22% (2017 & 12
A318 : 98.44%) * HULEE RS
o R LI E = AR P AT AT
#iE - BEBRIFREESREAK -
BEARAREERE  BESETEL
HIEERBIETERX -

REBESRE
AEBAGEFRBES  BITREM
BRMA SRS R EEALLER
SERRHES

IRANAEEREITER B EE
R A R - TRIRBAEER]
WERERORTHY  RUBEE
RARITIRRERERTE - LBME -
Tim BRI B BT LM A AT
M LETARIRESRKERIGRARTT
B EMIE I ET AT AR [ #5
B o HtIEfTEM B A ENEIEE
RIEHZEREBME °
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37. Financial Instruments (continueq)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of reporting

37. 8B I Auw
b.

MBEREEEERBR®)

REBE SR
TRRABBEFERFTSRLHE -
EFBRBRIENE  RNRLE
o R ARG RSO o

period.
Weighted Overone  Overtwo
average Ondemand,  yearbut yearsbut Total
interest  orlessthan  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Carrying
rate oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflows amount
MEHT  HR-FR  -FREIR REREIR AMRRE
iz fE WEARE DEARE DEARE  REAE BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETn ARETn ARMTn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETr
At 31 December 2018 H018E12R318
Trade and other payables BHREERFE 1,581,476 - - - 1581476 1,581,476
Amounts due to related parties JEr s 3R 368,308 - - - 368,308 368,308
Bak and otfier borrowings RITREMfE
— Fixed rate -8 8.23 1,067,283 917,827 1,192,133 - 3,177,243 2,821,216
- Floating rate -%8 6.84 733,670 844,895 1,022,600 31,408 2,632,573 2,359,245
Convertible bonds and notes EAEAREE 8.05 187,804 286,239 803,332 - 127315 110377
Financial guarantee contracts HBERAY 966,446 - - - 966,446 -
Total F) 4,904,987 2,048,961 3,018,065 31,408 10,003,421 8,234,016
At31 December 2017 HN7E12R3E
Trade and other payables BAREMEMRTE 169,897 = = - 16%87 1696897
Amounts due to related parties JE B 73R 314,79 - - - 314,279 300,84
Bark and otfier borrowings R
— Fixed rate -8 847 1,292,686 877,952 1,247,933 = 3418571 3,038,148
- Floating rate -%8 6.34 794,732 371,683 973,069 87,635 221119 2,009,568
- Interest-free -%8 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
Convertible bonds and notes EREAREE 1610 771,03 - - - 771,03 661,424
Financial guarantee contracts EiERaD 1,163,208 = = - 1163206 =
Total E) 6,052,336 1,249,635 2,221,002 87,635 9,611,108 7,726,831
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

37. Financial Instruments (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for bank and other borrowings
with floating interest rate is subject to change if changes in
floating interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand, or less than one year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had no such borrowings to repay (31 December 2017:
RMB140,202,000).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are
the maximum amounts on the basis of the earliest date on which
the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that such amount will not be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

37. 8t
b.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BIHuw
BBEREIEBERBER %)

REESERE(E)

BT B R R HRINE RS BREE R
EEMEEHETE - U ERTHEX
sHRMBRITRAME R EENSHE
BEMEE -

RITREMEREA LB 2
A LETA BB SRIE TSR RTT
REMERFAI BRERE DR —
FREE |WEREBER - 120184
12R318 ' "EBUEZEFTEE
REEFK (2017612 A318 : AR
140,202,0007T) ©

N EMBEFREOMEENRSSHE
RERE T AERARRZSEE -
AEBERFRETZERFRDBERT
HERFEE R - RIBERSERE
WIEH - AEERR - RAEFEHA
ERZER - A - ZEFTEEIR
BERRLBROAIEEMETE - M
TRERDEREHETRHEHER
M BEKFIBEREAEEEBEM
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

37. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities.

C.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

Certain of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation

techniques and inputs used).

37. BT HEu

c. MBIANAYE
SEEMEHR G T AR B RE — L

MBEEMBENA

FEWEF -

DEEERENAKET K
EERBENDFE

AEERN— LB BEERBEERS

HRRAR

FEREH o AT RBR
HELHMBEERABHR

TEZ

I M0 & £ (R Bl = P A B (B 750K
A ARBUR) ©

Fair value (RMB'000)
APENRETT)
asat asat  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Financial assets 31 December 2018 31December 2017 hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
HREE ®2018%12A31A R20175128318  AVESE  HEAENEZBRARE BEBZNEZRAHE
Trade receivables - at FVTPL 2,036,857 - level3 Discounted Cash Flow Analysis 1) Future Contractual Cash Flows
RATEFNBHNES £=E TRRASREMT 2) Estimated Repayment Periods
IR (Note)
The key inputs are: 1) ARANELTE
1) Discount Rates FERHERE(HE)
2) Future Contractual Cash Flows
3) Estimated Repayment Periods
SEHAHER
w) BipES
2 AREHEERE
3) BEHESS
Fair value (RMB'000)
AFENRETT)
asat asat  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Financial liability 31 December 2018 31December 2017 hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
BBaE 120185127318 M2017512A318  AVESE  REFENEZGARE EIRENEEAAYE
Conversion option derivative 23,378 59,554 Level3 Binominal Tree Pricing Model  Volatility: 40.30%
AT AR T A F7E “XEEERR (2017: 41.99%)

The key inputs are:

1) USS Risk Free Rate
2) HKS Risk Free Rate
3) Dividend Yield

4) Underlying Asset Value
5) Exercise Price

6) Volatility
BEHARER

1) Z2EEBE

2 BEEERE

3 REkE

4 RHEEEE

5 1R

6) KR

K18  40.30%
(20174 + 41.99%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

37. Financial Instruments (continuea)

C.

37.M BT AEuw

Fair values of financial instruments (continued) c. MBIANLFER)

Note: In case the future contractual cash flows are sufficient to pay
the trade receivables — at FVTPL, an extending in the estimated
repayment periods used in isolation would result in a decrease in the
fair value measurement of accounts receivable — at FVTPL, and vice
versa. 3 months extending/shortening in the estimated repayment
periods holding all other variables constant would decrease/increase
the carrying amounts of the accounts receivable — at FVTPL by about

RMB18,800,000.

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets:

MiEE - AR NREME RIAITIZA
FEFARENEZEKFER B
BRI GERS S8R
R FEF AR M R YGRIRR A F
B8R - RZIA o fhaHERK
HER HEIEA (e R hEE
REFEDE) BRI IRAFER
AREHRURIEREENARE
18,800,0007T °

F=ERONBEEAHEFENR

E

RMB'000

ARETT

As at 31 December 2017 2017412 3318 =
Impact of new and amendments to IFRS E] MBS iR S ER & 1,344,869
As at 1 January 2018 (restated) R2018F1 A 18 (F&E7)) 1,344,869
Increase 0 997,675
Decrease L (253,479
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss TEEREIANATEEZ (52,208)
As at 31 December 2018 #2018 12 A31H 2,036,857

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial

FZEEMNPHABEAHEFENR

liabilities: Eg
RMB'000
AREF T
As at 1 January 2017 R2017F 1818 61,619
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RN ATER L 1,513
Exchange realignment M H SR (3,578)
As at 31 December 2017 720174128318 59,554
New issuance of 2018 Convertible Bonds and 2018 Notes  7%£7720184F ] # (& 4 % 2018 E £ 4% 28,721
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss EERBERNNTEES (11,201)
Conversion of the 2015 Convertible Bonds BIR0015F A B ES (9,619)
Repayment of the 2015 Convertible Bonds and 2015 Notes {20154 Al & #(& %5 K 2015F 25 (46,199)
Exchange realignment bE 5 S 2,122
As at 31 December 2018 MR2018%F 12 A31H 23,378

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years.

FA - WEEALBHE=FR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

37. Financial Instruments (continuedq)

c. Fair values of financial instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosure are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

38. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments.

37. BT HEu
c. HHRRIENAFEE)

AEEFRUBEBLEERTE
(EREEHRBELAFE)NAEAE
ERKEENBKEENDT
&
AAREERHEAUBEREPER
KB IS AR TS B BMARE S
TR E M AT -

38. KEMEH
FEBE[HAA
M A RE - AREB I T R R
ERENREBPHTAR -

At 31 December

M128318
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Within one year —F R 38,242 35,181
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive FE_ERF(RIEERME) 93,261 72,842
After the fifth year FRFER 56,797 36,583
188,300 144,606

None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.

RO BEEMRAHE MBI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

38. Operating Lease Commitments (continued) 38. REMEAH )

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating
lease which fall due as follows:

AEEEREEA

MRS HEARE - REEARTHH
SRR AT BB A & 78 B R R R E 1+
TRAGE

At 31 December

®12A831H
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREBTT
Within one year —F R 23,260 21,809
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive E_ZhF(BIEERME) 21,980 38,293
After the fifth year FRFE 5,250 7,350
50,490 67,452

Operating lease payments with terms of between 1 to 10 years,
represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.
None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.

REMENFTINF—FE+F  KRK
SEETHAEMEENES - LHED
BREEMNIKAEEE MEOE -

39. Commitments 39. &ih
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following AR E BRI 4E R - REBE A AR EE ¢
commitments:
At 31 December
®12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Contracted but not provided for in the BEFRTARERAELSESEA
consolidated financial statements: ISR R
Expenditure in respect of investment BREEMENT T
properties 7,027 23,052
Expenditure in respect of property, BRI - BB &R
plant and equipment g 27,568 264,857
34,595 287,909

The commitments above at the end of the reporting period are to be
settled according to the progress of the future development of the
underlying projects which might not be necessarily incurred within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

FEIRREEMEZEEARR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

VA | % 75 HA ) A SR s B9 e 1S 4 PR AR B 0E
BMARBREZHE  HEAEENEAR
AP —ERME R AERES T @A
MESE -



223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

40. Contingencies 40. B EE

At 31 December

Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group ANEE AR R FRIEITIREH
Rie SRR ()

to banks in favour of its customers (note)

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
966,446 1,189,307

Note: In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition, taking into consideration the possibility of default by the
relevant buyers and, in case of default in payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties can recover the repayment of the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and penalty.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial
statements for these guarantees.

41. Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government authority.
The subsidiaries located in Mainland China are required to contribute
specified rate of the employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules separately. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

M A RREERA  AEENMBEREY
RFERVERRBLTEKX - ZEE
HRESTERAAAEE  MEERER
IR - B RIYE AR B ISHE IR AT R
ERIZBASNER  ER RS RE
o Bt - BIERZEHEA M REAR
A EPERIELBA -

41. BRIRERIFHE

REE S T Hh A E AR KB BT 6P
TEMERNRARBHEEHKE - £
B R [ ey /BB 1 R B BSRIZ IR B TH) T
B IR —TE R L P A %R RAE A 5T B4
TR » NEEME - R ERERRKRE
HFHBISANTOR

REBEERHRGMERESEEREMR
AEBESMBNRIGMHNETER THIER
SERAESE S (RESETE]) © ZatE
THEERAKREEESFFE - LHB
T8 E S IRF BRG] o RIRSESE
SIMA - EEXEEBHAD FIIRIRER LS
EMLE R AT EIHR - AREERTES
FHEIP I — M B LR R % EF LR E

K -
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42. Share-Based Payment Transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to the directors of the Company and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible
employees including the directors of the Company and employees,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. At 31 December 2018, the
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted under
the Scheme was 90,750,000.

Among the total share options, one-third of which are exercisable
during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 July 2019, from 28 July 2017
to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July 2019, respectively. The
exercise price of HK$3.02 per share represents a premium of 0.07%
over the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$2.80 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; and (i) the average closing price of HK$3.018 per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Certain employees, who have been awarded share options of
36,750,000 (31 December 2017: 28,200,000), were ceased their services
with the Group as at 31 December 2018. Hence, these share options
will not vest under the employee share option plan.

The Company extends the maturity date of the share option scheme for
three years from 31 July 2019 to 31 July 2022 (the “New Scheme”), and
there is no change in exercise price. The amendment to the exercise
periods are:

(@ one-third of the share options granted under the Scheme from
“28 July 2016 to 31 July 2019" to “28 July 2016 to 31 July 2022" (the
one third for 2016);

(b)  one-third of the share options granted under the Scheme from
28 July 2017 to 31 July 2019" to “28 July 2017 to 31 July 2022" (the
one third for 2017); and

(c) one-third of the share options granted under the Scheme from
“28 July 2018 to 31 July 2019" to “28 July 2019 to 31 July 2022” (the
one third for 2019).

M RTESETEZERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

42. LR R ERN AR S

ARAREBERHBARARESTUREE
KRETHBEH @ 201557 521 B @R
RITERMN T AR BB HARERT 8 ([ 3%t
gl]) c EZAET ARAAREERE
T(BEARREERES)FZLARER
AR RS ) EARE - 2220185128318 -
BIRZET 813 A BRREFT 8 R B0 AR 17 24 B
590,750,0008% ©

R HRRE T =52 —mEEAER
201647 A28 B E201947 A31 1T * B
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42.Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued)

The New Scheme has been approved by the annual general meeting on

21 June 2018.

A LERE -

42 R ABEBIZNARSE @)

Fat BB M20185F6 421 B RITHIRFBF

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: HARE B EE S AREEIS T ¢
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price Expiry date
¥4 5E A TR fTEER L=
the one-third for 2016 28 July 2015 28 July 2015 28 July 2016 to HK$3.02 31 July 2022
016FH =52~ 201557 4284 t0 27 July 2016 31 July 2022 BI&3.027T 202257318
B201567A288Z  B2016F7A28RZ
2016574278 2022574318
the one-third for 2017 28 July 2015 28 July 2015 28 July 2017 to HK$3.02 31 July 2022
M0V7FEN=92— 2015%7A28H t0 27 July 2017 31 July 2022 B30T 2022%7A31H
B201567A288%Z  B2017F7A28RZ%
201787278 2022574318
the one-third for 2019 28 July 2015 28 July 2015 28 July 2019 to HK$3.02 31July 2022
019F0=52— 201547 A28H t0 27 July 2019 31 July 2022 BE3027T 202247 A318
B201567A288%  B201967A28H%
201987278 2022574318

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by employees and directors during the year.

B5 RS -

TREEREREERFARENART]

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
Options Type 1/1/2018 during year during year during year during year 31/12/2018
RW2018E1A18 R2018%12A318
HEER i RATE FERRH ERTHE FRRK EREM 18 RATHE
the one-third for 2016 20,850,000 - (2,850,000) - 18,000,000
016FH=52—
the one-third for 2017 20,850,000 - - (2,850,000) - 18,000,000
W017EH=52—
the one-third for 2019 20,850,000 - - (2,850,000) - 18,000,000
0190 =02—
62,550,000 = = (8,550,000) - 54,000,000
Exercisable at the end 36,000,000
of the year
RERAETE
Weighted average HK$3.02
exercise price 3,027
IRETAITHEME
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

42.Share-Based Payment Transactions (continueq)

The estimated fair values of the Scheme and the New Scheme are
HK$46,581,000 and HK$81,082,000 respectively.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

42. R BEBNZNARS @

Zat 8| R BIIE T A A TFED RS
7 #546,581,0007T K& 8 %81,082,0007T, ©

ZEATEER-_BPEEERIAE
AIREL B ARBURIN T

Grant date share price B BRE
Exercise price T{EE
Expected volatility B IR
Expected option life TaET ERtESR
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ B 7
Dividend yield AR B2

Options
amended Options granted
on 21 June 2018 on 28 July 2015
7A2018% 20154
6A21B18:THEAE  7A28B XA
HK$2.80 per share HK$2.80 per share
BIREE2.80T FRE2.807T
HK$3.02 per share HK$3.02 per share
BRABY3.02T BRRE3.027T
40.50% 37.73%
4.11 years 3years
4114 3F
2.155% 3.00%
3.133% 5.36%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company's share price over the previous four years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

For the one-third for 2016 and the one-third for 2017, the Company
recognised the effects of modifications that increase the total fair
value RMB44,560,000 of the share-based payment arrangement into
current profit and loss; for the one third for 2019 RMB22,323,000 of
the New Scheme, this modification extends the vesting period and the
exercise period, and the total fair value increase of the share-based
payment arrangement would be recognised in profit and loss during the
remaining vesting period.

The Group recognised share-based payment expense of RMB57,827,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the year ended 31 December
2017: RMB6,619,000) in relation to share options granted by the
company.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors of the Company'’s best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result in changes
in the fair value of the options.

M RTESETEZERE AR AR China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

TEFT IR 8 AR BN A R Bl P 4R A9 S (B
RIREEE - FrtHgES s eRIBEEEEY
AAIEZEENTE  TRRHIREHTR
ZEMREREL

5%201%5@*“2 K2017FEN=D2—

F RARIEERZIETNFE  @1%
mu&%%ﬁwaﬁiﬁzﬁ# FEBFEA
R 44,560,000 £ R BB - M Sl
mwim_ﬂz—v& FIEREBHR
TEH . B AEMNSINLEEN A
JE 'Ei@ %EibuEﬁAEfiﬁzz 323,0007zﬁﬂ?tﬁ%

SFEBIARNIES PR

@izmsiuﬂm HIEFE - AEBEEAR

AR TROPEEZAROMINERAAR
¥ 57,827,0007T (B =2017F 12 A31H LEF
E : AR#6,619,0007T) °

—IEHHF“““F&*F”FHFféﬁﬂﬁf’ﬁ%@%ﬁ‘]
FE - HAEROMEAFENEERRE
*“%Bx%gﬁﬂiﬁﬁjiiﬁﬁﬁ*&ﬁﬁ HE
ERBRNE (G ERER RO BAER
FEREIL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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43. Disposal of Subsidiaries 43. HEH B AT

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity interests in
Beijing Wei Chuang Technology Development Co., Ltd and Zhangjiakou
Tai Chuang Gu Science and Technology Enterprise Incubator Co., Ltd for

a total consideration of RMB51.1 million.

FR - AREHEERIERMER AR
BERAMBAFKRKR O REI AR EE
EBRERAAMN A ERS  BRE/BAR
W511RETT °

Consideration received: B G
2018
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash received BERE 51,100
Total consideration received B iR E 51,100
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control were lost: EAREERHENEEREBEDIN
2018
RMB’000
AR%T
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 30
Properties under development for sale FERERYE 45,602
Prepayments and other receivables TR R E At & W kT8 1,586
Bank balances and cash WITHER RIS 881
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik H M FE TR IE (36)
Net assets disposed of BEEEEFE 48,063
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB A TR :
2018
RMB’000
ARET T
Consideration received and receivable B R ERRE 51,100
Net assets disposed of EEEESE (48,063)
Gain on disposal HERE 3,037
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENESRAFE
2018
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration RERE 51,100
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BEERTERKIIRS (8871)
50,219

Annual Report 2018 44
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

44. Related Party Balances and Transactions 44 B F B R R 5

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, RS MBEREREAMELHREIN - AT AR
the following is a summary of significant balances and significant BAEEEKNG ﬁ%&;ﬁiuﬁi%ﬁﬁ;‘_ﬁi
transactions carried out between the Group and (i) Ms. Wang Wei, the ﬁi%ﬂ’qw}m RIS R £ 57 F A
daughter of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders, (i) associates of the (D) $‘§@H§%%@ (iVNEEREE
Group, (i) immediate holding company of the Group, (iv) the Ultimate ? IRATE]  (VERRZERIRER + RVEF—
Controlling Shareholders and (v) a company controlled by one of the AR RIES ARG - RHIEREH
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. The transactions with these related 2 B B R FETT ©

parties were made on terms agreed among the parties.

(a)

Related party balances (a) BB 4R

Balances as at the end of each reporting period with related A& 45 HA RS 45 2R B BA A B 5 B9 45
parties: R

Amounts due from: FEWBAT B8 F00E -

At 31 December

®12831H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFTT
Associates: NI
— Shengshi zhiye — R E 166,266 157,100
— Sinomerco —Hifnd 1,500 1,500
— Huayuan — R 2,991 -
170,757 158,600
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders’ daughter: 4R IEAXIRR AL R -
— Ms. Wang Wei —EHit 586 586
Immediate holding company: HEZRAA
— Profit East —FE - 1,209
The above receivables from Shengshi Zhiye, Sinomerco, Ms. FutpER R E L RiAS C TRk +
Wang Wei and Profit East are of non-trade nature, while that RAEMNZEBIEE S - mEkER
from Huayuan is of trade nature, all receivables are unsecured WaIEABE S HE - A EKRRIELB
and recoverable on demand. The receivables from Ms. Wang EIA RN ESREEIE - ERTFES LT R
Wei and Profit East are denominated in HK$, while the others F R IF B PAE G - HAUAR
are denominated in RMB. The receivable from Shengshi Zhiye BEEHE o FEUES B M FIR IR E 6%
is interest bearing at 6% per annum, while the other remaining HE  MHTHEMEKRZIERIBS S -

receivables are interest-free.

EXEMEZEEAR /A7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

44.Related Party Balances and Transactions 44. A &8RS @)

(Continued)
(a) Related party balances (continued)
Amounts due to:

(a) BAEETS &6k (E)
[ EPENES Ee-

At 31 December

®12H318
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Associates: it l/NG
- Huayuan — R 3,296 23,226
— Shengshi zhiye — it EE 213 109
3,509 23,335
Joint Venture: AEAT] -
— Hubei International — b B 100,000 -
A company controlled by one of the Ultimate E fh— 4 S A& 12 BR AR B 42 41 &Y
Controlling Shareholders: NG
— China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited —EEBEREGER)BRA
(“Wantong”) a([&ml) = 2,084
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder: AR ARER ¢
- Mr. Wang Jianjun —FEERAE 200 5,200
Immediate holding company: BEEERAR
— Profit East D 264,599 270,225

The above outstanding payable to Huayuan and Shengshi Zhiye
is of trade nature, denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The outstanding payable to Profit East
as at 31 December 2018 was a loan of HK$295,820,000 borrowed
in December 2018, which is interest bearing at 10% per annum
and repayable within six months. The other payables are non-
trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The Company fully repaid the principal to Wantong in February
2018, and fully repaid the principal and interest to Profit East in
April 2018.

LM ERRATEEN RN REBE
SMHE - MARBE - EER - 281
BIRBEHIER - R2018F12 A3 BEMNE
FE AR HIEAR2018FE12 A B ANME K
78 #5295,820,0007T * & EFIR10%5T 8 -
RIERNEAREE - Ht R REBE
BoME IR REWERERE
B o AAFIDR2018E2 B A& REEAR
& - WH2018F4 ARFRBHEEAS R
Al SN
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

44.Related Party Balances and Transactions 44.BEAE&8ERE @)
(Continued)
(a) Related party balances (continued)
The following is an aged analysis of the outstanding payable with
trade nature, presented based on service or payment received
date, at the end of each of the reporting period:

(@) B L ARG
REREMMERE - RECSRHH
FORK B HGEE S E KA
MERE A ITIT -

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T T AREFT
Less than 1 year NS 3,489 1,693
110 2 years 15226 20 19,070
Over 3 years ZHR3E - 2,572
3,509 23,335

(b) Related party transactions (b) BHARS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Shengshi Zhiye Sales of land plots
Bkt E 2 SHE Tib = 358,322
Profit East Interest cost
FER AISNDRN 1,762 10,639
Shengshi zhiye Interest income
Rt B 2 FEHA 8,647 4,331
Huayuan Purchase of heating services
=R i B HUR AR 7S 18,616 1,584
Shengshi zhiye Provision of rental services
BB RIEBEERD 296 99
Wantong Sales of assets
SR HEBE - 30
Huayuan Provision of property services
B RHEYZE RS 34,230 -

R RREETEERE BT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z22018F 12 H31H i F/&

44.Related Party Balances and Transactions
(Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those senior management
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel compensation is as follows:

(d)

A4. BB S ER R R F )

(c) XEEEAEHMH
FEEBABRBENRBEAEE
HAERE - BRI ERES
EHNRREEE - TEEBARN
HET

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Fee Hwe 789 753
Salaries and other benefits e REAET] 7,811 6,805
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme  RIKEFIETEI 214 179
Discretionary performance - related bonus — BYIERIFEMETEAL 4,038 3,981
Share-based payment expense ‘iz &A 24,095 2,381
36,947 14,099

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's performance for

such financial year.

Bank borrowings, convertible bonds and notes

guaranteed by related parties

AL IR R AR MR R
Eg

(d) FHEEMESERMERTRE T
WRESRERE

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET ARBFT
Ms. Zhao Ying AT+ 15,546 15,527
The Ultimate Controlling Shareholders BRI RR AR R 1,502,771 1,061,424
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

45. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from 45 @& ZEAEENABEYE

Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRV AEERBRETHELENARGE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B 2heRREsRIERSET - @EE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows HESNEEABREXARBRRAEE LGS
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated e ReEXANLEAREEHEBIRE R
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. ENRETRE
Convertible Amounts
Borrowings bonds and due to
and other notes and related
loans derivative parties
(note 32) (note 33) (note 44) Total
AR ES
REE
fERR RETE 30
Hin &K META BAEK 5 RKIE
(FfEE32) (PfEE33) (Fff=Ea4) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 31 December 2017 K2017%12 8318 5,067,716 720,978 277,509 6,066,203
Cash flows: WERE :
Principal additions K510 2,174,500 1,039,488 362,837 3,576,825
Principal payments YRS (2,075,277) (642,455) (285,316)  (3,003,048)
Interests payments SAFLE (359,919) (121,660) - (481,579)
Non-cash items: FELEE -
Foreign exchange translation — SNE#E 467 74,645 8,007 83,119
Interests accrual JEETFIE 372,974 109,676 1,762 484,412
conversion =i - (42,322) - (42,322)
Fair value change recognised  MIBRERN A TFE
in profit or loss e - (11,201) - (11,201)
At 31 December 2018 MR2018512 H31H 5,180,461 1,127,149 364,799 6,672,409

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



46. Subsidiaries
As of the end of the reporting period, the Company has the following

"

11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

RRERRERE - ARRFEEATEE

principal subsidiaries: MEB AR :
Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR ERTRAEN
AFER B B H R B/ ERE R AEBEGES TEER
At 31 December
W12A31H
2018 2017
% %
Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd. (noteii) ~ BVI US$7,000 100 100 Investment holding
FEERER AR (M) EBRAHE (Ordinary shares) BAER
12 April 2007 7,000 (L)
200748128
Langfang VAST Urban Development ~ Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iii) HEIA (Paid up capital) development of industrial
("Langfang VAST") 3 August 2005 AR #150,000,0007T town projects
BOMAREEMRREERAR 20058 A3H (BREXK) R FAREREX
(BzEiniii) ([ Bs3h 23R 1) mEEEH
Langfang City Property Development  Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iii) HEA (Paid up capital) WMEER
("Langfang City Property”) 22 May 1995 AR #150,000,0007T
BHTHERMEREERAR 199595 A22R (BRER)
(B i) (T B 5 2 )
Langfang Vast Zhanyao Property Mainland China 1S$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. B (Paid up capital) MEZR
(notes i and iv) 5 June 2007 29,800,000 7T
("Langfang Vast Zhanyao") 200756 A5H (BREXK)
B RERREHELERAB AR
(Hzximniv) ([ B R R ER )
Langfang Vast Zhuoyou Development  Mainland China US$6,550,000 100 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) REIAL (Paid up capital) MELRE
BHEREEEMELZEBBAF  5lune 2007 6,550,000 7T
(HizEiIv) 200756 A58 (BRER)
Tangshan Zhanyao Property Mainland China 1S$29,800,000 100 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. B (Paid up capital) MEZR
(notes i and iv) 25 June 2007 29,800,000 7T
BEILREFEEREARAR 20076 A25H (BREX)

(ByaEiATiv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

46. Subsidiaries (continuea) 46. B2 Tl )

Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
MR ERTRAZMN
PEEL B AR i 2 BRA/EMER AEBEGES TEER
At 31 December
®12A318
2018 2017
% %

Langfang Honghao Investment Co., Mainland China RMB620,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
Ltd. (notes i and iii) REIAL (Paid up capital) ERER R E

BHmER R BER DA 7 July 2008 AR#620,000,0007
(FrzEinii) 200847 A7H (BRER)

Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban Mainland China US$20,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. HE A (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes i and iv) 10 December 2014 20,000,000 T town projects

RRARREZMELEBREBRAR 201456128108 (BREXK) RE R RERER
(FyzEiRiv) mEER

Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development  Mainland China RMVB47,882,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i andiii) HEIA, (Paid up capital) development of industrial

AREMERELMERERRAR  16December 2015 AR%47,882,0007¢ town project
(B i) 20154128168 (BREXK) RE R RERER

mEER

Ezhou Vast Urban Development Mainland China RMB203,381,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notes i andiii) HEIA, (Paid up capital) development of industrial

BN AREEMHERERAA 25 January 2016 AR#203,381,0007¢ town project
(B zimiii) 2016F1A425H (BRER) HE - R REREXETR

EH

Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. HE A (Paid up capital) development of industrial
(notes i and i) 19 August 2016 AR®30,000,0007T town project

BEEMBNEREXMHAER 2016%8A19A (BRER) HE - RAREREE
R A R (P FEiAiin) mEER

Shijiazhuang Shengxin Weichuang Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Construction and technology
Development Co., Ltd. HE A (Paid up capital) development
(notes i and iii) 30 August 2016 AE#20,000,0007% BEREBBER

BREMBSERFZRERAR  2016F8A30A (BREXK)

L)

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

46. Subsidiaries (continueq)

Notes:
English name for identification only.

ii. Shing Cheong is directly held by the Company. Other subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

46.MIB 28] ()

MSE

X ATEERZR

HEBMARREERE - HMHEBRAH
ARFREEEE

ii.  These subsidiaries are domestic wholly-owned enterprises established in iii. ZEWBARRNT ALK RN B
Mainland China. B -
iv.  These subsidiaries are foreign wholly-owned enterprises established in V.  EMEARRR A BR8N IE
Mainland China. B
None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt securities ARATHIH B A B E R E R T(E A E
at the end of the year. FemE o
Composition of the Group SEBRESER
Place of
incorporation/
establishment Number of subsidiaries
MRS, BR 3Lt 7 MEQRNEE
2018 2017
Investment holding EYERR BVI 2 2
EBETHS
Investment holding BB Hong Kong 2 2
B
Property leasing EEHE Hong Kong 1 1
BB
Planning, design and development B - BRI RER Mainland China 7 7
of industrial town projects EXEmiEEE B A
Property development L E LY Mainland China 6 7
A B A
Property development and leasing MEBRREE Mainland China 1 1
HR AT
Infrastructure investment AR EIRE Mainland China 4 4
B A
Project investment, lease, consulting IBEHRE - HEFAA  Mainland China 2 2
and asset management BEEE A B A
Consulting and maintenance service BT E RS Mainland China 2 3
HR AT
Internet information technology service Psls BEZRRS Mainland China 3 2
B A
Not yet commence business KRB Mainland China 41 30
A B A
71 61

Annual Report 2018 4R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # Z20184F 12 31 H i1 F/&

47.Financial Information of the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

47. AR B B AR R
ABARRQRIN2018F12 A31H B AR
KOERAT ¢

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Non-current asset ERBNE E
Investments in subsidiaries (note) MiE AR E (MiEE) 1,640,283 1,639,533
1,640,283 1,639,533
Current assets MENEE
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 416,488 4,283
Other receivables HAb EYGRIE 963 190
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUFT B~ RIFRTIE 692,502 91,457
1,109,953 95,930
Total assets BERE 2,750,236 1,735,463
Current liabilities mEAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A RIFRIE 817,019 354,432
Amounts due to related parties FE RS 5 R IR 264,599 272,308
Other payables H At B4 5RIE 807 713
Convertible bonds and notes AIERES KRR 110,075 661,424
Derivative PTHEMBIA = 59,554
1,192,500 1,348,431
Net current liabilities nBBEFE (82,547) (1,252,501)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERREAE 1,557,736 387,032
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Convertible bonds and notes A[BEAE S R R 993,696 =
Derivative PTEMB T A 23,378 -
1,017,074 -
Net assets BEFE 540,662 387,032
Capital and reserves FR AN K e
Share capital A&7 13,141 13,031
Reserves s 527,521 374,001
Total equity BrEm 540,662 387,032
Note: BisE

The amounts includes the deemed cost of investment made in Shing Cheong
Holdings and Shenzhen Foresea Vast and Wuhan Aifeike Vast.

It &R BIERE SRENREERARINFNER
RHREERERFOLA

B R ZRE E TSR R AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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47.Financial Information of the Company 47.72 S8R R )

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company received a
Shareholder’s Loan of US$38,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB234,216,000) from Profit East. After receiving this Shareholder’s
Loan, the Company immediately advanced the full amount to Shing
Cheong Holdings. In August 2014, Shing Cheong Holdings issued
new shares to the Company to fully settle this outstanding amount
payable to the Company. In addition to which, the Company also
made an advance of RMB1,096,177,000 and RMB296,640,000 to Shing
Cheong Holdings during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015
respectively. Prior to the end of 2014 and 2015, the Company decided
to waive for the settlement of the receivables of RMB1,096,177,000 and
RMB296,640,000, respectively, from Shing Cheong Holdings which was
accounted for as further capital contribution to Shing Cheong Holdings
by the Company. Prior to the above transactions, the deemed cost of
the Company’s investment in Shing Cheong Holdings was recognised
at nil as Shing Cheong Holdings was in a net liability position on 21
February 2014, the date on which the Company became the holding
company of the Group.

Information about the statement of change in equity of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

HE2014F12A3NBLEEE - ARRBF
1S —$38,270,000% 7T (HHER LA
R %234,216,0007T ) B IR R E K o WENEZ
BRRERE - ANAR A BEEZIFR
NFHEER - B20145E8 8 - #E K
MARRARETHRG @ ABBREFMFLEER
EERMARBATRIE o 1 - ARER
H E2014F k20154 12 A 31 8 LLF E 75
2 B[ S R R 2 A R #51,096,177,000
7T R A R # 296,640,000 7T ° F 20144 K
2015F FERT * NABNRED BIFARHE
o B (B8 A R #51,096,177,0007C &2 A R
296,640,0007T K FE U FRIE + W5 7% 5 B
IARR R RS ERE—SEEAR - R
AR SHESTAT - AR EER2014452
A218 (BIARRQ R AR EZERARMNE
H)ERFEERR - BURIEARRQ AR HS
ERMIEERAERAE

BRARREE2018E12A3MB ILEER
EREERAT

(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
(RitER)/
R RIOEE REHERE AIERAE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR%ETn AR%®Tx AR¥Trn AR®T:R
At 1 January 2017 H201741 818 13,031 720578 13,900 (216,839) 530,671
Total comprehensive income FRZEMNE
for the year Fek = - - 19,841 19,841
Dividend distribution AEEARA - (170,099) - - (170,099)
Recognition of equity-settled REEE T
share-based payments WA - - 6,619 - 6,619
At 31 December 2017 201745126318 13,031 550,479 20,519 (196,997) 387,032
Total comprehensive income FREERSAE
for the year - - - 474,173 474,173
Conversion of convertible bonds AEREAMER 110 42,212 - - 42,322
Dividend distribution 2 B - (420,692) - - (420,692)
Recognition of equity-settled REEEZ
share-based payments RHER - - 57,827 - 57,827
At 31 December 2018 #2018 124318 13,141 171,999 78,346 277,176 540,662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F/Z

48. Other Matter

On 12 March 2018, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
received a notice on Members of Collegial Panel ((2018) Ji Min Chu
No.19) from the Higher People’s Court of Hebei Province that Langfang
Jingyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (the “Plaintiff”) launched a
lawsuit against Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Langfang
City Property”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
and Langfang VAST Zhanyao Property Development Company
Limited (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the
immediate holding company of Langfang City Property), among others,
on the dispute over an equity transfer agreement in 2016 (the “Equity
Transfer Agreement”). The lawsuit has been accepted by the Higher
People’s Court of Hebei Province.

The Plaintiff claimed that the project development activities on the land
underlying the aforesaid equity transaction could not be timely started
as planned due to the default of Langfang City Property, and is seeking
for the court to order its release from the Equity Transfer Agreement
entered into between the Plaintiff and Langfang City Property, and to
order Langfang City Property to return the consideration amount of
approximately RMB525,220,000 paid by the Plaintiff for such equity
transfer and pay a liquidated damage of approximately RMB158,566,000.

On 17 September 2018, the Higher People’s Court of Hebei Province
dismissed the lawsuit pursuant to Civil Judgment ((2018) Ji Min Chu
No0.19). On 30 September 2018, the Plaintiff lodged an appeal to the
Supreme People’s Court against the dismissal.

R ERREEMEZERE AR AT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

8. HftbE=H

RABTEzET2EKBARNR20184F3
A12B 2R SRARER01ER
TSR ABEEARASBAE @ BBBEA
EMTRS REHEEREERAE (R
H 1) EAAREER2016F 6 — ) =
ek ([ B R 17 a8 | 4R h#22 ek » s R
BREBSMREFSMEREERAE(E
DWERME | ARARREZENBER
A EESAERBEMERZEERAR
(AREEE2 BB A B R B R A
EMEEERAR) » Zara D ~&HmiEE
BRARERZIE

JRE =M Eat iR 5 P Y £ R IR
B [ 2 B BR R 3 9 [ 5 3 S ) ] RE R
BEIRAHEI R RRE) - BIESSOERH S
R TR 5 B RR T U [ B Mt 2 2R AT B A
HBRERDHE  RASBHBERBE
REREEX MW EEREEHIRY
A R #5 525,220,000 7T A & X 1 59 A R 8
158,566,0007THI & [RIEEX) & °

20189 H17H » AdEAE S RARERR
BEREFIR(01Q)ERM195%) & 2 %
A © R2018F9 H30H » REMZEARE
Brhe hEt 8 B AR RAEy L&



239

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EmERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018%F 12531 H I F /&

48. Other Matter (continueq) 48. HMEH )

On 25 December 2018, in order to prevent the incurrence of further
legal and time costs, Langfang City Property and the Plaintiff entered
into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”), pursuant
to which Langfang City Property agreed to reduce the consideration
of the target company paid by the Plaintiff from approximately
RMB525,220,000 to RMB485,220,000 and pay the difference of
RMB40,000,000 to the Plaintiff, provided that the Plaintiff agreed to,
among others, withdraw its appeal to the Supreme People’s Court
against the Higher People’'s Court of Hebei Province's decision to
dismiss the lawsuit and to apply to the Higher People’s Court of Hebeli
Province to vacate any attachment, seizure or freezing of Langfang City
Property’s assets as security for litigation. Upon the performance of
each of their obligations under the Settlement Agreement, the Plaintiff
and Langfang City Property further agreed that no dispute in connection
with the performance of the Equity Transfer Agreement shall arise in
the future, and the Plaintiff shall not, with respect to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, initiate any proceedings against Langfang City Property,
apply for any security for litigation imposed on Langfang City Property’s
assets, or assert any of its rights under the Equity Transfer Agreement
against Langfang City Property.

On 26 December 2018, Langfang City Property paid RMB40,000,000 to
the Plaintiff pursuant to the Settlement Agreement. On the same day,
the Higher People’s Court of Hebei Province issued a civil judgment that
any attachment, seizure or freezing of security assets of Langfang City
Property has been vacated with immediate effect.

As the Lawsuit has been fully settled and resolved and having
considered the settlement terms under the Settlement Agreement
(including without limitation the settlement amount), the directors of the
Company consider that the lawsuit does not have any material adverse
effect to the business and financial conditions of the Group.

F20184F 12250 - REELEBINEER
BRI AR - BR YT R [ f5 b E B2 JR 5 5T SZ A0
i (M@ - B RS EE
ERBERREXMNNBERARKEHHA
R ¥#525,220,0007T % 2 A R # 485,220,000
7T 0 WA R & 325 2= FE A R #40,000,000
T MEAEATHRIRET - RERE(EH
B HEERZDARERTIEE SR
ARERT BB %A FAREDR R HI B B R
I A AL A = AR A AR B 55 BUS 3 RS 5
WREmEERENEAINA  EHHR
® o ERFDREEE - REMBIHRE
BHERTREENRHZE TNSER
FR - REE—THERRB I HELEN
REESZARBENABNEIAMY AR
SR TSR EEES RR B REE b
BRI - B8 B E i E
M EERNEFGF R REEERERRE
Pt e R AN R MR EMEER F
AR »

2018412 A26 B + ER3hIK & = 1 EE AR I
AR R R R & 2 - A R #540,000,0007T °
BH TEERRARERELREETE
Z - RIUEHEBIRRENEREEE
R EAI R - EE R ©

B ZAFAAD SERERMAR MR - A&t
R AE# 7R T AR R (B ETRR
MRSH)  EERRAN AL A LB
B RESIOR I BSERR AR E R T Z -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFUBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the — AREEZA AAMREE 2 EE R EE N EEH]
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements is ~ E&HZFIA0T + Jyi85k A L BAZI 5 R FE o
set out below.

Results ¥iE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRr ARETT ARBTr ARETT ARETT

Revenue A 3,995,224 2,935,017 1,965,181 1,423,706 2,391,205
Gross profit EF 2,431,320 1,966,076 624,395 610,983 1,128,092
Profit before tax R BT A 1,779,388 1,497,530 941,317 680,964 931,647
Income tax expense e RiF 658,041 416,696 (272,945) (167,383) (231,049)
Net profit for the year P A 1,121,347 1,080,834 668,372 513,581 700,598
Total comprehensive income for — FRZ2E K
the year FEEE] 1,118,047 1,080,834 692,413 513,581 700,598
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
As of 31 December
M"12831A
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETRT

Non-current assets ERBEE 3,282,797 3,106,805 2,169,583 1,217,959 925,741
Current assets mEEE 11,054,514 10,607,607 9,156,829 7,091,304 6,014,520
Total assets BEHEE 14,337,311 13,714,412 11,326,412 8,309,263 6,940,261
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 4,977,599 3,431,897 3,844,398 2,214,954 1,138,756
Current liabilities mEAE 4,340,740 5,975,280 4,097,133 3,272,986 3,300,697
Total liabilities BERRE 9,318,339 9,407,177 7,941,531 5,487,940 4,439,453
Equity attributable to owners iN/NEIE 2=

of the Company FE(RHER 5,000,273 4,301,864 3,383,535 2,821,323 2,500,808
Non-controlling interest PR R 18,699 5,371 1,346 - -
Total Equity Kk 5,018,972 4,307,235 3,384,881 2,821,323 2,500,808

B R ZR A E T EEE R A R 2 &) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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